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*1.600%
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NG8
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NJ2
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*Priced to call

RAYMOND JAMES | Morgan Keegan has agreed to purchase the Bonds from the City for an aggregate price of
$3,902,348.91 plus accrued interest to the date of delivery.  It is expected that the Bonds will be available for delivery
on or about September 20, 2012.

Book-Entry-Only:  This offering will be issued as fully registered Bonds and will be registered in the name of Cede
& Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, to which principal and interest
payments on the Bonds will be made.

Paying Agent:  U.S. Bank National Association, St. Paul, Minnesota.

THIS ADDENDUM TOGETHER WITH THE OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED JULY 26, 2012, SHALL
CONSTITUTE A "FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT" OF THE ISSUER WITH RESPECT TO THE BONDS AS
THAT TERM IS DEFINED IN RULE 15c2-12 OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION.

RAYMOND JAMES | Morgan Keegan
Memphis, Tennessee

On April 2, 2012, Raymond James Financial, Inc. ("RJF"), the parent company of Raymond James & Assocaites, Inc.
("Raymond James"), acquired all of the stock of Morgan Keegan & Company, Inc. from Regions Financial
Corporation.  Morgan Keegan and Raymond James are each registered broker-dealers.  Both Morgan Keegan and
Raymond James are wholly owned subsidiaries of RJF and, as such, are affiliated broker-dealer companies under the
common control of RJF, utilizing the trade name "Raymond James | Morgan Keegan" that appears on the cover of
this Official Statement.  It is anticipated that the businesses of Raymond James and Morgan Keegan will be combined.



In the opinion of Quarles & Brady LLP, Bond Counsel, assuming continued compliance with the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, under existing
law interest on the Bonds is excludable from gross income and is not an item of tax preference for federal income tax purposes.  See "TAX EXEMPTION" herein for a more
detailed discussion of some of the federal income tax consequences of owning the Bonds.  The interest on the Bonds is not exempt from present Wisconsin income or franchise
taxes.

The City will designate the Bonds as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, relating to the
ability of financial institutions to deduct from income for federal income tax purposes, interest expense that is allocable to carrying and acquiring tax-exempt obligations.

New Issue Rating Application Made: Moody's Investors Service

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED JULY 26, 2012

CITY OF RIVER FALLS, WISCONSIN
(Pierce and St. Croix Counties)

$3,950,000* GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2012B

BID OPENING:  August 14, 2012, 10:00 A.M., C.T. CONSIDERATION:  August 14, 2012, 6:30 P.M., C.T.

PURPOSE/AUTHORITY/SECURITY: The $3,950,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012B (the "Bonds") of the City of
River Falls, Wisconsin (the "City") are being issued pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes, Section 67.04 to provide funds to finance (i) the current
refunding of the 2013 through 2015 maturities of the City’s $1,630,000 General Obligation Library Refunding Bonds, Series 2004A, dated
January 1, 2004; and (ii) the full-net cash advance refunding of the 2013 through 2024 maturities of the City’s $4,750,000 Sewerage System
Revenue Bonds, Series 2004B, dated August 1, 2004.  The Bonds are valid and binding general obligations of the City, and all the taxable
property in the City is subject to the levy of a tax to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds as they become due which tax may, under
current law, be levied without limitation as to rate or amount.  Delivery is subject to receipt of an approving legal opinion of Quarles & Brady
LLP, Milwaukee, Wisconsin.

DATE OF BONDS: September 20, 2012
MATURITY: May 1 as follows:

Year Amount* Year Amount* Year Amount*
2013 $475,000 2017 $290,000 2021 $325,000
2014 480,000 2018 300,000 2022 335,000
2015 485,000 2019 310,000 2023 345,000
2016 290,000 2020 315,000

MATURITY ADJUSTMENTS: * The City reserves the right to increase or decrease the principal amount of the Bonds on the day of
sale, in increments of $5,000 each.  Increases or decreases may be made in any maturity.  If any
principal amounts are adjusted, the purchase price proposed will be adjusted to maintain the same gross
spread per $1,000.

TERM BONDS: See "Term Bond Option" herein.
INTEREST: May 1, 2013 and semiannually thereafter.
OPTIONAL REDEMPTION: Bonds maturing May 1, 2021 and thereafter are subject to call for prior redemption on May 1, 2020 and

any date thereafter, at par.
MINIMUM BID: $3,910,500.
GOOD FAITH DEPOSIT: $79,000.
PAYING AGENT/
   ESCROW AGENT: U.S. Bank National Association, St. Paul, Minnesota.
BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY: See "Book-Entry-Only System" herein (unless otherwise specified by the purchaser).

This Preliminary Official Statement will be further supplemented by an addendum specifying the offering prices, interest rates, aggregate
principal amount, principal amount per maturity, anticipated delivery date, and Syndicate Manager and Syndicate Members, together with any
other information required by law, and, as supplemented, shall constitute a "Final Official Statement" of the City with respect to the Bonds,
as defined in S.E.C. Rule 15c2-12.
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REPRESENTATIONS

No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the City to give any information or to make any representation other than
those contained in this Preliminary Official Statement and, if given or made, such other information or representations must not be relied upon
as having been authorized by the City.  This Preliminary Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer
to buy any of these Bonds in any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or solicitation in such jurisdiction.

This Preliminary Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract with the Syndicate Manager or Syndicate Members.  Statements
contained herein which involve estimates or matters of opinion are intended solely as such and are not to be construed as representations of
fact.  Ehlers prepared this Preliminary Official Statement and any addenda thereto relying on information of the City and other sources for which
there is reasonable basis for believing the information is accurate and complete.  Bond Counsel has not participated in the preparation of this
Preliminary Official Statement except as described herein and is not expressing any opinion as to the completeness or accuracy of the
information contained therein.  Compensation of Ehlers, payable entirely by the City, is contingent upon the sale of the issue.

COMPLIANCE WITH S.E.C. RULE 15c2-12

Certain municipal obligations (issued in an aggregate amount over $1,000,000) are subject to General Rules and Regulations, Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, Rule 15c2-12 Municipal Securities Disclosure (the "Rule").

Preliminary Official Statement:  This Preliminary Official Statement was prepared for the City for dissemination to potential customers.
Its primary purpose is to disclose information regarding these Bonds to prospective underwriters in the interest of receiving competitive
proposals in accordance with the sale notice contained herein.  Unless an addendum is posted prior to the sale, this Preliminary Official
Statement shall be deemed nearly final for purposes of the Rule subject to completion, revision and amendment in a Final Official Statement
as defined below.

Review Period:  This Preliminary Official Statement has been distributed to members of the legislative body and other public officials of
the City as well as to prospective bidders for an objective review of its disclosure.  Comments or requests for the correction of omissions or
inaccuracies must be submitted to Ehlers at least two business days prior to the sale.  Requests for additional information or corrections in the
Preliminary Official Statement received on or before this date will not be considered a qualification of a proposal received from an underwriter.
If there are any changes, corrections or additions to the Preliminary Official Statement, interested bidders will be informed by an addendum
at least one business day prior to the sale.

Final Official Statement:  Upon award of sale of these Bonds, the Preliminary Official Statement together with any previous addendum of
corrections or additions will be further supplemented by an addendum specifying the offering prices, interest rates, aggregate principal amount,
principal amount per maturity, anticipated delivery date, and Syndicate Manager and Syndicate Members, together with any other information
required by law, and, as supplemented, shall constitute a "Final Official Statement" of the City with respect to the Bonds, as defined in S.E.C.
Rule 15c2-12.  Copies of the Final Official Statement will be delivered to the underwriter (Syndicate Manager) within seven business days
following the proposal acceptance.

Continuing Disclosure:  Subject to certain exemptions, issues in an aggregate amount over $1,000,000 may be required to comply with
provisions of the Rule which require that underwriters obtain from the issuers of municipal securities (or other obligated party) an agreement
for the benefit of the owners of the securities to provide continuing disclosure with respect to those securities.  This Preliminary Official
Statement describes the conditions under which these Bonds are exempt or required to comply with the Rule.

CLOSING CERTIFICATES

Upon delivery of these Bonds, the purchaser (underwriter) will be furnished with the following items: (1) a certificate of the appropriate officials
to the effect that at the time of the sale of these Bonds and all times subsequent thereto up to and including the time of the delivery of these
Bonds, this Preliminary Official Statement did not and does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; (2) a receipt signed
by the appropriate officer evidencing payment for these Bonds; (3) a certificate evidencing the due execution of these Bonds, including
statements that (a) no litigation of any nature is pending, or to the knowledge of signers, threatened, restraining or enjoining the issuance and
delivery of these Bonds, (b) neither the corporate existence or boundaries of the City nor the title of the signers to their respective offices is
being contested, and (c) no authority or proceedings for the issuance of these Bonds have been repealed, revoked or rescinded; and (4) a
certificate setting forth facts and expectations of the City which indicates that the City does not expect to use the proceeds of these Bonds in
a manner that would cause them to be arbitrage bonds within the meaning of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended,
or within the meaning of applicable Treasury Regulations.
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INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT

This Preliminary Official Statement contains certain information regarding the City of River Falls, Wisconsin (the
"City") and the issuance of its $3,950,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012B (the "Bonds").  Any
descriptions or summaries of the Bonds, statutes, or documents included herein are not intended to be complete and
are qualified in their entirety by reference to such statutes and documents and the form of the Bonds to be included
in the resolution authorizing the sale of the Bonds ("Award Resolution") to be adopted by the Common Council on
August 14, 2012.

Inquiries may be directed to Ehlers & Associates, Inc. ("Ehlers" or the "Financial Advisor"), Roseville, Minnesota,
(651) 697-8500, the City's Financial Advisor.  A copy of this Preliminary Official Statement may be downloaded
from Ehlers’ web site at www.ehlers-inc.com by connecting to the link to the Bond Sales and following the directions
at the top of the site.

THE BONDS

GENERAL

The Bonds will be issued in fully registered form as to both principal and interest in denominations of $5,000 each
or any integral multiple thereof, and will be dated, as originally issued, as of September 20, 2012.  The Bonds will
mature on May 1 in the years and amounts set forth on the cover of this Preliminary Official Statement.  Interest will
be payable on May 1 and November 1 of each year, commencing May 1, 2013, to the registered owners of the Bonds
appearing of record in the bond register as of the close of business on the 15th day (whether or not a business day)
of the immediately preceding month.  Interest will be computed upon the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day
months and will be rounded pursuant to rules of the MSRB.  The rate for any maturity may not be more than
1.00% less than the rate for any preceding maturity. (For example, if a rate of 3.00% is proposed for the 2021
maturity, then the lowest rate that may be proposed for any later maturity is 2.00%.)  All Bonds of the same
maturity will bear interest from date of issue until paid at a single, uniform rate.

Unless otherwise specified by the purchaser the Bonds will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for
The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC").  (See "Book-Entry-Only System" herein.)  As long
as the Bonds are held under the book-entry system, beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds may be acquired in
book-entry form only, and all payments of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds shall be made
through the facilities of DTC and its Participants.  If the book-entry system is terminated, principal of, premium, if
any, and interest on the Bonds shall be payable as provided in the resolution awarding the sale of the Bonds.

The City has selected U.S. Bank National Association, St. Paul, Minnesota, to act as paying agent (the "Paying
Agent") and escrow agent (the “Escrow Agent”).  The City will pay the charges for Paying Agent and Escrow Agent
services.  The City reserves the right to remove the Paying Agent and/or Escrow Agent and to appoint a successor.
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OPTIONAL REDEMPTION

At the option of the City, Bonds maturing on or after May 1, 2021 shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity
on May 1, 2020 and on any date thereafter, at a price of par plus accrued interest.

Redemption may be in whole or in part of the Bonds subject to prepayment.  If redemption is in part, the selection
of the amounts and maturities of the Bonds to be redeemed shall be at the discretion of the City.  If only part of the
Bonds having a common maturity date are called for redemption, then the City or Paying Agent, if any, will notify
DTC of the particular amount of such maturity to be redeemed.  DTC will determine by lot the amount of each
participant's interest in such maturity to be redeemed and each participant will then select by lot the beneficial
ownership interest in such maturity to be redeemed.

Notice of such call shall be given by sending a notice by registered or certified mail, facsimile or electronic
transmission, or overnight delivery service not fewer than 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption to the
registered owner of each Bond to be redeemed at the address shown on the registration books.

AUTHORITY; PURPOSE

The Bonds are authorized pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes, Chapter 67.04, to provide funds to finance (i) the current
refunding of the 2013 through 2015 maturities of the City’s $1,630,000 General Obligation Library Refunding Bonds,
Series 2004A, dated January 1, 2004 (the “Series 2004A Bonds”); and (ii) the full-net cash advance refunding of the
2013 through 2024 maturities of the City’s $4,750,000 Sewerage System Revenue Bonds, Series 2004B, dated August
1, 2004 (the “Series 2004B Bonds”).

Following are the maturities of the Series 2004A Bonds being refunded by the Bonds:

Issue Being Refunded

Date of
Refunded

Issue
Call
Date

Call
Price

Maturities
Being

Refunded
Interest
Rates

Principal
to be

Refunded

Series 2004A Bonds 1/01/04 10/01/12 Par 2013 3.45% $195,000
2014 3.60% 200,000
2015 3.70%   205,000

$600,000

A portion of the proceeds of the Bonds will be used by the City to call and prepay the maturities described above and
to pay all or a portion of the costs of issuance.  The City will pay the principal and interest payment due on October
1, 2012 from the Debt Service Fund for the Series 2004A Bonds.  The Series 2004A Bonds will not be paid through
an escrow agent.
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Following are the maturities of the Series 2004B Bonds being refunded by the Bonds:

Issue Being Refunded

Date of
Refunded

Issue
Call
Date

Call
Price

Maturities
Being

Refunded
Interest
Rates

Principal
to be

Refunded

Series 2004B Bonds 8/01/04 Paid at maturity 2013 3.950% $   210,000
2014 3.950% 220,000

5/01/14 Par 2015 3.950% 230,000
2016 4.050% 245,000
2017 4.125% 255,000
2018 4.200% 270,000
2019 4.250% 285,000
2020 4.375% 300,000
2021 4.450% 315,000
2022 4.500% 335,000
2023 4.550% 355,000
2024 4.600%      375,000

Total Series 2004B Bonds Being Refunded $3,395,000

The Bonds are being sold in advance of the call date of the Series 2004B Bonds and a portion of the proceeds of the
Bonds will be invested in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  Acceptance of a bid is
dependent upon a satisfactory escrow account being established in an amount sufficient to pay all principal and
interest payments due on the Series 2004B Bonds from September 20, 2012 through May 1, 2014 and to pay the
principal being called on the Series 2004B Bonds on May 1, 2014.  The City will establish an escrow account with
direct obligations of the U.S. Government.  Actuarial services necessary to ensure adequacy of the escrow account
to provide timely payment of the Series 2004B Bonds to be refunded on the call date will be performed by a certified
public accountant.

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES

Sources

Par Amount of Bonds $3,950,000

Transfer from Prior Issue Debt Service Reserve Fund 335,673

Transfer from Prior Issue Debt Service Fund        72,792

Total Sources $4,358,465

Uses

Deposit to Escrow Fund for Series 2004B Bonds $3,664,340

Deposit to Current Refunding Fund for Series 2004A Bonds 600,000

Finance Related Expenses 50,000

Discount Allowance 39,500

Contingency          4,625

Total Uses $4,358,465



4

SECURITY

For the prompt payment of the Bonds with interest thereon and for the levy of taxes sufficient for this purpose, the
full faith, credit and resources of the City will be irrevocably pledged.  The City will levy a direct, annual,
irrepealable tax on all taxable property in the City sufficient to pay the interest on the Bonds when it becomes due
and also to pay and discharge the principal on the Bonds at maturity, in compliance with Article XI, Section 3 of the
Wisconsin Constitution.  Such tax may, under current law, be levied without limitation as to rate or amount.

RATING

General obligation debt of the City, with the exception of any outstanding credit enhanced issues, is currently rated
“Aa2” by Moody’s Investors Service.  The City has requested a rating on this issue from Moody's Investors Service,
and bidders will be notified as to the assigned rating prior to the sale.  Such a rating, if and when received, will reflect
only the view of the rating agency and any explanation of the significance of such rating may only be obtained from
Moody's Investors Service.  There is no assurance that such rating, if and when received, will continue for any period
of time or that it will not be revised or withdrawn.  Any revision or withdrawal of the rating may have an effect on
the market price of the Bonds.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

In order to assist the Underwriters in complying with SEC Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange
Commission, pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Rule"), the City shall covenant pursuant to a
Resolution adopted by the Governing Body to enter into an undertaking (the "Undertaking") for the benefit of holders
including beneficial holders of the Bonds to provide certain financial information and operating data relating to the
City annually to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the "MSRB"), and to provide notices of the occurrence
of certain events enumerated in the Rule electronically or in the manner otherwise prescribed by the MSRB to the
MSRB.  The details and terms of the Undertaking, as well as the information to be contained in the annual report or
the notices of material events, are set forth in the Continuing Disclosure Certificate to be executed and delivered by
the City at the time the Bonds are delivered.  Such Certificate will be in substantially the form attached hereto as
Appendix D.  

In connection with the issuance of other debt issues, the City has entered into previous undertakings similar
to the Undertaking.  When filing its annual reports for the fiscal years ending December 31, 2008 and
December 31, 2010, the City inadvertently linked some but not all outstanding cusip numbers to its annual
report on the Electronic Municipal Market Access ("EMMA") system.  Currently, all cusips are linked to all
relevant annual reports on EMMA.

Other than described above, in the previous five years, the City has not failed to comply in any material respects
with any previous undertakings under the Rule to provide annual reports or notices of material events.  A failure by
the City to comply with the Undertaking will not constitute an event of default on the Bonds (although holders will
have the right to obtain specific performance of the obligations under the Undertaking).  Nevertheless, such a failure
must be reported in accordance with the Rule and must be considered by any broker, dealer or municipal securities
dealer before recommending the purchase or sale of the Bonds in the secondary market.  Consequently, such a failure
may adversely affect the transferability and liquidity of the Bonds and their market price.

The City will file its continuing disclosure information using EMMA.  Investors will be able to access continuing
disclosure information filed with the MSRB at www.emma.msrb.org.
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LEGAL OPINION

An opinion as to the validity of the Bonds and the exemption from federal taxation of the interest thereon will be
furnished by Quarles & Brady LLP,  bond counsel to the City, and will accompany the Bonds.  The legal opinion will
be issued on the basis of existing law and will state that the Bonds are valid and binding general obligations of the
City; provided that the rights of the owners of the Bonds and the enforceability of the Bonds may be limited by
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, and other similar laws affecting creditors' rights and by equitable
principles (which may be applied in either a legal or equitable proceeding).

STATEMENT REGARDING BOND COUNSEL PARTICIPATION

Bond Counsel has not assumed responsibility for this Official Statement or participated in its preparation (except with
respect to the section entitled ?Tax Exemption" in the Official Statement and the ?Form of Legal Opinion" found in
the Appendix B) and has not performed any investigation as to its accuracy, completeness or sufficiency.

TAX EXEMPTION

Quarles & Brady LLP, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, Bond Counsel, will deliver a legal opinion with respect to the federal
income tax exemption applicable to the interest on the Bonds under existing law substantially in the following form:

"The interest on the Bonds is excludable for federal income tax purposes from the gross income of
the owners of the Bonds.  The interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax preference for purposes of
the federal alternative minimum tax imposed by Section 55 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
as amended (the "Code") on corporations (as that term is defined for federal income tax purposes)
and individuals.  However, for purposes of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on
corporations, the interest on the Bonds is included in adjusted current earnings.  The Code contains
requirements that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order for interest on
the Bonds to be or continue to be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes.
Failure to comply with certain of those requirements could cause the interest on the Bonds to be
included in gross income retroactively to the date of issuance of the Bonds.  The City has agreed to
comply with all of those requirements.  The opinion set forth in the first sentence of this paragraph
is subject to the condition that the City comply with those requirements.  We express no opinion
regarding other federal tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds."

The interest on the Bonds is not exempt from present Wisconsin income or franchise taxes.

Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should be aware that ownership of the Bonds may result in collateral federal
income tax consequences to certain taxpayers.  Bond Counsel will not express any opinion as to such collateral tax
consequences.  Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their tax advisors as to collateral federal income
tax consequences.

From time to time legislation is proposed, and there are or may be legislative proposals pending in the Congress of
the United States that, if enacted, could alter or amend the federal tax matters referred to above or adversely affect
the market value of the Bonds.  It cannot be predicted whether, or in what form, any proposal that could alter one or
more of the federal tax matters referred to above or adversely affect the market value of the Bonds may be
enacted. Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisors regarding any pending or
proposed federal tax legislation. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any pending or proposed federal tax
legislation.
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QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS

The City will designate the Bonds as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the
Code relating to the ability of financial institutions to deduct from income for federal income tax purposes, interest
expense that is allocable to carrying and acquiring tax-exempt obligations.

FINANCIAL ADVISOR

Ehlers has served as Financial Advisor to the City in connection with the issuance of the Bonds.  The Financial
Advisor will not participate in the underwriting of the Bonds.  The financial information included in this Preliminary
Official Statement has been compiled by the Financial Advisor.  Such information does not purport to be a review,
audit or certified forecast of future events and may not conform with accounting principles applicable to compilations
of financial information.  Ehlers is not a firm of certified public accountants.  Ehlers is registered with the Securities
and Exchange Commission and the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board as a Municipal Advisor.

RISK FACTORS

Following is a description of possible risks to holders of these Bonds without weighting as to probability.  This
description of risks is not intended to be all-inclusive, and there may be other risks not now perceived or listed here.

Taxes:  The Bonds of this offering are general obligations of the City, the ultimate payment of which rests in the
City's ability to levy and collect sufficient taxes to pay debt service.

State Actions:  Many elements of local government finance, including the issuance of debt and the levy of property
taxes, are controlled by state government.  Past and future actions of the State may affect the overall financial
condition of the City, the taxable value of property within the City, and the ability of the City to levy property taxes.

Ratings; Interest Rates:  In the future, the City's credit rating may be reduced or withdrawn, or interest rates for this
type of obligation may rise generally, either possibility resulting in a reduction in the value of the Bonds for resale
prior to maturity.

Tax Exemption:  If the federal government taxes all or a portion of the interest on municipal bonds or notes or if
the state government increases its tax on interest on bonds and notes, directly or indirectly, or if there is a change in
federal or state tax policy, then the value of these Bonds may fall for purposes of resale.  Noncompliance by the City
with the covenants in the Award Resolution relating to certain continuing requirements of the Code may result in
inclusion of interest to be paid on the Bonds in gross income of the recipient for United States income tax purposes,
retroactive to the date of issuance.

Continuing Disclosure:  A failure by the City to comply with the Undertaking for continuing disclosure (see
"Continuing Disclosure") will not constitute an event of default on the Bonds.  Any such failure must be reported in
accordance with the Rule and must be considered by any broker, dealer, or municipal securities dealer before
recommending the purchase or sale of the Bonds in the secondary market.  Such a failure may adversely affect the
transferability and liquidity of the Bonds and their market price.

Book-Entry-Only System: The timely credit of payments for principal and interest on the Bonds to the accounts
of the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds may be delayed due to the customary practices, standing instructions or for
other unknown reasons by DTC participants or indirect participants.  Since the notice of redemption or other notices
to holders of these obligations will be delivered by the City to DTC only, there may be a delay or failure by DTC,
DTC participants or indirect participants to notify the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.
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Depository Risk:  Wisconsin Statutes direct the local treasurer to immediately deposit upon receipt thereof, the funds
of the municipality in a public depository designated by the governing body.  A public depository means a federal
or state credit union, federal or state savings and loan association, state bank, savings and trust company, mutual
savings bank or national bank in Wisconsin or the local government pooled investment fund operated by the state
investment board.  It is not uncommon for the municipality to have deposits exceeding limits of federal and state
insurance programs.  Failure of a depository could result in loss of public funds or a delay in obtaining them.  Such
a loss or delay could interrupt a timely payment of municipal debt.

Economy:  A combination of economic, climatic, political or civil disruptions or terrorist actions could affect the
local economy and result in reduced tax collections and/or increased demands upon local government.
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VALUATIONS

WISCONSIN PROPERTY VALUATIONS; PROPERTY TAXES

Equalized Value

Wisconsin Statutes, Section 70.57, requires the Department of Revenue to annually determine the equalized value
(also referred to as full equalized value or aggregate full value) of all taxable property in each county and taxation
district.  The equalized value is an independent estimate of value used to equate individual local assessment policies
so that property taxes are uniform throughout the various subdivisions in the State.  Equalized value is calculated
based on the history of comparable sales and information about value changes or taxing status provided by the local
assessor.  A comparison of the State-determined equalized value and the local assessed value, expressed as a
percentage, is known as the assessment ratio or level of assessment.  The Department of Revenue notifies each county
and taxing jurisdiction of its equalized value on August 15; school districts are notified on October 15.  The equalized
value of each county is the sum of the valuations of all cities, villages, and towns within its boundaries.  Taxing
jurisdictions lying in more than one municipality, such as counties, school districts, or special taxing districts, use
the equalized value of the underlying units in calculating and levying their respective levies.  Equalized values are
also used to apportion state aids and calculate municipal general obligation debt limits.

Assessed Value

The "assessed value" of taxable property in a municipality is determined by the local assessor, except for
manufacturing properties which are valued by the State.  Each city, village or town retains its own local assessor, who
must be certified by the State Department of Revenue.  Assessed value is used by these municipalities to determine
tax levy mill rates and to apportion levies among individual property owners.  Beginning in 1986, the State required
that the assessed values must be within 10% of State equalized values at least once every five years.  The local
assessor values property as of January 1 each year and submits those values to each municipality the second Monday
in May.  The assessor also reports any value changes taking place since the previous year, to the Department of
Revenue, by this same date.
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CURRENT PROPERTY VALUATIONS

Pierce 
County

St. Croix
County Total

2011 Equalized Value $ 536,442,700 $288,589,900 $ 825,032,600

2011 Equalized Value Reduced by Tax Increment Valuation 528,258,400 256,720,300 784,978,700

2011 Assessed Value 605,471,900 319,057,900 924,529,800

2011 EQUALIZED VALUE BY CLASSIFICATION

2011
Equalized Value

Percent of Total 
Equalized Value

Residential $ 609,121,200 73.830%

Commercial 173,863,300 21.074%

Manufacturing 23,585,500 2.859%

Agricultural 25,400 0.003%

Undeveloped 86,700 0.011%

Forest 190,000 0.023%

Personal Property 18,160,500 2.201%

Total $ 825,032,600 100.000%

TREND OF VALUATIONS

Year
Assessed

Value
Equalized

Value

Percent
Increase/Decrease
in Equalized Value

2007 $858,770,900 $834,151,100 3.36%

2008 888,991,800 869,671,600 4.26%

2009 903,748,700 852,887,300 -1.93%

2010 917,257,500 837,562,700 -1.80%

2011 924,529,800 825,032,600 -1.50%

Source: Wisconsin Department of Revenue, Bureau of Equalization.



1 Formerly listed as Comforts of Home.
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LARGER TAXPAYERS

Taxpayer Type of Business/Property
2011

Equalized Value

Percent of City's
Total Estimated
Equalized Value

Goldridge Group1 Senior Housing $ 8,948,300 1.08%

Martinsen Investment & Land Hotel/Restaurant 7,705,100 0.93%

Best Maid Cookies Cookie Manufacturing 4,442,900 0.54%

Wisota LLC (St. Croix County) Apartments 3,992,100 0.48%

Shopko Retail 3,809,100 0.46%

AIM2B Manufacturer 3,440,700 0.42%

Wisota (Pierce County) Housing 3,422,200 0.41%

Quadion Corporation Plastics Manufacturer 2,782,170 0.34%

Allina Corporation Hospital/Clinic 2,669,600 0.32%

Erickson Diversified Retail Mall 2,657,900   0.32%

Total $43,870,070 5.32%

City's Total 2011 Equalized Value $825,032,600



1 Outstanding debt is as of the dated date of the Bonds.
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DEBT

DIRECT DEBT1

General Obligation Debt (see schedules following)

Total General Obligation Debt (includes the Bonds of this offering) $17,928,076

OTHER DEBT1

Revenue Debt (see schedules following)

Total revenue debt secured by electric revenues $1,660,000

Total revenue debt secured by sewer revenues $3,155,558

Total revenue debt secured by water revenues $2,125,000

DEBT LIMIT

The constitutional and statutory general obligation debt limit for most Wisconsin municipalities, including towns,
cities, villages, and counties (Article XI, Section 3 of the Wisconsin Constitution and Section 67.03, Wisconsin
Statutes) is 5% of the current equalized value.

Equalized Value $ 825,032,600

Multiply by 5% 0.05  

Statutory Debt Limit $ 41,251,630

Less:  General Obligation Debt (17,928,076)

Unused Debt Limit $ 23,323,554
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1 Only those taxing jurisdictions with general obligation debt outstanding are included in this section.
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OVERLAPPING DEBT1

Taxing District

2011
Equalized

Value
% In 
City 

Total
G.O. Debt

City's
Proportionate

Share

Pierce County $ 2,826,286,000 18.9805% $ 3,830,000 $ 726,953

St. Croix County 7,335,670,300 3.9341% 6,155,000 242,144

School District of River Falls 1,685,583,264 48.9464% 33,420,000 16,357,887

Chippewa Valley Technical College District 20,768,940,568 3.9724% 21,020,000 834,998

City's Share of Total Overlapping Debt $18,161,982

DEBT RATIOS

G.O. Debt

Debt/Equalized
Value

$825,032,600

Debt/2011
Estimated
Population

15,038

Total General Obligation Debt $17,928,076 2.17% $1,192.18

City's Share of Total Overlapping Debt $18,161,982 2.20% $1,207.74

Total $36,090,058 4.37% $2,399.92

DEBT PAYMENT HISTORY

The City has never defaulted in the payment of principal and interest on its debt.

FUTURE FINANCING

The City reports no plans for additional financing in the next three months.
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TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Pierce County

Tax Year

Levy for City
Purposes Only

(Including TIF Levy)
%

Collected
Equalized 

Value

Levy/Equalized Value
in Dollars
per $1,000

2007/08 $2,856,328 100.00% $557,892,200 $5.12

2008/09 2,995,820 100.00% 577,459,900 5.19

2009/10 2,996,776 100.00% 561,700,800 5.34

2010/11 3,053,640 100.00% 545,150,700 5.60

2011/12 3,075,053 In Process 536,442,700 5.73

St. Croix County

Tax Year

Levy for City
Purposes Only

(Including TIF Levy)
%

Collected
Equalized 

Value

Levy/Equalized Value
in Dollars
per $1,000

2007/08 $1,414,683 100.00% $276,258,900 $5.12

2008/09 1,515,626 100.00% 292,211,700 5.19

2009/10 1,552,471 100.00% 291,186,500 5.33

2010/11 1,636,881 100.00% 292,412,000 5.60

2011/12 1,650,881 In Process 288,589,900 5.72

Property tax statements are distributed to taxpayers by the town, village, and city clerks in December of the levy year.
Current state law requires counties to pay 100% of the real property taxes levied to cities, villages, towns, school
districts and other taxing entities on or about August 20 of the collection year.

Personal property taxes, special assessments, special charges and special taxes must be paid to the town, city or village
treasurer in full by January 31, unless the municipality, by ordinance, permits special assessments to be paid in
installments.  Real property taxes must be paid in full by January 31 or in two equal installments by January 31 and July
31.  Alternatively, municipalities may adopt a payment plan which permits real property taxes to be paid in three or more
equal installments, provided that the first installment is paid by January 31, one-half of the taxes are paid by April 30 and
the remainder is paid by July 31.  Amounts paid on or before January 31 are paid to the town, city or village treasurer.
Amounts paid after January 31, are paid to the county treasurer unless the municipality has authorized payment in three
or more installments in which case payment is made to the town, city or village treasurer.  On or before January 15 and
February 20 the town, city or village treasurer settles with other taxing jurisdictions for all collections through December
and January, respectively.  In municipalities which have authorized the payment of real property taxes in three or more
installments, the town, city or village treasurer settles with the other taxing jurisdictions on January 15, February 20 and
on the fifteenth day of each month following the month in which an installment payment is required.  On or before August
20, the county treasurer must settle in full with the underlying taxing districts for all real property taxes and special taxes.
Any county board may authorize its county treasurer to also settle in full with the underlying taxing districts for all special
assessments and special charges.  The county may then recover any tax delinquencies by enforcing the lien on the property
and retain any penalties or interest on the delinquencies for which it has settled.  Uncollected personal property taxes owed
by an entity that has ceased operations or filed a petition for bankruptcy, or are due on personal property that has been
removed from the next assessment roll are collected from each taxing entity in the year following the levy year.



1 The Schools tax rate reflects the composite rate of all local school districts and technical college district.

2 Includes the state reforestation tax which is apportioned to each county on the basis of its full value.  Counties,
in turn, apportion the tax to the tax districts within their borders on the basis of full value.  It also includes any
tax increments and taxes levied for special purpose districts such as metropolitan sewerage districts, sanitary
districts, and public inland lake protection districts.

3 Property tax less state property tax credit (not including lottery credit).

4 The Schools tax rate reflects the composite rate of all local school districts and technical college district.

5 Includes the state reforestation tax which is apportioned to each county on the basis of its full value.  Counties,
in turn, apportion the tax to the tax districts within their borders on the basis of full value.  It also includes any
tax increments and taxes levied for special purpose districts such as metropolitan sewerage districts, sanitary
districts, and public inland lake protection districts.

6 Property tax less state property tax credit (not including lottery credit).
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PROPERTY TAX RATES

Full value rates for property taxes expressed in dollars per $1,000 of equalized value (excluding TIF) that have been
collected in recent years have been as follows:

Pierce County

Year Levied/
Year Collected Schools1 County Local Other2

Total Full Value
Effective Rate3

2007/08 $10.36 $4.37 $5.12 $0.17 $18.53

2008/09 10.04 4.33 5.19 0.17 18.15

2009/10 11.40 4.74 5.34 0.19 20.07

2010/11 12.16 5.18 5.60 0.51 21.49

2011/12 12.62 5.50 5.75 0.54 22.38

St. Croix County

Year Levied/
Year Collected Schools4 County Local Other5

Total Full Value
Effective Rate6

2007/08 $10.36 $2.97 $5.12 $2.01 $17.39

2008/09 10.04 2.96 5.19 2.16 16.99

2009/10 11.40 3.27 5.33 2.90 18.81

2010/11 12.16 3.53 5.60 3.17 20.09

2011/12 12.62 3.70 5.72 2.93 20.80

Source: Property Tax Rates were extracted from bulletins prepared by the Wisconsin Department of Revenue,
Division of State and Local Finance.
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LEVY LIMITS

Section 66.0602 of the Wisconsin Statutes, as recently amended by 2011 Wisconsin Act 32, imposes a limit on
property tax levies by cities, villages, towns and counties.  No city, village, town or county is permitted to increase
its tax levy by a percentage that exceeds its valuation factor (which is defined as a percentage equal to the greater
of the percentage change in the political subdivision's January 1 equalized value due to new construction less
improvements removed or zero percent).  The base amount in any year to which the levy limit applies is the actual
levy for the immediately preceding year.  This levy limitation is an overall limit, applying to levies for operations
as well as for other purposes.

A political subdivision that did not levy its full allowable levy in the prior year can carry forward the difference
between the allowable levy and the actual levy, up to a maximum of 0.5% of the prior year's actual levy.  In addition,
for property tax levies imposed in 2011 and 2012, the use of the carry forward levy adjustment needs to be approved
by a super majority vote of the political subdivision's governing body (three-quarters vote if the governing body is
comprised of five or more members, two-thirds vote if the governing body is comprised of fewer than five members,
and for towns, a majority vote of the annual town meeting or special town meeting after the town board has adopted
a resolution in favor of the adjustment by two-thirds vote or more).  

Special provisions are made with respect to property taxes levied to pay general obligation debt service.  Those are
described below.  In addition, the statute provides for certain other exclusions from and adjustments to the tax levy
limit.  Among the items excluded from the limit are amounts levied for any revenue shortfall for debt service on a
revenue bond issued under Section 66.0621.  Among the adjustments permitted is an adjustment applicable when a
tax increment district terminates, which allows an amount equal to the prior year's allowable levy multiplied by 50%
of the political subdivision's percentage growth due to the district's termination.

With respect to general obligation debt service, the following provisions are made:  

(a)  If a political subdivision's levy for the payment of general obligation debt service, including debt service on debt
issued or reissued to fund or refund outstanding obligations of the political subdivision and interest on outstanding
obligations of the political subdivision, on debt originally issued before July 1, 2005, is less in the current year than
in the previous year, the political subdivision is required to reduce its levy limit in the current year by the amount of
the difference between the previous year's levy and the current year's levy.  Under the Act, this required adjustment
is suspended for property tax levies that will be imposed in 2011 for political subdivisions that did not claim the carry
forward adjustment described above.

(b)  For obligations authorized before July 1, 2005, if the amount of debt service in the preceding year is less than
the amount of debt service needed in the current year, the levy limit is increased by the difference between the two
amounts.  This adjustment is based on scheduled debt service rather than the amount actually levied for debt service
(after taking into account offsetting revenues such as sales tax revenues, special assessments, utility revenues, tax
increment revenues or surplus funds).  Therefore, the levy limit could negatively impact political subdivisions that
experience a reduction in offsetting revenues.  

(c)  The levy limits do not apply to property taxes levied to pay debt service on general obligation debt authorized
on or after July 1, 2005.

The Obligations were authorized after July 1, 2005.
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THE ISSUER

CITY GOVERNMENT

The City was incorporated in 1885 and is governed by a Mayor and a seven-member Common Council.  The Mayor
does not vote except in the case of a tie.  All Council Members are elected to two-year terms.  The appointed City
Administrator, City Clerk, and Assistant Administrator/Finance Director/Treasurer  are responsible for administrative
details and financial records.

EMPLOYEES; PENSIONS

The City has 84 full-time, 22 part-time and 10 seasonal employees.  The City is a participant in the Wisconsin
Retirement System (WRS) covering all protective employees on a non-contributory basis.  The annual employer's
contribution rate, which is actuarially determined by the State, covers only current expenses.  The City has no
outstanding prior costs. See the Notes to Financial Statements in Appendix A for a detailed description of the plan.

Recognized and Certified Bargaining Units

Bargaining Unit
Expiration Date of 
Current Contract

AFSCME December 31, 2012

CWA - Electrical Utility - Power Plant December 31, 2012

Police Association December 31, 2012

CWA - All other units December 31, 2012

LIABILITIES FOR OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The City has obligations for some post-employment benefits (some mandated by State Statute and others that cover
a portion of the cost of health insurance during retirement) for the majority of its employees.  Accounting for these
obligations is dictated by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 45 (GASB 45).  The City has
completed an actuarial study of its obligations.  The study shows an actuarial accrued liability of $1,840,339 with
a discount rate of 4.5% as of December 31, 2010. 

LITIGATION

There is no litigation threatened or pending questioning the organization or boundaries of the City or the right of any
of its officers to their respective offices or in any manner questioning their rights and power to execute and deliver
these Bonds or otherwise questioning the validity of these Bonds.
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FUNDS ON HAND (as of June 30, 2012)

Fund
Total Cash

and Investments

General $ 4,438,614

Special Revenue 3,543,385

Debt Service 568,039

Capital Projects 679,446

Enterprise (Ambulance and Storm Water) 485,455

Enterprise (Utility) 4,309,880

Tax Agency Fund 52,138

Total Funds on Hand $ 14,076,957

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Cash flows for the City's enterprise funds have been as follows as of December 31 each year:

Electric 2009 2010 2011

Total Operating Revenues $12,413,932 $13,681,321 $13,580,863

Less: Operating Expenses (11,677,224) (12,798,687) (12,746,650)

Operating Income $ 736,708 $ 882,634 $ 834,213

Plus: Depreciation 978,066 973,038 970,401

Interest Income 58,466 47,925 26,423

Revenues Available for Debt Service $ 1,773,240 $ 1,903,597 $ 1,831,037

Water

Total Operating Revenues $ 1,454,817 $ 1,451,204 $ 1,471,449

Less: Operating Expenses (1,015,419) (1,036,814) (1,064,292)

Operating Income $ 439,398 $ 414,390 $ 407,157

Plus: Depreciation 280,477 279,718 271,978

Interest Income 8,881 3,959 5,920

Revenues Available for Debt Service $ 728,756 $ 698,067 $ 685,055

Sewer

Total Operating Revenues $ 2,493,135 $ 2,784,541 $ 2,809,684

Less: Operating Expenses (2,180,266) (2,141,355) (2,114,282)

Operating Income $ 312,869 $ 643,186 $ 695,402

Plus: Depreciation 520,012 527,675 533,679

Interest Income 61,842 48,335 26,088

Revenues Available for Debt Service $ 894,723 $ 1,219,196 $ 1,255,169
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SUMMARY GENERAL FUND INFORMATION

Following are summaries of the revenues and expenditures and fund balances for the City's General Fund for the fiscal
years shown below.  These summaries are not purported to be the complete audited financial statements of the City.  Copies of
the complete audited financial statements are available upon request.  See Appendix A for excerpts from the City's 2011 audited
financial statement. 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31
COMBINED STATEMENT 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
REVENUES

Taxes $ 2,150,154 $ 2,255,895 $ 2,623,395 $ 2,678,830 $ 2,605,307
Special assessments 3,829 4,222 1,533 4,433 3,838
Intergovernmental 3,208,671 3,165,992 3,163,062 3,082,793 3,312,865
Licenses and permits 290,086 219,982 200,193 151,596 128,784
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 211,238 199,240 197,020 204,916 186,942
Public charges for services 298,227 256,788 279,874 257,127 228,895
Intergovernmental charges for services 0 31,437 26,541 20,698 14,641
Investment income 262,651 239,343 80,765 163,710 191,541
Miscellaneous 108,046 115,519 152,663 298,745 297,673

Total Revenues $ 6,532,902 $ 6,488,418 $ 6,725,046 $ 6,862,848 $ 6,970,486

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government $ 1,263,450 $ 1,329,494 $ 1,326,807 $ 1,180,987 $ 1,330,341
Public safety 2,715,421 2,805,848 2,903,941 2,929,668 3,086,658
Public works 1,784,633 1,984,823 1,885,380 1,926,496 1,664,438
Health services 7,164 5,249 7,199 10,262 10,172
Leisure 514,255 577,537 570,044 580,005 549,740
Conservation and development 546,230 560,261 574,595 493,827 506,110
Public service enterprises 3,120 2,113 2,679 2,435 2,127

Debt Service 182,856 180,754 168,078 152,802 155,486
Total Expenditures $ 7,017,129 $ 7,446,079 $ 7,438,723 $ 7,276,482 $ 7,305,072

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures $ (484,227) $ (957,661) $ (713,677) $ (413,634) $ (334,586)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Long-term debt issued 602,439 0 0 0 0
Current refunding of debt (577,736) 0 0 0 0
Sale of capital assets 868 0 0 0 0
Transfers from other funds 817,605 1,092,074 968,842 1,245,645 1,455,562
Transfers to other funds (121,546) (178,196) (147,161) (608,910) (731,029)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 721,630 $ 913,878 $ 821,681 $ 636,735 $ 724,533

Excess of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other
financing uses

$ 237,403 $ (43,783) $ 108,004 $ 223,101 $ 389,947

General Fund Balance January 1 5,447,942 5,685,345 5,641,562 5,749,566 5,972,667

General Fund Balance December 31 $ 5,685,345 $ 5,641,562 $ 5,749,566 $ 5,972,667 $ 6,362,614

DETAILS OF DECEMBER 31 FUND BALANCE
Reserved $ 1,210,758 $ 1,441,459 $ 2,199,302 $ 2,290,866 $ 0
Unreserved:

Designated 265,000 842,092 0 0 0
Undesignated 4,209,587 3,358,011 3,550,264 3,681,801 0

Nonspendable 0 0 0 0 1,362,626
Unassigned 0 0 0 0 4,999,988
Total $ 5,685,345 $ 5,641,562 $ 5,749,566 $ 5,972,667 $ 6,362,614



1 Includes full-time, part-time, and seasonal employees.

2 Minnesota Management & Budget, Workforce Report 2010.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

LOCATION

The City of River Falls, with a 2010 U.S. Census population of 15,000 and a 2011 population estimate of 15,038,
comprises an area of 6.56 square miles is located approximately 30 miles east of the Minneapolis-St. Paul
Metropolitan area.  For additional information regarding the City, please visit their website at www.rfcity.org.

LARGER EMPLOYERS 

Larger employers in the City include the following:

Firm Type of Business/Product
Estimated No.
of Employees1

University of Wisconsin - River Falls Post-secondary education 756

School District of River Falls Elementary and secondary education 455

River Falls Area Hospital Hospital 265

EconoFoods Grocery store 130

City of River Falls Municipal government and services 116

River Falls Medical Clinic Medical clinic 115

Sajan Inc. Software 112

Biodiagnostics, Inc. Seed testing and research 110

Lutheran Home - River Falls Nursing home 100

ShopKo Retail store 100

The City  located within the Minneapolis-St. Paul-Bloomington, MN-WI Metropolitan Statistical Area (the
"MSA").  Larger employers in the MSA include the following:

Firm Type of Business/Product
Estimated No.
of Employees

Allina Hospitals & Clinics Healthcare 28,898
State of Minnesota State government and services 21,656

2

Target Corporation Corporate headquarters and retail stores 18,170

Fairview Hospitals & Clinics Healthcare 17,064

University of Minnesota - Twin Cities Schools-Universities & Colleges Academic 17,053

Park Nicollet Hospitals & Clinics Healthcare 14,300

3M Manufacturers, distributors and ind. products 12,000

West Thomson Reuters Legal research 7,500

Ameriprise Financial Financial advisory services 7,000

Best Buy, Inc. Electronics equipment and service 6,001

Source: Infogroup (www.salesgenie.com), written and telephone survey (February 2012), and the Minnesota
Department of Employment and Economic Development.



1 Non-farm wage and salary employment.

2 As of June 30, 2012.
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Employment by market sector in the MSA:

Employment Sector
% of Market Sector

within the MSA

Mining, Logging & Construction 3.72%

Manufacturing 11.35%

Trade, Transportation & Utilities 18.30%

Information 1.97%

Financial Activities 6.53%

Professional & Business Services 12.62%

Education and Health Services 17.65%

Leisure and Hospitality 8.44%

Other Services 4.32%

Government   15.10%

Total1 100.00%

Source:  U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics (June 2012).

BUILDING PERMITS

2008 2009 2010 2011 20122

New Single Family Homes

No. of building permits 37 41 49 17 12

Valuation $5,048,943 $5,935,520 $7,275,666 $2,485,000 $1,606,000

New Multiple Family Buildings

No. of building permits 3 3 4 2 1

Valuation $3,584,578 $1,155,000 $2,965,000 $2,175,000 $156,600

New Commercial/Industrial Buildings

No. of building permits 5 0 2 3 0

Valuation $14,304,000 $0 $1,675,000 $1,925,000 $0

No. of All Building Permits
(including additions and remodelings)

495 448 306 187 85

Valuation of All Building Permits
(including additions and remodelings)

$26,812,848 $10,764,258 $14,734,020 $11,767,697 $4,920,314



1 Source: Wisconsin Department of Administration.
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U.S. CENSUS DATA

Population Trend: City of River Falls

2000 U.S. Census 12,560

2010 U.S. Census 15,000

2011 Population Estimate1 15,038

Percent of Change 2000 - 2010 + 19.43%

Income and Age Statistics 

City of
River Falls

Pierce
County

St. Croix
County

State of
Wisconsin

United
States

1999 per capita income $17,667 $20,172 $23,937 $21,271 $21,587

1999 median household income $41,184 $49,551 $54,930 $43,791 $41,994

1999 median family income $60,253 $58,121 $63,816 $52,911 $50,046

2000 median gross rent $565 $542 $587 $540 $602

2000 median value owner occupied housing $127,000 $123,100 $139,500 $112,200 $119,600

2000 median age 23.6 yrs. 32.1 yrs. 35.0 yrs. 36.0 yrs. 53.3 yrs.

State of Wisconsin United States

City % of per capita income 83.06% 81.84%

City % of median family income 113.88% 120.40%

Housing Statistics

City of River Falls

2000 2010 Percent of Change

All Housing Units 4,349 5,449 25.29%

Source: 2000 and 2010 Census of Population and Housing.

EMPLOYMENT/UNEMPLOYMENT DATA

Rates are not compiled for individual communities with populations under 25,000.

           Average Employment                 Average Unemployment

Year
Pierce
County

St. Croix
County

Pierce
County

St. Croix
County

State of
Wisconsin

2008 22,976 45,401 4.3% 4.4% 4.8%

2009 21,771 43,657 7.7% 8.2% 8.7%

2010 22,085 43,789 6.8% 7.3% 8.5%

2011 22,420 44,453 5.8% 5.9% 7.5%

2012, May 22,820 45,247 4.7% 4.9% 6.8%

Source:  Wisconsin Department of Workforce Development.
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APPENDIX A

EXCERPTS FROM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reproduced on the following pages are excerpts from the City's audited Financial Statements for the fiscal year
ending December 31, 2011.  The Financial Statements have been prepared by the City and audited by a certified
public accountant.  The Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the Notes to Financial Statements are an integral
part of the audit and any judgment of the Financial Statements should be based on the Financial Statements as a
whole.

Copies of the complete audited financial statements for the past three years and the current budget are available upon
request from Ehlers.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the City Council
City of River Falls
River Falls, Wisconsin

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate rema¡ning fund
information of the City of River Falls, Wisconsin as of and for the year ended December 31,2011, which
collectively comprise the city's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the city's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based upon our audit. We did not audit the limited liability corporation (LLC) presented as a
component unit of the City of River Falls Housing Authority (HA). The LLC of the HA represents
51 percent, 6'l percent and 19 percent, respectively of the assets, net assets, and operating revenues of
combined HA component units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon
has been furnished to us, and our opinion insofar as it relates to amounts included for the LLC, is based on the
report of the other auditors. The prior year comparative information has been derived from the city's 2010
financialstatements and, in our reportdated July 12,201'1, we expressed unqualified opinions on the respective
financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented

component units, each majorfund, and the aggregate remaining fund information.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable
basis for our opinions.

ln our opinion, based on the our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
business{ype activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of River Falls, Wisconsin as of December 31,2011, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

During the year ended June 30, 201 1, the Housing Authority changed its financial reporting to present the
component unit, Windmill Place, LLC, as a discretely presented component unit rather than a blended
component unit. Accounting policies are fudher discussed in Note l.l to the financial statements.

tu;¿ti,.+;.i,i;
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To the City Council
River Falls, Wisconsin

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances - budget and

actual- generalfund, and the schedule of funding progress for retirees'health plan as listed in the table of
contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the GovernmentalAccounting Standards Board who considers it to be

an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economical, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparíng the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and

other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of River Falls' basic financial statements. The detailed budgetary comparison schedules,
combining financial statements, and component unit financial statements as listed in the table of contents are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such

information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to

the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, ln our
opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken
as a whole.

-J JrL,o ;2f
July 9,2012
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Notes to the Financial Statements: The notes provide additional information that is essential to
a full understanding of the information provided in the government-wide and fund financial
statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 15 - 73 of this report.

Other Information: In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this
report also presents certain required supplementary information containing general fund
budgetary comparison information and supplementary information that includes additional
information for non-major governmental funds. Required supplementary information can be
found on pages 74 - l6 of this report; supplementary information can be found on pages 77 - 93

of this report.

GOVERNMENT.WIDE FINANICIAL ANALYSß

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial
position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $91,770,053, at the close of the
f,rscal year ending December 31,2011. This is an increase in net assets of $3,350,792 over the
previous fiscal year. Approximately $1.5 million of this increase is due to operating surpluses
and capital contributions to the city's enterprise funds.

Statement of Net Assets

Current and other assets

Capital assets
Total assets

Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets:
Invested in capital, net of
related debt
Restricted net assets
Unrestricted net assets

Total net assets

Governmental Activities
20tt 2010

20,855,230 15,534,100
47.338.094 4s.606.547
68,t93,324 6r,r40,64',7

Business-t1rpe Activities
20rt 2010

15,009,602 12,t43,262
s2.410.937 53.086.888
67,480,s39 6s,230,t50

Total
20lt 2010

35,864,832 27,671,362
99.809.031 98.693.435

t35,613,863 126,310,797

t1,445\194
14.628. 1 I 8

26,073,912

1,160,683
13.108.584
20,869,261

3,666,668
14.163.230
11,829,898

2,4l0,olo
14.672.259
11,082,269

15,112,462
28.19r.348
43,903,810

10,110,693
27.180.843
37,95t,536

Total net assets as aYo of
total liabilities

t62% t93% 278% 282% 209% 233%

Unrestricted net assets as

a o/o of total liabilities
t0% 20% 42% 33% 23% 26%

The largest portion of the City's net assets (83%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g.

land and easements, structures and improvements, infrastructure and equipment, less any related
debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding). The City uses these capital assets to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be

noted the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources since the

capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
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Unrestricted net assets comprise Il%o of the City's net assets, an increase of $441,599 from the

previous year. Unrestricted assets may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens
and creditors. Approximately 73o/o of the total unrestricted assets are related to business-type
activities, and as such, are generally not available to fund governmental operations.

The remaining balance of the City's net assets (6%), represent resources that are subject to
internal or external restrictions on how they may be used.

The table below and the narrative that follows consider the operations of governmental and

business-type activities separately.

Statement of Activities
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities

20tt 2010 20tt 2010
Total

Revenues:
Program revenues

Charges for Services
Operating grants and

contributions
Capital grants and

contributions
General revenues:

Property taxes
Other taxes
Intergovernmental

Revenues
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenses:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health services
Leisure
Conservation and
development
Interest and fiscal charges
Electric utility
Water utility
Sewer utility
Storm water Utility
Ambulance Service

Total expenses

Change in net assets

before transfers
Special items
Transfers
Increase in net assets

Net assets l/l/11
Net assets l2/31/ll

$ 1,048,194

1,609,985

r,145,335

5,390,098
ts3,624

2,208,836

228,480
319.38t

12,163,933

1,591,090
3,394,113
2,489,897

12,298
2,092,169

922,881

618,506

$ 1,161,978

1,448,716

313,241

5,086,684
r23,646

2,182,163

216,934
2s6.897

10,790,859

1,491,940
3,229,989
3,023,988

12,697
2,041,930

635,011

642,726

$r9,184,072

6,156

156,958

12,473,346
l,0g2,2gg
2,513,653

369,106
766.139

ll ,215,142

2,313,818

s19,114,406

I,ZJ5

321,165

tt7,384
86.966

19,101,154

12,922,291
1,075,819
2,548,893

378,019
7s8.804

t1,683,832

2,023,322

20tt

s20,232,266

l,616,r4l

1,302,293

2010

s20,336,384

t,455,949

634,406

5,390,098
I53,624

2,208,836

30s,123
484.572

31,692,953

5,086,684
123,646

2,182,163

334,318
343.863

30,498,013

1,597,090
3,394,n3
2,489,897

t2,298
2,092,168

922,881

618,506
t2,413,346

1,092,298
2,513,653

369,106
766.139

28,342,161

3,350,792

1,491 ,940
3,229,989
3,023988

12,691
2,047,930

635,071

642,726
t2,922,291

1,075,819
2,548,893

378,019
758.804

28,114,173

1,723,840

ll,l2l,0l9
r,036,914

I1,090,341

(299,482)
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Governmental Activities :

Revenues for the City's governmental activities including transfers from other funds totaled
$13.0 million, with property taxes accounting for 42%o of the total. Intergovernmental revenues
include $2.2 million in state shared revenue and grants, or l7o/o of annual revenues. Charges for
services make up 8%o of total revenues and include solid waste and environmental fees, as well as

permits, licenses and miscellaneous fees.

Governmental activities expenses totaled $11.1 million, with public safety ($3,394,173), public
works ($2,489,897), and leisure services ($2,092,168) accounting for 72o/o of the expenses. The
following graph displays the governmental activities expenses in comparison to program
revenues. When all sources of revenue are combined, such as property tax, investment earnings,
including transfers, grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs are included, total
revenues exceeded expenditures by $ 1,84 8,032.

lProgram
Revenues

trExpenses

3,000,000

2,000,000

1,o0o,ooo

4,000,000

Governmental Activities
Expenses and Program Revenues

+ls sS
{o.oç op**
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Business-Type Activities:

Business-type activities increased the City's net assets by $1,502,760. Due to the enterprise
nature ofthese activities, over 98Yo ofannual revenues are generated by charges for services.

Key elements of the business-type activities in2011 are as follows:

Electric

In2011, the City accepted a financial buyout package from its power supply contractor
ending a long-term agreement that provided electric generation capacity revenue. An
analysis was completed regarding the future of the City's power plant without these

revenues, including the effect on long term rates and the need to generate locally if
necessary. River Falls is served by three major transmission sources, minimizing the

need to generate should any one source be unavailable, which is advantageous to the

community and negates the need for maintaining the power plant for this purpose.

Through the City's affiliation with WPPI, and their investment in generation assets, the

long-term outlook for wholesale rates are expected to be competitive with other sources.

V/ith these factors, the decision was made to decommission the plant at the end of 201 1.

The electric utility's net assets increased 9703,874 or 4.7 percent from the prior year.

This increase is $342,251 higher than last year due to adjustments made as a result of a
buyout of the generating capacity agreement with WPPI. Unrestricted net assets grew

by $1,600,411 with the future payments from W?PI included as a receivable.
The electric utility's operating income decreased by S 48,421 or 5.5 percent in 2011

compared to 2010. Operating revenues excluding sales for resale, were three percent

higher in2011, due to increased power supply costs, which are passed on to the

consumer. Revenue from sales for resale which accounted for seven percent of
operating revenues in 2010, will no longer be available due to the power plant closure.

A year over year reduction of 44 percent in operating expenses related to the power plant
was realized in 2011.
Electric utility net capital assets decreased 52,149,649 as a result of retiring the power
plant operations. Capital assets net of related debt were reduced by $875,730 at the end

of201 1.

Water

The water utility's net assets increased 5148,269 or 1.13 percent in 2011. In
comparison, the water utility's net assets increased by 5226,776 in2010, with the

difference largely due to lower capital contribution revenue in 2011.
Operating revenues for the utility increased 520,245 or 1.40 percent in2011 compared to
2010. Approximately 61 percent of this increase is related to additional metered water
sales, with the remaining increase from public f,tre protection charges. The water utility's
operating expenses increased 527,418 or 2.6 percent in20I1 compared to 2010. This
increase was largely due to costs related to the water rate study.

I
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Sewer

Net capital assets increased by $2,015,628 from the improvements made to Well Number
6 and the North booster station projects. Net capital assets net of related debt increased

by 5490,779.

The sewer utility's net assets increased $409,106 or 3.0 percent in20l1. This was a 14.7

percent reduction in the change in net assets from 2010 due to lower capital contribution
revenue.
Operating income for the sewer utility increased 552,216 or 8.1 percent in 201 1 as

compared to 2010. Increased residential sewer usage and reduced costs for the collection
system comprised the majority of this increase.
The net capital assets of the sewer fund decreased by $417,018 due to annual
depreciation expense.

I

Storm Water

Ambulance

a The storm water utility fund net assets increased S7I,715 or l.3o/o from the prior year.

Net operating income increased by 5% from 2010, due to expenses less than anticipated
Additionally, costs related to the Cascade Avenue reconstruction project will not be

realizeduntlI2012.

o The ambulance services net assets increased by $169,797 or 16.1% due a service rate

increase implemented in May, 2010. This resulted in an increase of 8.7o/o in operating
revenues, with expenses held to a lo/o increase.

Business-Type Activities Expenses

I Program Revenues

tr Expenses

I-
Gr

16,000,000
14,000,000
12,000,000
10,000,000
8,000,000
6,000,000
4,000,000
2,000,000
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City of River Falls uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate

compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

As the City completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of
59,293,9I5; an increase of $1,824,618 from 20L0. Approximately 30o/o or $2,775,203 of the

combined fund balance constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available to meet the
City's current and future needs. An additional$142,057 is committed for special revenue and

capitalproject funds.

The remaining fund balance is nonspendable and restricted and therefore not available for new

spending. Funds are committed for the following: 1) prepaid expenses of $105,958;2) Io reflect
the amount due from other funds that are long term in nature and do not represent spendable

resources of 5I,269,100; and 3) for special purpose funds such as impact fees, library and

housing, or debt service notes of $4,400,997.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The 201 1 budget was adopted at the function level of expenditures. During the year, the budget

was amended to account for cost savings and increased transfers to other funds for def,rcit

reduction and debt repayment. General fund revenues exceeded expenditures by 5389,947 after
these additional transfers were made.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities at

December 3L,2011, amounted to $99.8 million (net of accumulated depreciation), an increase of
l.2o/o over 2010. The investment in capital assets includes land and easements, infrastructure,
structures and improvements, equipment, and construction in progress.

ln accordance with the implementation of GASB No. 34, the City has recorded historical costs

and depreciation expense associated with all of its capital assets, including infrastructure. The

City has elected to use the straight-line depreciation method of reporting capital assets.

Further details of the City's capital assets can be found on page 36 in the notes to the financial
statements.

Long-term Debt

At December 31, 20II, the City had $15,982,808 of general obligation bonds and promissory

notes outstanding. Of this amount, 52,686,582, or 16.8o/o will be paid from business-type
activity revenues. The City maintains an Aa2 rating from Moody's Investor Service on general

obligation issues. Under current state statutes, the City's general obligation indebtedness may

not exceed five percent (5%) of the equalized value of taxable property in the City. As of
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December 3I,2011, the City's total amount applicable to debt margin (outstanding notes less

debt service fund balance) was $15,982,808 or 38.1o/o of the legal limit of $41,25I,630. The net
debt per capita equaled $ 1,063 at year-end.

Further details of the City's long-term debt activity can be found in the notes to the financial
statements within Note III section F.

Economic Factors and the 20128úget and Rates

The 2012 budget was approved in November 201 1 , with a levy increase of $5 1 ,087 , or I .lYo.
Additional allocations to other funds and diversified revenues were proposed to reduce the
reliance on property tax revenues. The 2012 general fund budget does not include the use of
fund balance. It is anticipated that increased revenues and additional cost savings in operations
will result in a secure year end financial condition.

Water and Sewer utility will implement new rates effective April 13,2012. This change results
in annual water revenues increasing 3o/o or approximately $42,000 per year. The sewer rates will
increase by an average 8.35% for approximately $234,000 additional revenue per year.

Reductions in value due to economic conditions caused a decrease of l.5o/o in the City's 2011

equalized values. Residential and commercial properties were the most affected by the change.

Manufacturing added $3,468,600 in increased equalized value in20l1, with a citywide increase

in net new construction of $ 13.3 million.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances and to
demonstrate the City's accountability for the money it receives. Questions conceming any of the

information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be

addressed to the City of River Falls, Finance Director, 222Lewis Street, River Falls, Wl 54022.
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CITY OF RIVER FALLS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
As ofDecember31,2011

(With Comparative Totals - Primary Government for December 31 , 2010)

Pr¡marv Component Unils

Governmental
Activities

Business-
TYPe

Activities
Housing
Authority

$ 439,793

19,400

Business
lmprovement

D¡strict

Totals
2011 2010

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable (net)
Special assessments receivable
lnterest receivable
Notes receivable
Prepaid items and inventories
Due from other governments
Other receivables
Restricted cash and investments
Restricted receivable
Other investments
Debt issuance costs
Capital Assets

Land
Construction in progress
Other capital assets, net of depreciat¡on

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabil¡t¡es
Accrued interest
Deposils
Unearned revenues
Customer advances for construction
Due to other governments
Other liabilities
Unamortized gain on early retirement
Noncurrent liabilities

Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for

Debt service
Capital asset repair and replacement
lmpact fees
Library trust
Housing
Parking meters
Refuse/solid waste
Environmental fee
Library

Unrestricted

68j93,324 67,480,539 135,673,863

$ 22,111

42,178

22,628

11,587
563,765

44,942

751 ,516
47,942

4,583,038

6,484,6'1 1 64,289

$ 11,265,227
5,420,348
3,420,169

159,866
17,296

343,838
113,910
53,383

61 't 93

$ 5,982,616

1,621 ,290
12,257

95,122
363,1 60

$ 17,247,843 $
5,420,348
5,041,459

172,123
17,296

438,960
477,070

53,383
3,207,532
3,383,421

66,556
3't , 

'1 80
307,661

13,268,80'l
3,428,821

83,.1 11,409

14,001 ,200
5,430,968
2,215,626

178,498
26,150

358,733
475,178

50,1 36
1s1 ,317

3,645,017
67,972

793,968
282,s99

3,207,532
3,383.421

66,556
31 ,180

246,468

12,909,634
614,384

33,814,076

359,1 67
2,814,437

49,297,333

11,044,824
706,877

86,941 ,734
126,370,797

396,528
245,596
201,038

39,1 00
10,323,532

240,000

1,211,944
13,416,'t74

1 ,026,6'10

2,571,622
1't,591,608

1,906,223
518,067
330,049
118,647

10,416,947
555,919

240,000
1 ,026,6 10

3,783,566
25,007,782

3,042,278
24,738,565

2,758
33,672

22,895

39,645
62,657

31,019
3,810,566

4,003,212

1,509,695
272,471
129,011
79,547
93,415

555,919

1 ,625,761
621 ,210
321 ,474

91,589
7 ,O34,597

476,062

26 073 912 17,829,898 43,903,810 37,951,53ô

35,073,377 41 ,110,284 76,183,661 76,524,040 1,561 ,044

267,952
114,684
670,144
174,883
292p52

2,618,672
184,530

2,722,218

716,905
110,372
228.741

7,484,339

716,905
110,372
496,693
114,684
670,144
174,883
292,952

2,618,672
184,530

10,206,557

685,993
75,255

585,619
112,870
670,526

t6+I

332,298

958 588 057 64 289

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 42, 119,412 $ 49,650,641 $ 91,770,053 $ 88,419,261 $ ?,48a199 $___ry?gq
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CITY OF RIVER FALLS

SÏATEMENT OF ACTIVITI ES
For the Year Ended December 31,2011

(With Comparative Totals - Primary Government for the Year Ended December 31, 2010)

Proqram Revenues

Expenses
Charges for

Services

Operating Capital

Grants and Grants and
Contributions ContributionsFunctions/Proqrams

Primary Government
Governmental Activities
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health services
Leisure
Conservation and development
lnterest and fiscal charges

Total Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities
Electric Utility
Water Utility
Sewer Utility
Stormwater Utility
Ambulance

Total Business-type Activities

Total Primary Government

Component Units

River Falls Housing Authority
Business lmprovement District

Total Component Units

$ 1,597,090 $
3,394,173
2,489,897

12,298
2,092,168

922,887
618,506

237,195 $
237,018

88,423

$

1,144,585

750

590,830
665.133

391,105
94,453

354,022

11,127,019 1 ,609,985 1 ,145,335

12,473,346
1,092,298
2,513,653

369,1 06
766,739

13,580,863
1,471,449
2 809,684

504,265
817,811

56,287
31,069
69,602

6,1 56

17,21s,142 '19 184 072 o 156 156,958

$ 28,342,161 $ 20,232,266 $ 1,616,141 $ 1,302,293

$ 2,013,344
57,830

$ 895,475 $ 77s,654 $ 398,413
42 594

g 2,071,174 $ 938,069 $ 775,694 $ 398 413

General Revenues
Taxes

Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Property taxes, levied for debt service
Property taxes, levied for tax increment districts
Other taxes

lntergovernmental revenues not restricted to specific programs
lnvestment income
Miscellaneous

Transfers

Total General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Assets

NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR
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Net (Expenses) Revenues and
Changes in Net Assets

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

Housing
Authority

Business

lmprovement
District

Totals

Primary Government

2011 2010

$ (1,35e,8e5) $
(2,566,325)

(s91,756)
(12,2e8)

(1,346,291)
(828,434)
(618,506)

$ (1,359,8e5) $
(2,566,325)

(5e1,756)
(12,298)

(1,346,2e1)
(828,434)
(618,506)

(1,215,343) $
(2,582,261)
(1 ,B64,821)

(12,6e7)
(1 ,310,435)

(538,1 23)

ü

726)
(7,323,505\ (7,323,505) (8,166,406)

1 163,804
410,220
365,633
1 35,1 59
57,228

1,163,804
410,220
365,633
1 35,1 59
57,228

776,930
479,572
415,376
146,06'l

0331

2,132,044 2 132,044 1,818,972

(7,323,s05) 2]32p44 (5,191,461) (6,347,434)

56,238
(1 s 236)

56,238 (15 236)

3,537,403
914,294
938,401
153,624

2,208,836
228,480
379,381

3,537 403
914,294
938,40'1
153,624

2,208,836
305,1 23
484,572

8'11 118

76,643
105,191

(811,118)

3,446,693
917,255
722,736
123,646

2,182,763
334,318
343,863

2,565

9,171,537

1,848,032

40,271,380

(62s,284)

1,502,760

8,542,253

3 350,792

88,419,261

8,071,274

1,723,840

86,695,421

2,565

58,803 (1 s 236)

48 147 881 2 596 79 525

$ q2J19,412 $ 49,650,641 $ 91,770,053 $ 88,419,261 $ 2,481 ,399 $ 64,289
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CITY OF RIVER FALLS

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
As of December 31, 201 1

General
Fund

General
Capital
Proiects

Other
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Receivables

Taxes
Accounts
Special assessments
I nterest
Notes

Prepaid items
Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Advances to other funds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deposits
Deferred revenues
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Advances from other funds

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Unassigned (deficit)

Total Fund Balances

$ 5,333,475 $ 2,118,201 $ 3,813,542 $ 11,265,218

2,642,874
146,813
128,348

12,877

92,926
29,290
38,987

1,269,700

50,o22
3,109,426

31,518

2,727,452
125,434

5,420,348
3 381,673

159,866
17,296

343,838
105,958
53,383
64,793

4,419
343,838

13,032
24,093
25,806

1,112,131 2,38 1,831

$ 9,695,290 $ 5,309,167 $ 8,'189,747 $ 23.194.204

$ 192,230 $ 108,856 $
228,148

39,1 00
2,871,757 4,802,924

85,275 $
16,340

386 361
244,488

39,100
10,782,951

64,082
1,476

2,381,831

3,108,270
64,082

35
2,269,700

1,441
112,131

3,332,676 5,023,91 1 5 543 702 13,900,289

1,362,626 13 032
4 400,997

456,801
(2,224,785)

1,375,658
4,400,997

742,057

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

285,256
4,999,988 a 775,203

6. 362,614 285 256 2,646,045 9,293,9'15

$9, 69s.290 $ 5,309,'167 $ 8,189 747 $ 23,194,204
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CITY OF RIVER FALLS

RECONCILIATION OF TOÏAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES TO
NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

As of December 31,2011

Total fund balance - governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets
are different because:

Capital assets used in government activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the fund statements. Capital assets at year end
consist of:

Capital assets
Accumulated depreciation

Special assessments, foans receivable, and various other receivables are
reported as deferred revenue in the fund financial statements and are
recognized as revenue when earned in the government-wide financial statements
These types of deferred revenues at year end consist of:

Grants receivable
Loans receivable
Special assessments
Other receivables

lnternal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of

the city hall to individualfunds The assets and liabilities of the internal service

funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets

Governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, losses on refunding,
discounts and simÌlar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. These amounts include:

Loss on refunding
Debt issuance costs
Debt discount

Some other liabilities are not due in the current period and, therefore, are not
reported in the fund statements

Long-term lÌabilities, including bonds and notes payable, are not due in the
current period and, therefore, are not reported in the fund statements
Long-term liabilities at year end consist of:

General obligation debt
Vested compensated absences
Landfill post-closure care cost
Other postempioyment benefits
Accrued interest on general obtigation debt

$ 59,562,047
(12,223,953)

23,154
343,838

26,733
65 694

16,029
61 193
70,513

$ 9,293,915

47,338,094

459,419

35,945

147 ,735

(240,000)

(14 915,696)

(13,296,226)
(856 1 52)
(243,858)
(318,424)
(201 036)

TOTAL NET ASSETS . GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES s 42,119,412
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CITY OF RIVER FALLS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended December 31,2011

General
Fund

General
Capital
Projects

Other Total
Governmental Governmental

Funds Funds

REVENUES
Taxes
Special assessments
lntergovernmental
Licenses and permits
Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Public charges for services
I ntergovern mental charges for services
lnvestment income
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government
Public safety
Public works
Health services
Leisure
Conservation and development
Public service enterprises

Capital Outlay
Debt Service

Principal retirement
lnterest and fiscal charges

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

oTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Long-term debt issued
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) - Beginning of Year

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR

297 673

6 970 486 1,178,729 4,125,933

$ 2,605,307
3,838

3,312,865
128,784
186,942
228,895

14,641
191,541

$ 38,9s0
6,921

1,030,000

$ 2,916 654
2,500

495,898

$ 5,560,951
13,259

4,838,763
128,784
186,942
704,770

14,641
228,132
598,906

12,275,148

475,875

2 068
100 750

34,523
200,483

1 330,341
3,086,658
1,664,438

10,172
549,740
506,110

2,127

64,679
214,710

1,220,491
278,118

572,757 2,361,366

1,330,34'1
3 151.337
1,879,148

10,172
1,770,231

784,228
2,127

2,934,123

130,685 928,772 1,059,457
24 801 4,471 585 139 614 411

7,305,072 577 228 5,653,275 '13,535,575

334 586 601 501 (1,527,342) (1,260,427)

1,455,562
(731,029)

875,000
88,000

( 1 27,335)

1,599,000
583,024

(657.177)

2,474,000
2,126,586

515 c4 I

085,045724.533 835,665 1,524,847 3,

389,947

5,972 oo/

1,437 ,166

(1,151,e10)

(2,4e5)

2,648,540

1,824,618

7 ,469,297

$ 9,293 915$ 6,362 614 $ 285 256 $ 2,646,045
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CITY OF RIVER FALLS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended December 31,2011

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because.

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the
cost of these assets is capitalized and allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense.

Capital outlay is reported as an expenditure in the fund financial statements but is capitalized
in the government-wide financial statements

Some items reported as capital outlay in the fund financial statements are not capitalized
in the government-wide financial statements

Depreciation is reported in the governmentwide financial statements

ln the fund financial statements, proceeds from the sale of capìtal assets are reported because
the proceeds increase financial resources ln the statement of activities, only the gain or loss on
the disposal of capital assets is repofted.

Special assessments, specÌal charges, and the related interest are reported as deferred revenue
in the fund statements, but are recognized as revenue when earned in the government-wide financÌal
statements This is the net effect of those amounts recognized as revenue in prior years on the
government-wide financial statements and deferred in the fund financial statements.

Receivables that are not received within 60 days of year end are recorded as deferred revenue in the
fund statements. This is the net effect of amounts deferred in the prior year and the current year.

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the fund financial statements, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities Ìn the statement of net assets This is the amount of principal
payments made.

lssuing debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases
long-term liabÍlities in the statement of net assets This is the amount of debt issued durinq the year

lnterest on longlerm debt in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported in the fund
financial statements because interest is recorded as an expenditure in the funds when it is due, and
thus requires the use of current financial resources. ln the statement of activities interest expense
is recognìzed as the interest accrues regardless of when it is due.

Governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, losses on refunding, discounts, and similar
items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activities. This is the net effect of those differences.

Delinquent charges placed on tax roll were deferred in the fund statements because they were not
available, but were recognized in the government-wide statements.

$ 1 ,824,618

2,934,123

(197,154)
(e81,57s)

(23,847)

2,541

(3,502)

1,059,457

(2,47 4,000)

11,761

(1 5 e38)

(1 8,1 55)
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Continued From
Previous Page

Some expenses in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and,

therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. This amount is the change in

the following liabilities.
Compensated absences
Landfiil liability
Other postemployment benefits
Other liabilities

Governmental funds report repayments of housing loans and notes receivables as revenue and issuing
new loans as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, these amounts
are not reported as [evenue and expenses.

Repayment of principal on loans and notes recognized as revenue on fund statements

lnternal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of the city hall to individual funds.

The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

$ (5e,828)
14,474

(50,824)
(240,000)

51,722

14 159
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CITY OF RIVER FALLS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

As of December 31.2011

Business-type Activíties - Enterprise Funds

Maior Funds
Non-major

Fund
lnternal
Service

Fund

Cìty Hall

10
38,497

7,955

46,462

Electric
Utility

Water
Utility

Sewer
Ut¡lity

Stormwater
Ut¡lity Ambulance Totals

ASSETS
Current Assets

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Other accounts receivable
Current portion of advance
Current portion of loan receivable
Current portion of special assessments
Current portion of West Central B¡osolids

receivable
Current portion of WPPI receivable
Interest receivab{e
lnventor¡es
Prepaid ¡tems
Restr¡cted Assets

Cash
lnlerest receivable
West Centraf Biosolids receivable

Total Cur¡ent Assets

Non-Current Assets
Restricted Assets

Reserve account
Construction account
lmpact fee account
Replacement account

Other Assets
Loan rece¡vable
Solar renewable note rece¡vable
Advances to other funds
Preliminary survey and investigation
Special assessments receivable
West Central B¡osolids Fac¡l¡ty receivable
WPPI recelvable
Unamortized debt issuance costs

Capital Assets
Land
Construction ¡n progress
Property and equipment
Accumulated deprecialion

Total Non-Current Assets

Total Assets

35,O12
132

601 ,717
2,481

63,451

$ 2,114,358 $

1 ,1 06,636
267,743

57,396
24,710

1,935,801 $
1 18,089

4.415

2,564

'14,199

5,281

1,199.729 $
243,683

12,314

9,693

48,247

4,735
666

2,563

142,431 $
90,062

2,578

590,297 $
62.820

5,982,616 $

1,621,290
284,472

57,396
24,710
12,257

757,034

276,812
33,854

167,007
492

27,207

680,324

48.247
757,O34

4.739
291,677
71.483

803,736
3.1 05

63,451

10.026,2134,806,042 2.115,493 2j89283 235,071

668,463

55,289
15,123

496,906

1,755,351
54,714

159,446

477,732

16,240

59,076

3,120
2,638.282

15,328,836
(3,940,917)

610,395
301,806
251 ,471
110,372

1,438,304
301,806
729.203
110,372

107.127
107,408

22,382.814
(l 0,67s,1 33)

55,289
15.123

496,906
31 .1 80'14,940

357,689

132,678

147,622
68,747

26,969,848
(7)39,027\

7,I 1 6,976
(1 ,230,276)

357.689
.1 

,755,351
246.468

'1 01 ,298 359,1 67
- 2,814,437

1,290,095 73,088,s69
(805,883) (23,791,236\

'14,968,062 14,741 .815 21,826 .541

$ 15.774.1O4 $ 16,857,308 $ 24.015,824

5,886,700 585,510 58,008,628

s 6,121,771 q_L?9!.q31 $ 68,034,841 $ __4¡A¿
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Business-tvoe Acf ivities - Enterprise Funds

Maior Funds

Sewer Stormwater
Ut¡lity Utilitv

Non-major lnternal

Service
Fund

Fund

Ambulance Totafs City Hall

Eleclric
Utilitv

$ 486,159 $

26,842
1 1 ,963

181 ,284
25,201

35,177
766.626

Water
Utility

L]ABILITIES
Current Liabilities

Accounts payable
Customer deposits
Accrued liabilities
Accrued interest
Due to other funds
Current portion of general obligation debt
Current port¡on of advance
Current port¡on of shared services notes payable
Current portion of bank promissory note -

West Centfal W¡sconsin Biosolids Facility
Current Liabilities Payable from Restr¡cted Assets

Current portion of revenue bonds
Current port¡on of clean water fund loan
Accrued ¡nterest

Tota¡ Current L¡abilit¡es

Non-Current Liabilities
General obligation debt
Revenue bonds
Unamortized debt premium
Clean water fund loan
Bank promissory note - West Central

Wisconsín Biosolids Facility
Compensated absences
Other post-employment benefits
Advance from other funds
Shared services notes payab¡e
Unearned revenue
Unamortized gain on early ret¡rement
Customer advances for construction

Total Non-Current L¡ab¡lities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:

Debt service
Replacement
lmpact fees

Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

956,569 $
7S,547

177.329
575

43,091 $

42,592
22.747

17,088 $

2,035
3,757

183,0.1 5

6.788 $

23,673

1,509,695 $
79,547

272,471
39,042

8,732

1,074

711

10,517

15,030

24,710

1,350,000

11,971

2,615,731

175,O25
32,195

48,247

530,860
63,451
42 821

"l ,001,029 205,895 30,461

554,354
57,396
24,710

48,247

'1 ,880,860
63,451
89,969

4,619,742

16,032
310,000

284,536
2,'t25,O00

3,447

1,646,598
6,347,867

41 ,651
202,691

154,998
25,777
21 ,828

363,467

306,96'1

9,111,838

10.112,867

185.062

185 062

390,957

2,132.228
8,782.867

4s,098
202,691

52,841
52.804

24,781
33,993

133,43S
53,119
93,415

'f ,026,610

154,998
'103,3S9

117,208
496,906

53,119
93,4'15

1,026,610
555,919

13,764,458

B,s83

8,583

39,044

248,958
1,604,821

4.220,552

2,854.154

3,620,780

10,985,393

'155,528

11.661 .595

4,412,631
228,741

1,346,192

15,553,552 $ 1 528

18,384,200 10,517

12,359,1 63

561 ,377
110,372

872,045

Lll,s!?J!z

5,518,623 585,510

212j91 641.280

$ 5,730,814 $ 1,2261790

41 ,110,284

716,905
110,372
228.741

7,484 339 945

$ 49,650,641 $ 35.945

A-22



CÍTY OF RIVER FALLS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended December 31,2011

Business-type Activities - Enterpríse Funds

Maior Funds

Sewer
Utility

Stormwater
Utility

Non-major
Fund

Ambulance Totals

lnternal

Service
Fund

City Hall

$ 38,497

Electric Water
Utility Util¡ty

OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operat¡on and maintenance
Depreciation and amortization

Total Operating Expenses

Operating lncome (Loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Operating grants
lnvestment income
lnterest income on West Central Wisconsin

Biosolids Facility receivable
lnterest expense
lnterest charged to construction
Amortization of debt issuance costs
Amortizatíon of debt premium
Amort¡zation of gain on early retirement
Miscellaneous reven ues

Total Non-Operating Revenue (Expenses)

lncome (Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers

CAPfTAL CONTRfBUTIONS
TRANSFERS IN
TRANSFERS OUT

Change in Net Assets

NET ASSETS - Beginning of Year

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

$ 13,580,863 $ 1,471,449 $ 2,809,684 $ 504,265 $ 817,811 $ 19,184,072

11,776,249 792,314
970,401 271,978

12,746,650 1,064,292

'1 ,580,603
533,679

2,114,282

214,922
140,974

355,896

695,710 15,059,798
71,029 1,988,06'l

766,739 17,047,859

224,438

224,438

(185,941)834,213 407 157 695,402 148,369 51 ,072 2,136,213

26,423 5,920 26,088 179

17,385
(355,000)

6,812
(53,447)

2,264

(355,898) _ (11,481) 110,445

6,1 56
648

161 ,517

129,087
(1 20,807)

169,797

1,056,993

$ 1,226,790

6,1 56
59,258 27

(B3,oBB)

(1 8,1 35)

374,527

299,727

1,'133,940

56,287

(486,354)

703,873

14,849,679

$ 15,553,552

(61,543)
34,736
(1,273)

74

(22,086)

385,07 1

31,069

(267,871)

148,269

13,088,259

$lÂæ9,5?q

(13,210)
17,385

(512,841)
41 ,548

(72,855)
2,338

37 4,527
105 191

a720 707

339,s04

69,602

409, 1 06

13,493,85r

$'1 3,902,957

'136,888

(6s,1 73)

71,715

5,659,099

$ s,730,814

2,156,920

1 56,958
129,087

(940,205)

1,502,760

48,147,BB1

$ 49,650,641

(185,914)

215,552
(15,479)

14,159

21 ,786

$ 35,945
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CITY OF RIVER FALLS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended December 31.2O11

Business-type Act¡vities - Enterpr¡se Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Rece¡ved trom customers
Received from city for serv¡ces
Paid to suppliers for goods and services
Paid to employees for services

Net Cash Flows From Operat¡ng Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPIÏAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Paid to city for tax equ¡valent
Repayment of advance from other funds
Operat¡ng grant
Miscellaneous revenue
Debt ret¡red
Repayment of solar renewable note
Transfers to/from other funds

Net Cash Flows From Noncap¡tal F¡nancìng Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acqu¡sition and construction of capital assets
Capital contributions rece¡ved
lmpact fees rece¡ved
Debt retired
lnteresl pa¡d

Proceeds from debt issue
Debt ¡ssuance costs

Net Cash Flows From Capitâl and

Related F¡nancing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments
Proceeds lrom sales and maturit¡es of investments
lnvestment rncome

Net Cash Flows From lnvesting ActÍvit¡es

Net lncrease (Decrease) ¡n Cash and Cash Equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS . END OF YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENIS TO
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS ACCOUNTS

Cash and investments
Bond redempt¡on account
Bond reserve account
Construction accounI
lmpact [ee account
Replacement account

Total Cash and lnvestments

Lessì Noncash equrvalents

Maior Funds

Electric Watet Sewer Stormwater
Ut¡lity Ut¡lìty Utility Ul¡l¡ty Ambulance Totals C¡ty Hall

$ 13,847,065 $ 1,52s,0s8 g 2,841,446 $ 504,501 $ 809,958 $ 19,528,028 I 32,572
246,822 246.822

(10,523,708) (454,74s) (1,19e,06e) (90,380) (321,5s1) (12,58e,493) (168,101)
(1,324,379) (2s9,2s9) (36e,s40) (108,112) (36e,28s) (2,431,015) (65,6s6)

2,245,8OO 811,014 1,272,437 306,009 119,082 4,754,342 (200,825)

Non-major
Fund

lnternal

Service
Fund

(4,2441

1s8,640 (65,173) 8,280 10.1 747 200,o73

(627,302) (109,231) (3s,053) (63,ô23) 118,077 (717,132) 200,073

(486,354)
(127,831)

(267 .871)
(30,809)

(1 4,028)
91 1

(729,553) (1,610,926) (55,850)
56.287 - 127,148

- 53,380
(1,330,000) (373,062) (2,669,380)

(s4,343) (33,200) (337,43s)
- 2,125,000 1,740,000

(56,828) (778)

1,550
6,156

103,641

(166,120) (34,967)

(1 75,303)
(s,4s3)

1 60,000

(7 54,225t
(1 58,640)

6,156
r05,1 91

(18,272)
911

(1,864,47s)
2,582,494

62,30 1

780,320

(2,597,416\
183,435
53,380

(4,547,75OJ
(474,431t

4,031,000
(57,606)

(2,097,609) 104,3se (1,196,295) (184,870) (34,967) (s.40e,388)

(835,645)
795,790

28,258 788
(1r,s97) 5,788 78 302

(490,708) 81 1,930 820,391

2,604,891 1,796,061 't,220,269

(1,028,830)
1,786,704

27,428 179 648

179

57.689

84 742

202,840

387,457

e _ liltgL

27648

q ?Jt_ !q q _¿9!2.9t1 s _?p4qp9q 9 _tl24l!

1 ,408,142 1725)

7356,093,420

$ 7,501 ,562 $ 1 0

$ 2,114,358 $
1 67,007
668.463

1.935,801
35,012

159,446

$ 1,'199,729
601 ,717
610,395
301.806
251 ,471
110,372

3,075,490

5 14?,431 $ 590,297 $ 5,982,616
803,736

1,438,304
301,806
729,203
110,372

9,366,037

$
.10

477 732

2,949,828

(835,64s)

$ 2 114,183

2,607,991 142.431 590,297 10

(1,028,830) (1 ,864,47 5)

CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS $ _!,6!2,s91 9__?.q16,!9q 9 l44tl q 19!¿92 q___2,5qÉ9?
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Business-type Act¡v¡t¡es - Enterpr¡se Funds

Major Funds

Electric Water Sewer Stormwater
Util¡tv Utility Utility Ut¡lity

Non-major
Fund

Ambulance Totaìs

lnternal
Service

Fund

City Hall

RECONCtLtATtON OF OpERATING TNCOME (LOSSI TO
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating ¡ncome (loss)
Nonoperating revenue (expense)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating lncome (Loss) to

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Noncash items ¡ncluded in income

Depreciation and amortizatìon
Depreciat¡on charged to clearing accounl
Unfunded postemploymenI benelìts obligation

Change in assets and l¡ab¡l¡ties

Customer accounts receivable
Other accounts receivable
lnventories
Prepa¡d ¡tems
Accounts payable
Customer depos¡ts
Due to other funds
Other current l¡abilit¡es

NET CASH FLOWS FROM

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Clean water fund debt paid by West Central Wisconsin
Biosolids Facility

lnterest paid by West Central Wiscons¡n Biosolids Fac¡lity

Shared savlngs debt

Adjustment lo accumulated deprec¡ataon for early retirement

of power plant

Salvage for sale of generator ¡n accounts receivable

Amortization of loss on early retirement of book value
of power plant

2't,828

142,456 s,911 21,847 236 (7,853) 162,597 (5,s25)
(7 ,258',) 4,475 9,915 7,132
30,706 226 (54) 30,878 (1,423)
(20,341) (2,505) 3,348 293 2.217 (16,988)
(15,111) 47,232 (5,997) 16,162 (4,826) 37,460 1,517

2,308 2,308
(e,3e0)

(144,088) (676) (7,531) (2s) 7,443 (144,877) (63)

9 _2]4þß9e $ !!.q1 9l_,272!37 $ !!9p!e q __11_9pgz î_1fþ131? q {?qg.q¿Ð

$ 834,213 $
399.710

970,401

52,804

45,165

271 ,978
43,223
33,993

4O7,157 I 695,402 $ 148,369 $ 51,022 $ 2j3A,213 $ (185,941)
- 399,710

$

533,629

.108,255 
$

17,385

140,974 71,029

$ $

1,988.061

43.223
108,625

1 ,510,958

200,000

25123

108,255 $

17,385

45 165

1,510.958

200,000

25,123
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CITY OF RIVER FALLS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
AGENCY FUND

As of December 31 ,2011

ASSETS
Cash and investments

Taxes receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

L¡ABILITIES
Due to other taxing units

Agency

Tax
Collectíon

$ 1 ,135,280
12,904,019

$ 14,039,299

$ 14,039,299

A-26



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 R

IV
E

R
 F

A
LL

S

N
O

T
E

S
 T

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

S
T

A
T

E
lll

E
N

T
S

A
s 

of
 a

nd
 f

or
 i

he
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 

20
1 

1

N
O

T
E

 I 
- 

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 

oF
 S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 

A
cc

oU
N

T
IN

G
 

P
oL

Ic
IE

S

T
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

rf
g 

po
Ic

re
s 

of
 t

he
 C

 ty
 o

f 
R

rv
er

 F
al

ls
, 

W
rs

co
ns

rn
 c

on
fo

rm
 t

o 
ge

ne
ra

lly
 a

cc
ep

te
d 

ac
co

un
tin

g
pn

nc
ip

le
s 

as
 a

pp
l 

ca
bl

e 
to

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
un

rt
s 

T
he

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
st

an
da

rd
 

se
ttr

ng
 b

od
y 

fo
r 

es
ta

bl
is

hr
ng

go
ve

rn
m

eo
tä

l 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

an
d 

fin
an

c¡
al

 r
ep

od
in

g 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 
is

 t
he

 G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
A

cc
ou

ni
in

g 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

B
oa

rd
 (

G
A

S
B

)

A
 

R
E

P
O

R
T

IN
G

 
E

N
T

Il-
f

T
hi

sr
ep

or
tr

nc
lu

de
sa

llo
fth

ef
un

ds
of

th
eC

rly
of

R
iv

er
F

al
ls

 
T

he
re

po
rt

in
ge

nt
rt

yf
or

ih
ec

ty
co

ns
is

ts
of

(a
) 

th
e 

pr
im

ar
y 

go
ve

rn
m

en
l 

(b
) 

or
ga

nr
za

to
ns

 
lo

r 
w

hr
ch

 t
he

 p
rim

ar
y 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

is
 ln

an
ci

al
ly

 a
cc

ou
nt

ab
le

,
an

d 
(c

) 
ot

he
r 

or
ga

ni
za

t 
on

s 
fo

r 
w

hr
ch

 t
he

 n
at

ur
e 

an
d 

si
gn

rf
rc

an
ce

 o
f 

th
ei

r 
re

la
t 

on
sh

rp
 w

ith
 t

he
 p

nm
at

y
go

ve
T

nm
en

t 
ar

e 
su

ch
 t

ha
t 

th
er

r 
ex

cl
us

ro
n 

w
ou

ld
 c

au
se

 t
he

 r
ep

or
tr

ng
 e

nt
ity

's
 F

in
an

cr
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
to

 b
e

m
¡s

le
ad

in
g 

or
 r

nc
om

pl
et

e 
A

 le
ga

lly
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
f 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 a

s 
a 

co
m

po
ne

nt
 

un
it 

if 
th

e
el

ec
te

do
ffi

oi
al

so
fth

ep
nm

ar
yg

ov
er

nm
en

ta
re

hn
an

c¡
al

ly
ac

co
un

ta
bl

ei
ot

he
or

ga
n¡

za
tio

n 
T

he
pn

m
ar

y
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
is

 f
 n

an
cr

al
ly

 a
cc

ou
nt

ab
le

 
if 

it 
ap

po
in

ts
 

a 
vo

tin
g 

nr
aj

or
¡t

y 
of

 t
he

 o
rg

an
iz

at
 o

n 
s 

go
ve

rn
 n

g 
bo

dy
an

d 
(1

 )
 it

 is
 a

bl
e 

to
 im

po
se

 i
ts

 w
ill

 o
n 

th
at

 o
rg

an
¡z

at
io

n 
or

 (
2)

 t
he

re
 r

s 
a 

po
ie

nt
¡a

l 
fo

r 
th

e 
or

ga
ni

za
tio

n 
to

pr
ov

rd
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

fin
an

ci
al

 
be

ne
fr

ts
 t

o 
or

 b
ur

de
ns

 o
n 

th
e 

pr
im

ar
y 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

fh
e 

pr
¡m

ar
y 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

m
ay

be
 f

 n
an

cr
al

ly
 a

cc
ou

nt
ab

le
 

rf
 a

n 
or

ga
nr

za
tr

on
 r

s 
fr

sc
al

ly
 d

ep
en

de
nt

 
on

 t
he

 p
rim

ar
y 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t

A
 le

ga
lly

 s
ep

ar
at

e,
 

ta
x 

ex
em

pt
 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

po
rle

d 
as

 a
 c

om
po

ne
nt

 
un

¡t
 o

f 
a 

re
po

rt
in

g 
en

tit
y 

il
al

l 
of

 t
he

 f
ol

lo
w

rn
g 

cr
ile

fla
 a

re
 m

et
 (

1)
 t

he
 e

co
no

m
rc

 
ie

so
ur

ce
s 

re
ce

rv
ed

 o
r 

he
ld

 b
y 

th
e 

se
pa

ra
te

or
ga

ni
za

tr
on

ar
ee

nt
ire

ly
or

al
m

os
te

nt
lre

ly
fo

rt
he

di
re

ct
be

ne
fit

of
th

ep
rim

ar
yg

ov
er

nm
en

t 
its

co
m

po
ne

nt
un

¡t
s,

 o
r 

its
 c

on
st

itu
en

ts
; 

(2
) 

th
e 

pf
lm

ar
y 

go
ve

rn
m

en
l 

rs
 e

nt
Lt

le
d 

to
, 

or
 h

as
 t

he
 a

b¡
lit

y 
to

 o
th

eM
¡s

e 
ac

ce
ss

, 
a

m
aj

or
 t

y 
of

 t
he

 e
co

no
m

rc
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
re

ce
¡v

ed
 o

r 
he

ld
 b

y 
th

e 
se

pa
ra

te
 o

rg
an

rz
at

ro
n;

 (
3)

 t
he

 e
co

no
m

rc
re

so
ur

ce
s 

re
ce

rv
ed

 o
r 

he
ld

 b
y 

an
 I

nd
LV

rd
ua

l o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n 
th

at
 t

he
 s

pe
cl

fic
 p

rim
ar

y 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t, 
or

 i
ts

co
m

po
ne

nt
 u

ni
ts

, 
is

 e
nt

¡t
le

d 
lo

, 
or

 h
as

 l
he

 a
b¡

lrt
y 

to
 o

lh
er

w
rs

e 
ac

ce
ss

 a
re

 s
ig

nj
f¡

ca
nt

 t
o 

th
at

 p
rim

ar
y

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

B
le

nd
ed

 Ç
om

po
ne

nt
 u

ni
ts

, 
al

th
ou

gh
 l

eg
al

ly
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

en
tit

ie
s 

ar
e 

n 
su

bs
ta

nc
e,

 
pa

rt
 o

f 
th

e
go

ve
rn

m
en

t's
op

er
at

io
ns

an
da

re
re

po
rt

ed
w

rt
hs

m
rla

rf
un

ds
of

th
ep

rim
ar

yg
ov

er
nm

en
t 

E
ac

hd
is

cr
et

el
y

pr
es

en
te

d 
co

m
po

ne
nt

 
un

 t
 r

s 
re

po
rt

ed
 r

n 
a 

se
pa

T
at

e 
co

lu
m

n 
rn

 t
he

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t-

w
rd

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
(s

ee
 n

ot
e 

be
lo

w
 f

or
 d

es
cn

pt
io

n)
 

to
 e

m
ph

as
 z

e 
th

at
 r

l 
rs

 le
ga

 l
y 

se
pa

ra
te

 
fr

om
 i

he
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t

D
¡s

cr
et

el
y 

P
re

se
nt

ed
 C

om
po

ne
nt

 
U

n¡
ts

R
tv

er
 F

al
ls

 H
oL

ts
¡!

19
 
A

Lt
th

on
ty

T
he

 g
ov

er
nm

en
lw

id
e 

fr
na

¡c
la

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
rn

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
R

rv
er

 F
al

ls
 H

ou
s 

ng
 A

ut
ho

flt
y 

as
 a

 c
om

po
ne

nt
 

un
rt

T
he

 H
ou

si
ng

 A
ut

ho
nt

y 
is

 a
 l

eg
al

ly
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

or
ga

nE
al

io
n 

T
he

 b
oâ

rd
 o

f 
th

e 
H

ou
sr

ng
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

is
 a

pp
or

nt
ed

by
lh

em
ay

or
of

th
eC

ily
of

R
iv

er
F

al
s 

W
sc

on
si

nS
ta

tu
te

sp
ro

vd
ef

or
cr

rc
um

si
an

ce
sw

he
re

by
th

ec
¡t

yc
an

rm
po

se
 r

ts
 w

¡ll
 o

o 
th

e 
H

ou
sr

ng
 A

ut
ho

rt
y 

an
d 

al
so

 c
re

at
e 

a 
po

te
nt

ra
l f

in
an

ci
al

 
be

ne
fit

 t
o 

or
 b

ur
de

n 
on

 i
he

cr
ty

 S
ee

N
ot

el
lll

 
A

sa
co

m
po

ne
nt

!n
rl,

th
eH

ou
sr

ng
A

ui
ho

rit
ys

fr
na

¡c
ìa

ls
ta

te
m

en
ts

ha
ve

be
en

pr
es

en
te

d 
as

 a
 d

rs
cr

et
e 

co
lu

m
n 

rn
 t

he
 f

in
an

cr
al

 s
ta

te
m

e¡
is

 T
lìe

 n
fo

rm
at

ro
n 

pr
es

en
te

d 
rs

 f
or

 t
he

 f
¡s

ca
l 

ye
ar

en
de

dJ
un

e3
0 

20
11

 S
ep

ar
at

el
yL

S
su

ed
fn

an
cr

al
st

at
em

en
ts

of
ih

el
-lo

us
rn

gA
ut

ho
rL

ty
m

ay
be

ob
ta

rn
ed

fr
om

 t
he

 H
ou

sr
ng

 A
ut

ho
nt

y 
s 

of
f 

ce
 a

t 
62

5 
N

or
th

 f
M

ai
n 

S
tr

ee
t, 

R
iv

er
 F

al
ls

, 
W

l 5
40

22

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 R

IV
E

R
 F

A
LL

S

N
O

T
E

S
 T

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
S

A
s 

of
 a

nd
 f

or
 t

he
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
. 

20
1 

1

N
O

T
E

 
I 
- 

S
U

M
À

,tA
R

y 
oF

 S
tG

N
tF

tc
A

N
T

 
A

cc
ou

N
T

tN
G

 P
oL

tc
tE

s 
(c

on
t 

)

A
, 

R
E

P
oR

T
tN

c 
E

N
Ír

y(
co

nt
 )

D
¡s

cr
et

el
y 

P
re

se
nt

ed
 

C
om

po
ne

nt
 

U
n¡

ts
 (

co
îl)

B
u 

st
ne

ss
 I 

m
pr

ov
en

en
 
t 

D
¡s

tr
¡c

t

T
he

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t-

w
rd

e 
f¡

na
nc

 
a 

st
at

em
en

ts
 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

B
us

tn
es

s 
lm

pr
ov

em
en

t 
D

rs
tr

ic
t 

(B
lD

) 
as

 a
co

m
po

ne
nt

 
un

rt
 T

he
 B

ID
 r

s 
a 

le
ga

lly
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
n 

T
he

 b
oa

rd
 o

f 
th

e 
B

ID
 i

s 
ap

po
in

te
d 

by
 t

he
m

ay
or

 o
f 

th
e 

C
ity

 o
f 

R
Ìv

er
 F

al
is

 W
ls

co
ns

in
 S

ta
tu

te
s 

pr
ov

id
e 

fo
r 

ci
rc

um
st

an
ce

s 
w

he
re

by
 t

he
 c

lty
 c

an
m

po
se

its
w

ill
on

th
eB

lD
,a

nd
al

so
cr

ea
te

ap
ot

€n
tr

al
fr

na
nc

ra
lb

en
ef

¡t
to

or
bu

rd
en

on
th

ec
rt

y 
S

ee
N

ot
e

lll
 I

 A
s 

a 
co

m
po

ne
nt

 
un

rt
, 

th
e 

B
¡D

's
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

pr
es

en
te

d 
as

 a
 d

is
cr

et
e 

co
lu

m
n 

ìn
 t

he
fn

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 T

he
 i

nf
or

m
at

ro
n 

pr
es

en
te

d 
rs

 f
or

 t
he

 f
rs

ca
l 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
 2

01
 1

 S
ep

ar
at

e
fr

na
nc

ra
f 

st
at

em
en

ts
 

ar
e 

no
t 

ss
ue

d 
by

 t
he

 B
ID

B
 

G
Ù

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
|-

W
\D

E
 

aN
D

 F
U

N
D

 F
rN

A
ilc

ra
L 

S
fa

rE
M

Ê
ilr

s

In
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
09

, 
th

e 
G

A
S

B
 i

ss
ue

d 
st

at
em

en
t 

N
o 

54
 - 

F
un

d 
B

al
an

ce
 R

ep
or

tin
g 

an
d 

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
F

un
d

T
yp

eD
ef

in
iti

ot
rs

 
T

hr
ss

ta
te

m
en

te
st

ab
lis

he
sf

un
db

al
an

ce
cl

as
si

fic
at

io
ns

ba
se

dp
flm

ar
ily

on
th

ee
xt

en
tto

w
hr

ch
 t

he
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t 
rs

 b
ou

nd
 t

o 
ho

no
r 

co
ns

tr
ar

nt
s 

on
 t

he
 u

se
 o

f 
th

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

re
po

rt
ed

 ¡
n 

ea
ch

go
ve

rn
m

en
ta

 f
un

d 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 e
st

ab
lis

he
s 

ad
d 

tr
on

al
 n

ot
e 

di
sc

lo
su

re
s 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
fu

nd
 b

al
an

ce
 c

la
ss

rf
ic

at
io

n
po

hc
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

T
he

 c
rt

y 
m

ad
e 

th
e 

de
cr

sr
o¡

 t
o 

im
pl

em
en

t 
th

is
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

ef
fe

ct
ve

 J
an

ua
ry

 
'1

, 
20

1 
1

G
 o

 v
en

n 
en

t-
W

îd
e 

F
¡ 
na

nc
ia

l 
S

ta
te

m
en

ts

T
he

 s
ta

te
m

en
t 

of
 n

et
 ã

ss
et

s 
an

d 
st

at
em

en
t 

of
 a

ct
iv

ite
s 

di
sp

la
y 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t 
th

e 
re

po
rt

ìn
g

go
ve

rn
m

en
ta

sa
w

ho
le

 T
he

y 
nc

lu
de

al
llu

nd
so

fth
er

ep
or

tn
ge

nt
rt

ye
xc

ep
tfo

rf
id

uc
ar

yf
un

ds
 

T
he

st
at

em
en

ts
 

dr
st

in
gu

rs
h 

be
lw

ee
n 

go
ve

rn
m

en
ta

 a
nd

 b
us

rn
es

s-
ty

pe
 a

ct
rv

rt
re

s 
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l 

ac
tiv

iti
es

ge
ne

ra
lly

 a
re

 l
rn

ân
ce

d 
th

ro
uq

h 
ta

xe
s,

 in
te

rg
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
re

ve
nu

es
, 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
no

ne
xc

ha
ng

e 
re

ve
nu

es
B

us
rn

es
s{

yp
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 a
re

 f
in

an
ce

d 
rn

 w
ho

le
 o

r 
rn

 p
êr

t 
by

 f
ee

s 
ch

ar
ge

d 
io

 e
xl

er
nâ

l p
ar

tte
s 

fo
r 

go
od

s 
or

se
ry

rc
es

 L
rk

ew
¡s

e,
 t

he
 p

nm
ar

y 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
rs

 r
ep

or
te

d 
se

pa
ra

te
ly

 
fr

om
 c

er
te

in
 l

eg
al

 y
 s

ep
ar

at
e

co
m

po
ne

nt
 u

nr
ts

 f
or

 w
hi

ch
 t

he
 p

rim
ar

y 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
rs

 f
in

an
cr

al
ly

 a
cc

ou
nt

ab
le

T
he

 s
ta

te
m

en
t 

of
 a

ct
rv

rt
ie

s 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
s 

th
e 

de
gr

ee
 t

o 
w

hr
ch

 t
he

 d
rr

ec
t 

ex
pe

ns
es

 
of

 a
 g

iv
en

 f
un

ct
io

n 
or

se
gm

en
t 

ar
e 

of
fs

et
 b

y 
pr

og
ra

m
 
re

ve
nu

es
 D

 r
ec

t 
ex

pe
ns

es
 

ar
e 

th
os

e 
th

at
 a

re
 c

le
ar

ly
 i

de
nt

ifi
ab

le
 w

ith
 a

sp
ec

ifi
c 

fu
nc

tio
n 

or
 s

eg
m

en
t 

I 
he

 c
¡t

y 
do

es
 n

ot
 a

llo
ca

te
 

rn
dr

re
ct

 
ex

pe
ns

es
 

to
 f

un
ct

ro
ns

 I
n 

th
e 

st
at

em
en

t 
of

ac
tr

vr
tr

es
 

P
ro

gr
am

 r
ev

en
ue

s 
in

cl
ud

e 
1)

 c
ha

rg
es

 
to

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

or
 a

pp
lic

an
ts

 
w

ho
 p

ur
ch

as
e,

 
us

e 
or

 d
ire

ct
ly

be
ne

ít 
fr

or
n 

go
od

s,
 s

er
vi

ce
s,

 
or

 p
nv

ile
ge

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 

by
 a

 g
lv

en
 f

un
ct

¡o
n 

or
 s

eg
m

en
t, 

an
d 

2)
 g

ra
nl

s 
an

d
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 

th
at

 a
re

 r
es

tn
ct

ed
 t

o 
m

ee
tr

ng
 t

he
 o

pe
ra

ho
na

l 
or

 c
ap

rt
al

 r
eq

ur
re

m
en

ts
 

of
 a

 p
ar

tr
cu

la
r 

fu
nc

t 
on

or
 s

eg
m

en
t 

I 
ax

es
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 r
te

m
s 

no
t 

io
cl

ud
ed

 
am

on
g 

pr
og

ra
m

 r
ev

en
ue

s 
ar

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 

as
 g

en
er

al
re

ve
nu

es
 l

nt
er

nå
lly

 d
ed

 c
at

ed
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 
ar

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 a

s 
ge

ne
ra

l 
re

ve
nu

es
 

ra
th

er
 t

ha
n 

as
 p

ro
gr

am
re

ve
nu

es

A-27



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 R

IV
E

R
 F

A
LL

S

N
O

T
E

S
 T

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
S

A
s 

of
 a

nd
 f

or
 t

he
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 

20
1 

1

N
O

T
E

 
¡ 
- 

su
M

M
A

R
y 

oF
 s

tG
N

rF
rc

A
N

T
 A

cc
ou

N
T

tN
G

 P
oL

tc
tE

s 
(c

on
t 

)

B
 

co
vE

R
N

M
E

N
f-

W
tD

E
 A

N
D

 F
U

N
D

 
F

tN
A

rc
,A

L 
S

rÁ
rE

M
E

flr
s 

(c
on

t 
)

F
un

d 
F

¡n
an

c¡
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ls

F
in

an
ca

 s
ia

te
m

en
ts

of
th

er
ep

or
tin

ge
nt

ity
ar

eo
rg

an
iz

ed
¡n

to
fu

nd
s 

ea
ch

of
w

hc
hi

sc
on

si
de

re
dt

ob
ea

se
pa

ra
te

ac
co

un
tin

ge
¡t

ity
 

E
ac

hf
un

di
sa

cc
ou

nt
ed

fo
rb

yp
ro

vi
di

ng
as

ep
ar

at
es

et
of

se
lf-

ba
la

nc
¡n

g
ac

co
un

is
, 

w
hi

ch
 c

on
st

¡t
ut

e 
its

 a
ss

et
s,

 
lra

br
lit

re
s.

 
ne

t 
as

se
ts

/fu
nd

 
eq

u¡
ty

, 
re

ve
nu

es
, 

an
d

ex
pe

nd
rt

uf
e/

ex
pe

ns
es

S
ep

ar
at

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts
 

ar
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 f
or

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
fu

nd
s 

an
d 

pr
op

rie
ta

ry
 

fu
nd

s,
 a

nd
 f

¡d
uc

la
ry

fu
nd

s,
ev

en
th

ou
gh

th
el

at
te

ra
re

ex
cl

ud
ed

fr
om

th
eg

ov
el

nm
en

t-
w

id
ef

ln
an

cl
al

st
at

em
en

ts
 

M
al

or
in

di
vi

du
al

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l 

fu
nd

s 
an

d 
m

aj
or

 i
nd

iv
id

ua
l 

en
te

rp
ris

e 
fu

nd
s 

ar
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 a
s 

se
pa

ra
te

 
co

lu
m

ns
 

ìn

th
e 

fu
nd

 f
in

an
cr

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts

F
un

ds
 a

re
 o

rg
an

E
ed

 
as

 r
na

jo
r 

fu
nd

s 
or

 n
on

-m
aj

or
 

fu
nd

s 
w

ith
in

 t
he

 g
ov

er
nm

en
la

l 
an

d 
pr

op
rie

ta
ry

st
at

em
en

ts
 A

n 
em

ph
as

rs
 

rs
 p

la
ce

d 
on

 m
aj

or
 f

un
ds

 w
tth

ln
 t

he
 g

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l 

an
d 

pr
op

re
ta

ry
 c

at
eg

or
¡e

s 
A

fu
nd

 r
s 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 

m
aj

or
 i

f 
it 

is
 t

he
 p

nr
na

ry
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

fu
nd

 o
f 

th
e 

ci
ty

 o
r 

rn
ee

ts
 t

he
 f

ol
lo

w
ng

 c
rit

er
iâ

:

a 
T

ot
al

 a
ss

et
s,

 
liâ

b¡
l 
tle

s 
re

ve
nu

es
, 

or
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
s/

ex
pe

ns
es

 
of

 t
ha

t 
in

di
vl

du
aL

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l 

or

en
te

rp
fls

e 
fu

nd
 a

re
 a

t 
le

as
t 

1 
0%

 o
f 

th
e 

co
rr

es
po

nd
in

g 
to

ta
l 

fo
r 

al
l 

fu
nd

s 
of

 ih
at

 c
al

eg
or

y 
or

 t
yp

e

an
d

b 
T

he
 s

am
e 

el
em

en
t 

of
 t

he
 r

nd
iv

id
ua

l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
 f

un
d 

or
 e

nt
er

pr
is

e 
fu

nd
 t

hâ
t 

m
et

 t
he

 1
0%

 t
es

t 
¡s

at
 l

ea
st

 5
%

 o
f 

th
e 

co
rr

es
po

nd
in

g 
to

ta
l 

fo
r 

al
l 

go
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l 
an

d 
en

te
rp

r¡
se

 
fu

nd
s 

co
m

bi
ne

d

c 
ln

 a
dd

iti
on

, 
an

y 
ot

he
r 

go
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l 
or

 e
nt

er
pr

is
e 

fu
nd

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
ci

ty
 b

el
le

ve
s 

ls
 p

ad
lc

ul
ar

ly

rm
po

rla
nt

 t
o 

fin
an

cr
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
t 

us
eT

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 a

s 
a 

m
aj

or
 f

un
d

T
he

 c
 t

y 
re

po
rls

 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

rn
g 

m
al

or
 g

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l 

iu
nd

s

G
en

er
al

 
F

un
d 

- 
ac

co
un

ts
 

fo
r 

th
e 

ci
ty

's
 p

rim
ar

y 
op

er
at

 n
g 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 l
t 

is
 u

se
d 

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 

fo
r 

an
d

re
po

rt
 a

ll 
fin

an
cr

ai
 r

es
ou

tc
es

 
ex

ce
pt

 t
ho

se
 r

eq
ul

re
d 

to
 b

e 
ac

co
un

te
d 

fo
r 

an
d 

re
po

rt
ed

 
tn

an
ot

he
r 

fu
nd

G
en

er
al

 C
ap

 t
al

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
l-!

nd
 -

 a
cc

ou
ni

s 
fo

r 
an

d 
re

po
rt

s 
pr

oc
ee

ds
 f

ro
m

 lo
ng

-t
er

m
 

bo
rr

ow
 n

g

an
d 

ot
he

r 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

to
 b

e 
us

ed
 f

or
 c

ap
itê

l 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
pr

oj
ec

ts

T
he

 c
ity

 r
ep

or
ts

 
th

e 
fo

ilo
w

rn
g 

m
al

or
 e

nt
er

pr
is

e 
fu

nd
s:

E
 e

ct
ric

 L
ltÌ

lit
y 

- 
ac

co
un

ts
 

lo
r 

op
er

at
¡o

ns
 o

f 
ih

e 
el

ec
tn

c 
sy

st
em

W
at

er
 U

tli
rt

y 
- 

ac
co

un
ts

 
fo

r 
op

er
at

 o
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

w
êt

er
 s

ys
te

m
S

ew
er

 U
til

rt
y 

- 
ac

co
un

ts
 

fo
r 

op
er

at
io

ns
 

of
 t

he
 s

ew
er

 s
ys

te
m

S
to

rm
w

at
er

 
U

til
rt

y 
- 

ac
co

un
ts

 
lo

r 
op

er
at

ro
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

st
or

m
w

al
er

 
sy

st
em

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 R

IV
E

R
 F

A
LL

S

N
O

T
E

S
 T

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

S
T

A
T

E
I\4

E
N

T
S

A
s 

of
 a

nd
 f

or
 t

he
 Y

ea
r 

F
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 

20
1 

1

N
O

T
E

 
I 
- 

S
ur

lrM
A

R
y 

oF
 S

rG
N

rF
rc

A
ilr

 
A

cc
ou

N
T

lN
G

 P
oL

rc
lE

s 
(c

on
t 

)

B
, 

G
)V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
-W

D
E

 
A

N
D

 
F

uN
o 

F
tN

A
N

cl
aL

 S
T

A
T

E
M

E
¡{

IS
 

(c
on

t 
)

F
un

d 
F

in
an

c¡
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 (
co

nt
 )

T
he

 c
ity

 r
ep

or
ls

 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

no
n-

m
aj

or
 

go
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l 
an

d 
en

te
rp

ris
e 

fu
nd

s:

S
pe

cl
al

 R
ev

en
ue

 F
un

ds
 -

 u
se

d 
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 
fo

r 
an

d 
re

po
rt

 t
he

 p
ro

ce
ed

s 
ol

 s
pe

ci
fic

 
re

ve
nu

e
so

ur
ce

s 
(o

th
er

 t
ha

n 
m

al
or

 c
ap

ita
l 

pr
oj

ec
ts

) 
th

at
 a

re
 l

eg
al

ly
 r

es
tr

ic
te

d 
to

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

s 
fo

r
sp

ec
rf

re
d 

pu
rp

os
es

P
ar

ki
ng

 ¡
,4

et
er

s
R

ef
us

e/
S

ol
¡d

 W
as

te
S

ha
re

d 
R

id
e 

T
ax

i
M

ed
ia

 S
er

ul
ce

s
E

nv
tr

on
m

en
ta

l 
F

ee
T

ax
 l

nc
re

m
en

t 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

#4
T

ax
 l

nc
re

m
en

t 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

#6
T

ax
 l

nc
re

m
en

t 
D

is
tn

ct
 #

7
T

ax
 ln

cr
em

en
t 

D
is

tr
¡c

t 
#8

T
ax

 l
nc

re
m

en
t 

D
is

tíc
t 

#9

L¡
br

ar
y

R
ev

ol
vr

ng
 L

oa
Ìl

P
ar

k 
lm

pa
ct

 
F

ee
s

Lì
br

ar
y 

lm
pa

ct
 

F
ee

s
F

[e
 lm

pa
ct

 
F

ee
s

H
ou

si
ng

 R
es

er
ue

Li
br

ar
y 

T
ru

st
 F

un
d

T
ou

ris
m

 
an

d 
E

co
no

m
¡c

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
W

hi
te

la
il 

R
rd

ge
 C

or
po

ra
te

 
P

ar
k

D
eb

t 
S

ef
rr

ce
 

F
un

ds
 -

 u
se

d 
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 f
or

 a
nd

 r
ep

or
t 

th
e 

ac
cu

m
ul

at
¡o

n 
oi

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 

fo
r,

 a
nd

 t
he

pa
ym

en
t 

of
, 

ge
ne

ra
l 

lo
ng

ìe
rm

 d
eb

t 
pÍ

nc
ip

al
, 

in
te

re
st

, 
an

d 
re

la
te

d 
co

st
s

B
on

ds
N

ot
-.

s

C
ap

ita
l 

P
ro

je
ct

s 
F

un
ds

 -
 u

se
d 

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 

fo
r 

an
d 

re
po

rt
 f

 n
ên

ci
al

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 

to
 b

e 
us

ed
 f

or
 t

he

ac
qu

is
rlr

on
 o

r 
co

ns
tr

uc
ho

n 
of

 e
qu

rp
m

en
t 

an
d/

or
 m

al
or

 c
ap

ita
l 

fa
ci

lil
es

C
ap

ita
l 

E
qu

rp
m

en
t

Ë
nt

er
pr

is
e 

F
un

ds
 -

 m
ay

 b
e 

us
ed

 t
o 

re
po

rt
 a

ny
 a

ct
 v

ity
 f

or
 w

hl
ch

 a
 f

ee
 i

s 
ch

ar
ge

d 
to

 e
xt

er
na

l

us
es

 f
or

 g
oo

ds
 o

r 
se

rv
ic

es
, 

an
d 

m
us

t 
be

 u
se

d 
fo

r 
ac

tiv
itt

es
 w

h¡
ch

 m
ee

t 
ce

rt
ai

n 
de

bt
 o

r 
co

st
re

co
ve

ry
 c

nt
ef

la

A
m

bu
la

nc
e

ln
 a

dd
iti

on
, 

th
e 

ci
ty

 r
ep

or
ts

 t
he

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

fu
nd

 t
yp

e:

ln
te

rn
al

 
se

rv
ic

e 
fu

nd
s 

ar
e 

us
ed

 t
o 

ac
co

un
t 

fo
r 

an
d 

re
po

rt
 t

he
 f

ln
an

cl
ng

 o
f 

go
od

s 
or

 s
er

yi
ce

s 
pr

ov
ld

ed
 b

y

on
e 

de
pa

(m
e¡

t 
or

 a
ge

nc
y 

to
 o

th
er

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

 
or

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
of

 t
he

 c
ity

, 
or

 t
o 

ol
he

r 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l 

un
its

' 
on

a 
co

st
-r

er
m

bu
rs

em
en

t 
ba

s¡
s

C
rt

y 
H

al
l 

F
un

d

A
ge

nc
y 

fu
nd

s 
ar

e 
us

ed
 t

o 
ac

co
un

t 
io

r 
an

d 
re

po
rt

 a
ss

et
s 

he
ld

 b
y 

th
e 

ci
ty

 r
n 

a 
tr

us
te

e 
ca

pa
cl

ty
 o

r 
as

 a
n

ag
en

t 
fo

r 
in

di
vi

du
al

s 
pr

iv
at

e 
or

ga
n 

za
tlo

ns
, 

an
d/

or
 o

th
er

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
un

its

la
x 

C
o 

le
ct

io
n 

F
un

d

A-28



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 R

IV
E

R
 F

A
LL

S

N
O

T
E

S
 T

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

S
T

A
T

E
IV

IE
N

T
S

A
s 

of
 a

nd
 f

or
 t

he
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
( 

31
,2

01
1

N
O

T
E

 
I 
- 

S
U

M
M

Â
R

Y
 

O
F

 S
IG

N
IF

IC
A

N
T

 
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

IN
G

 
P

O
LI

C
IE

S
 

(C
O

N
t 

)

c 
M

E
A

S
U

R
E

M
E

N
T

 
F

oc
us

, 
B

Á
s/

s 
oF

A
cc

ou
N

T
tv

c,
 A

N
D

 F
tN

A
N

ct
aL

S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
 

P
R

E
sE

ilr
A

no
N

G
 o

v 
e 

rn
 m

 e
 n

 t-
W

 ¡d
e 

F
¡ n

 a
 n

 c
 i 
al

 S
ta

te
 m

 e
 n

ts

T
he

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t-

w
ld

e 
st

at
em

en
t 

of
 n

et
 a

ss
et

s 
an

d 
st

at
em

en
t 

of
 a

ct
iv

¡t
ie

s 
ar

e 
re

po
fte

d 
us

rn
g 

th
e 

ec
on

om
lc

re
so

!r
ce

sm
ea

su
re

m
en

tfo
cu

sa
nd

th
ea

cc
ru

al
ba

si
so

fa
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

U
nd

er
th

ea
cc

ru
al

ba
si

so
f

ac
co

un
tin

g,
 

re
ve

nu
es

 
ar

e 
re

co
gn

tz
ed

 w
he

n 
ea

rn
ed

 a
nd

 e
xp

en
se

s 
ar

e 
re

co
rd

ed
 w

he
n 

th
e 

lia
bl

lit
y 

s

in
cu

rr
ed

 o
r 

ec
on

om
rc

 
as

se
t 

us
ed

 R
ev

en
ue

s,
 

ex
pe

ns
es

, 
ga

 n
s,

 l
os

se
s,

 a
ss

et
s,

 a
nd

 l
la

bi
llh

es
 r

es
u 

t 
ng

 f
ro

m
ex

ch
an

ge
 

an
d 

ex
ch

an
ge

-li
ke

 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 

ar
e 

re
co

gn
iz

ed
 w

he
n 

th
e 

ex
ch

an
ge

 
ta

ke
s 

pl
ac

e 
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

ta
xe

s
ar

er
ec

og
nt

ze
da

sr
ev

en
ue

si
nt

he
ye

ar
fo

rw
hr

ch
th

ey
ar

el
ev

ie
d 

l-a
xe

sr
ec

ei
va

bl
ef

or
th

ef
ol

lo
w

rn
gy

ea
r

ar
e 

te
co

rd
ed

 
as

 r
ec

ei
va

bl
es

 
an

d 
de

fe
rf

ed
 r

ev
en

ue
 G

ra
nl

s 
an

d 
si

m
ila

r 
ite

m
s 

ar
e 

re
co

gn
rz

ed
 a

s 
re

ve
nu

e 
as

so
on

 a
s 

al
l 

el
ig

ib
¡li

ty
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 
im

po
se

d 
by

 t
he

 p
ro

vi
de

r 
ar

e 
m

et
 S

pe
ci

al
 a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 

ar
e 

re
co

rd
ed

 a
s

re
ve

nu
e 

w
he

n 
ea

rn
ed

 U
nb

r¡
le

d 
re

ce
 v

ab
le

s 
âr

e 
re

co
fd

ed
 

as
 r

ev
en

ue
s 

w
he

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 p

ro
vi

de
d

T
he

 b
us

in
es

s-
ty

pe
 

ac
tiv

¡t
le

s 
fo

llo
w

 a
ll 

pr
on

ou
nc

em
en

ts
 

ol
 t

he
 G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

B
oa

rd
an

d 
ha

ve
 e

le
ci

ed
 n

ol
 t

o 
fo

llo
w

 F
tn

an
c¡

al
 A

cc
ou

nt
 n

g 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 
B

oa
rd

 g
u¡

da
nc

e 
¡s

su
ed

 a
fte

r 
N

ov
em

be
r 

30
,

19
89

A
s 

a 
ge

ne
É

l 
ru

le
, 

lh
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

f 
tn

te
rf

un
d 

ac
tr

vi
ty

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
el

¡m
rn

at
ed

 lr
om

 t
he

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t-

w
id

e 
ftn

an
ct

al
st

at
em

en
ts

 
E

xc
ep

tio
ns

to
th

rs
ge

ne
ra

lru
le

ar
ec

ha
rg

es
be

tlv
ee

nt
he

ci
ty

's
ee

ct
ric

,w
at

er
an

ds
ew

er
ut

l¡t
ie

sa
nd

va
rio

us
ot

he
rf

un
ct

io
ns

ol
th

eg
ov

er
nm

en
t 

E
lim

in
at

io
no

fth
es

ec
ha

rg
es

w
ou

ld
di

st
o¡

1t
he

di
re

ct
 c

os
ts

 a
nd

 p
ro

gr
am

 
re

ve
nu

es
 

re
po

rt
ed

 f
or

 t
he

 v
ar

io
us

 f
un

qt
io

ns
 c

on
ce

rn
ed

F
un

d 
F

¡o
an

c¡
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

 f
un

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

ar
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 u
sr

ng
 t

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 f

in
an

ci
al

 t
es

ou
rc

es
 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t
fo

cu
s 

an
d 

lh
e 

m
od

rf
re

d 
ac

cr
ua

l 
ba

si
s 

of
 a

cc
ou

nt
rn

g 
R

ev
en

ue
s 

ar
e 

re
co

rd
ed

 w
he

n 
th

ey
 a

re
 b

ot
h

m
ea

su
ra

bl
e 

an
d 

av
ai

 a
bl

e 
A

va
ila

bl
e 

m
ea

ns
 c

ol
le

ct
lb

le
 

w
ìth

in
 t

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 p

er
io

d 
or

 s
oo

n 
en

ou
gh

 t
he

re
al

te
r

to
be

us
ed

to
pa

yl
ab

rlr
tr

es
of

th
ec

ur
re

nt
pe

ro
d 

F
or

th
rs

pu
rp

os
e 

th
ec

tty
co

ns
id

er
sr

ev
en

ue
st

ob
e

av
ai

la
bl

e 
if 

th
ey

 a
re

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
 w

ith
in

 s
rx

Ly
 
da

ys
 o

f 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 t
he

 c
ur

re
nt

 f
ts

ca
l 

pe
rio

d 
E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s 

ar
e

re
co

rd
ed

 
w

he
n 

th
e 

re
la

te
d 

lu
nd

 l
ìa

b 
lit

y 
is

 n
cu

rr
ed

, 
ex

ce
pt

 f
or

 u
nm

at
ur

ed
 

in
te

re
st

 o
n 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 d

eb
t,

cl
ar

m
s,

 lu
dg

m
en

ts
, 

co
m

pe
ns

at
ed

 
ab

se
nc

es
, 

an
d 

pe
ns

ro
n 

ex
pe

nd
 t

ur
es

, 
w

ht
ch

 a
re

 r
ec

or
de

d 
as

 a
 F

un
d

lia
bi

i¡t
y 

w
he

n 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 

to
 b

e 
pa

id
 w

¡t
h 

ex
pe

nd
ab

le
 

av
ai

¡a
bl

e 
fin

an
c¡

al
 r

es
ou

rc
es

P
ro

pe
dy

 t
ax

es
 a

re
 r

ec
or

de
d 

in
 t

he
 y

ea
r 

ev
 e

d 
as

 r
ec

e¡
va

bl
es

 â
nd

 d
ef

er
re

d 
re

ve
nu

es
 T

he
y 

ar
e 

re
co

gn
¡z

ed
as

 r
ev

en
ue

s 
rn

 lh
e 

su
cc

ee
dr

ng
 y

ea
r 

w
he

n 
se

ru
ic

es
 f

in
an

ce
d 

by
 t

he
 l

ev
y 

ar
e 

be
¡n

g 
pr

ov
id

ed

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 R

IV
E

R
 F

A
LL

S

N
O

T
E

S
 T

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
S

A
s 

of
 â

nd
 f

or
 l

he
 Y

ea
r 

Ë
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 

20
1'

1

N
O

T
E

 I
 - 

S
ut

ú[
1A

R
y 

oF
 s

rc
N

tF
tc

aN
T

 
A

cc
ou

N
lrN

G
 

P
oL

rc
rE

S
 

(c
on

t 
)

C
. 

M
E

A
9U

R
E

M
E

N
T

 
F

oc
us

, 
8Á

s/
s 

oF
 A

cc
ou

N
T

tN
G

, 
A

N
D

 F
tN

A
N

ct
A

L 
S

T
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

 
P

R
E

sE
ilr

A
zo

il 
(c

on
t 

)

F
un

d 
F

in
an

c¡
al

 S
ta

te
fie

nl
s 

(c
on

t 
)

ln
le

rg
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
a¡

ds
 a

nd
 g

ra
nt

s 
ar

e 
re

co
gn

iz
ed

 
as

 r
ev

en
ue

s 
in

 t
he

 p
er

io
d 

th
e 

c¡
ty

 r
s 

en
t¡

tle
d 

th
e

re
so

ur
ce

sa
nd

th
ea

m
ou

nt
sa

re
av

ar
la

bl
e 

A
m

ou
nt

so
w

ed
to

th
ec

ity
w

hr
ch

ar
en

ot
av

ar
la

bl
ea

re
re

co
rd

ed
as

 r
ec

ei
va

bl
es

 
an

d 
de

fe
rr

ed
 r

ev
en

ue
s 

A
m

ou
nt

s 
re

ce
¡v

ed
 p

r¡
or

 t
o 

th
e 

en
tii

le
m

en
t 

pe
rio

d 
ar

e 
al

so
 r

ec
or

de
d

as
 d

ef
er

re
d 

re
ve

nu
es

S
pe

c¡
al

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 
ar

e 
re

co
rd

ed
 a

s 
re

ve
nu

es
 w

he
n 

th
ey

 b
ec

om
e 

m
ea

su
ra

bl
e 

an
d 

av
ai

fa
bl

e 
as

 c
ur

re
nt

as
se

ts
 A

nn
ua

 i
ns

ta
l 

m
en

ts
 d

ue
 i

n 
fu

tu
re

 y
ea

rs
 â

re
 r

ef
le

ct
ed

 a
s 

re
ce

rv
ab

le
s 

an
d 

de
fe

Íe
d 

re
ve

nu
es

R
ev

en
ue

s 
su

sc
ep

tib
le

 
to

 a
cc

ru
al

 r
nc

 u
de

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
ta

xe
s,

 m
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
ta

xe
s,

 p
ub

l¡c
 c

hâ
rg

es
 

fo
r 

se
ru

ic
es

,
sp

ec
¡a

la
ss

es
sm

en
ts

a¡
di

nt
er

es
t 

O
th

er
ge

ne
ra

 
re

ve
nu

es
su

ch
as

fin
es

an
df

or
fe

il.
ur

es
,in

sp
ec

tio
nf

ee
s,

re
cr

ea
tr

on
 f

ee
s,

 a
nd

 m
is

ce
l 

an
eo

us
 r

ev
en

ue
s 

ar
e 

re
co

gn
ìz

ed
 w

he
n 

re
ce

iv
ed

 i
n 

ca
sh

 o
r 

w
he

n 
m

ea
su

E
bl

e
an

d 
av

a 
la

bl
e 

un
de

r 
th

e 
cn

te
na

 d
es

cn
be

d 
ab

ov
e

T
he

 c
ity

 r
ep

or
ts

 d
ef

er
re

d 
re

ve
¡u

es
 o

n 
ils

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
fu

nd
s 

ba
la

nc
e 

sh
ee

t 
D

ef
er

re
d 

re
ve

nu
es

 a
ris

e
fr

om
ta

xe
sl

ev
ie

dr
nt

he
cu

rr
en

ty
ea

rw
hi

ch
ar

ef
or

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
ye

ar
's

op
er

at
io

ns
 F

or
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
lfu

nd
fr

na
nc

a 
st

at
em

en
ts

,d
ef

er
re

dr
ev

en
ue

sa
ris

ew
he

na
po

te
nt

ia
lre

ve
nu

ed
oe

sn
ot

m
ee

tb
ot

ht
he

"m
ea

su
ra

bl
e"

an
d"

av
ai

la
bl

e'
cr

¡t
er

ia
fo

rr
ec

og
nt

on
rn

th
ec

ur
re

nt
pe

rio
d 

D
ef

er
re

dr
ev

en
ue

sa
ls

oa
fls

e
w

he
n 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
at

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 b

ef
or

e 
th

e 
cr

ty
 h

as
 a

 l
eg

al
 c

la
 m

 t
o 

th
em

, 
as

 w
he

n 
gr

an
t 

m
on

te
s 

at
e 

re
ce

lv
ed

pr
¡o

rt
ot

he
in

cu
rr

en
ce

of
qu

al
ify

in
ge

xp
en

di
tu

re
s 

ln
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

pe
rio

ds
,w

he
nb

ot
hr

ev
en

ue
re

co
gn

iti
on

cr
ite

ria
 a

re
 m

el
, 

or
 w

he
n 

th
e 

c¡
ly

 h
as

 a
 l

eg
al

 c
la

rm
 t

o 
th

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s,

 
th

e 
l¡a

br
lrt

y 
fo

r 
de

fe
Íe

d 
re

ve
nu

e 
s

re
m

ov
ed

 
fr

om
 t

he
 b

al
an

ce
 s

he
et

 a
nd

 r
ev

en
ue

 r
s 

re
co

gn
rz

ed

P
ro

pr
ie

ta
ry

 
an

d 
fid

uc
ra

ry
 l

un
d 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
tå

te
m

en
ts

 
ar

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 

us
in

g 
th

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 

re
so

ur
ce

s
m

ea
su

re
m

en
tfo

cu
sa

nd
th

ea
cc

ru
al

ba
sr

so
fa

cc
ou

nh
ng

,a
sd

es
cr

ib
ed

pr
ev

io
us

ly
rn

th
is

no
te

 
A

ge
nc

y
fu

nd
s 

fo
llo

w
 t

he
 a

cc
ru

al
 b

as
is

 o
F

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g,

 
an

d 
do

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
a 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

l 
fo

cu
s

T
he

 e
nt

er
pn

se
 

fu
nd

s 
fo

llo
w

 a
ll 

pr
on

ou
nc

em
en

ts
 

of
 t

he
 G

ov
er

nm
en

ìa
l 

A
cc

ou
nt

tn
g 

S
la

nd
ar

ds
 B

oa
rd

, 
an

d
ha

ve
 e

 e
ct

ed
 n

ot
 t

o 
fo

l 
ow

 F
in

an
cr

al
 A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 
B

oa
rd

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
rs

su
ed

 a
F

te
r 

N
ov

em
be

r 
30

,

19
89

 T
he

pr
op

ne
ta

ry
fu

nd
sd

rs
tr

ng
u¡

sh
op

er
at

ng
re

ve
nu

es
an

de
xp

en
se

sf
ro

m
ro

no
pe

ra
l¡n

gi
le

m
s

op
er

at
ln

g 
re

ve
nu

es
 a

nd
 e

xp
en

se
s 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 r
es

ul
t 

lro
m

 p
ro

vr
dr

ng
 s

er
ui

ce
s 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
rn

g 
an

d 
de

ltv
er

¡n
g

go
od

sr
nc

on
ne

ct
io

¡w
ith

ap
ro

pn
et

ar
yf

un
d'

sp
fln

ci
pa

lo
rì

go
rn

go
pe

ra
to

ns
 

T
he

pr
¡n

ci
pa

lo
pe

ra
tr

ng
re

ve
nu

es
 

oF
 t

he
 E

le
ct

ric
 U

tr
 r

ty
 W

at
er

 U
t 

lrt
y,

 S
ew

er
 U

til
rt

y,
 

S
to

rm
w

at
er

 
U

tr
l¡t

y,
 a

nd
 A

m
bu

la
nc

e 
fu

nd
 a

re
ch

ar
ge

s 
to

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

fo
r 

sa
le

s 
ên

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 S

pe
c 

aÌ
 a

ss
es

sn
ìe

nl
s 

ar
e 

re
co

rd
ed

 a
s 

re
ce

lv
ab

le
s 

an
d

co
nt

r¡
bu

tr
on

 r
ev

en
ue

 w
he

n 
ev

le
d 

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
ex

pe
ns

es
 

fo
r 

pr
op

r¡
et

ar
y 

lu
nd

s 
in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
co

st
 o

f 
sê

le
s 

an
d

se
rv

rc
es

, 
ad

m
in

ìs
tr

at
lv

e 
ex

pe
ns

es
, 

an
d 

de
pr

ec
ra

tio
n 

on
 c

ap
ita

l 
as

se
ts

 A
ll 

re
ve

nu
es

 a
nd

 e
xp

e¡
se

s 
no

t
m

ee
tin

g 
th

ls
 d

ef
rn

rt
ro

n 
ar

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 a

s 
no

no
pe

ra
tr

ng
 

re
ve

nu
es

 a
nd

 e
xp

en
se

s

A-29



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 R

IV
E

R
 F

Á
LL

S

N
O

T
E

S
 T

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
S

A
s 

of
 a

nd
 f

or
 t

he
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 

20
1 

1

N
O

T
E

 
I 
- 

S
U

M
M

A
R

y 
oF

 S
rc

N
rF

rc
aN

T
 A

cc
ou

N
T

rN
G

 P
oL

tc
rE

s 
(c

on
i 

)

C
. 

M
E

A
S

U
R

E
M

E
N

T
 

F
oc

us
, 

gA
sr

s 
oF

A
cc

ou
N

T
tN

G
, 

A
N

D
 F

tN
A

N
ct

A
L 

S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
 

P
qE

sE
ñr

,4
r/

ot
l 

(c
on

t 
)

A
ll 

F
¡n

an
c¡

al
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts

T
he

 p
re

pa
ra

tÌo
n 

of
 f

 ¡
sn

ci
al

 s
tâ

te
m

en
ts

 
in

 c
on

F
or

m
ity

 
w

ith
 g

en
er

al
ly

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
re

qu
ire

s 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
to

 m
ak

e 
es

tim
at

es
 

an
d 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 
th

at
 a

ffe
ct

 t
he

 r
ep

or
te

d 
am

ou
nt

s 
of

 a
ss

et
s 

an
d

l¡a
b¡

l¡t
es

an
dd

rs
co

su
re

of
co

nt
in

ge
nt

as
se

ts
an

dl
ra

bi
lit

re
sa

tth
ed

at
eo

fth
ef

in
an

cì
a 

st
at

em
en

ts
an

dt
he

re
po

de
d 

am
ou

nt
s 

of
 r

ev
en

ue
s 

an
d 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s/

ex
pe

ns
es

 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

re
po

rt
¡n

g 
pe

rio
d 

A
ct

ua
l 

re
su

lts
co

ul
d 

dl
ffe

r 
fr

om
 ih

os
e 

es
t¡

m
at

es

D
. 

A
ss

E
rÐ

 
Lt

A
B

tL
tT

tE
s,

 A
N

D
 N

E
T

A
S

S
E

T
S

O
R

E
O

U
,T

y

1.
 D

ep
os

its
 a

nd
 ln

ye
st

ø
en

fs

F
or

 p
ur

po
se

s 
of

 t
he

 s
ta

te
m

en
t 

of
 c

as
h 

flo
w

s,
 t

he
 c

ity
 c

on
si

de
rs

 
al

l h
ig

h 
y 

liq
ui

d 
rn

ve
st

r¡
en

ts
 

w
ith

 a
n 

in
iti

al
m

at
ur

ity
 o

f 
th

re
e 

m
on

th
s 

or
 ¡

es
s 

w
he

n 
ac

qu
rr

ed
 t

o 
be

 c
as

h 
eq

ur
va

le
nt

s

ln
ve

st
m

en
t 

of
 c

ity
 f

un
ds

 i
s 

re
st

ric
te

d 
by

 s
ta

te
 s

ta
tu

te
s 

A
va

rla
bl

e 
rn

ve
st

m
en

ts
 a

re
 l

im
ite

d 
to

a 
T

rm
e 

de
po

sr
ts

 t
n 

an
y 

cr
ed

¡t
 u

nr
on

, 
ba

nk
, 

sa
vr

ng
s 

ba
nk

 o
r 

tr
us

t 
co

m
pa

ny
 

m
at

ur
¡n

g 
rn

 t
hr

ee
 y

ea
rs

or
 l

es
s

b 
B

on
ds

 o
r 

se
cu

rit
ie

s 
of

 a
ny

 c
ou

nt
y 

c¡
ty

 d
ra

¡n
ag

e 
di

st
ric

t, 
te

ch
n 

ca
 c

ol
le

ge
 d

ls
tr

ic
t, 

vr
lla

ge
, 

to
w

n,
or

 s
ch

oo
 d

¡s
tr

ic
t 

of
 t

he
 s

ta
te

 A
ls

o,
 b

on
ds

 i
ss

ue
d 

by
 a

 l
oc

al
 e

xp
os

ih
on

 d
is

tr
ic

t, 
a 

lo
ca

l
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 

ba
se

ba
ll 

pa
rk

 d
rs

tr
¡c

t 
a 

lo
ca

l 
pr

ol
es

sr
on

al
 

fo
ot

ba
ll 

sl
ad

ru
m

 d
rs

tfl
ct

 a
 l

oc
al

 c
ul

tu
ra

l
ad

s 
di

st
rc

t 
th

e 
U

nr
ve

rs
rt

y 
of

 W
rs

co
ns

in
 

H
os

pi
ta

ls
 a

od
 C

 in
ic

s 
A

ut
ho

rit
y,

 o
r 

th
e 

W
rs

co
ns

in
A

er
os

pa
ce

 
A

ui
ho

rit
y

c 
B

on
ds

 o
r 

se
cu

r¡
tie

s 
is

su
ed

 o
r 

gu
ar

an
te

ed
 

by
 t

he
 f

ed
er

al
 g

ov
em

m
en

t

d 
T

he
 l

oc
al

 g
ov

er
nr

ne
nt

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
po

ol

e 
A

ny
 s

ec
ur

ity
 

m
al

uf
ln

g 
rn

 s
ev

en
 y

ea
rs

 o
r 

le
ss

 a
nd

 h
av

rn
g 

th
e 

hi
gh

es
t 

or
 s

ec
on

d 
hr

gh
es

t 
ra

tin
g

ca
te

go
ry

 
of

 a
 n

at
ro

na
lly

 r
ec

og
nr

ze
d 

ra
t¡

ng
 
ag

en
cy

f 
S

ec
uf

ltr
es

of
an

op
en

-e
nd

m
an

ag
em

en
t¡

nv
es

tm
en

tc
om

pa
ny

or
in

ve
st

m
en

ttr
us

l 
su

bj
ec

tto
va

rio
us

 c
on

d 
tio

ns
 a

nd
 i

nv
es

lrn
en

t 
op

tio
ns

g 
R

ep
ur

ch
as

e 
ag

re
em

en
ts

 
w

ith
 p

!b
 i

c 
de

po
sr

to
r¡

es
, 

w
ith

 c
er

ta
in

 c
on

di
tìo

ns

ln
ve

st
m

en
t 

of
 m

os
t 

tr
us

t 
fu

nd
s 

is
 r

eg
u 

at
ed

 þ
y 

C
ha

pt
er

 8
81

 o
f 

th
e 

W
is

co
ns

in
 

S
ta

tu
te

s 
ln

ve
st

m
en

t 
of

lib
ra

ry
 t

ru
st

 f
un

ds
 Ì

s 
re

gu
la

te
d 

by
 C

ha
pt

er
 

1 
12

 T
ho

se
 s

ec
tio

ns
 g

rv
e 

br
oa

d 
au

th
ot

ty
 t

o 
us

e 
su

ch
 f

un
ds

 t
o

ac
qu

ire
 
va

ro
us

 k
 n

ds
 o

f 
tn

ve
si

m
en

ts
 

rn
cl

ud
 n

g 
st

oc
ks

, 
bo

nd
s 

an
d 

de
be

nt
ur

es

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 R

IV
E

R
 F

A
LL

S

N
O

T
E

S
 T

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

S
T

A
T

E
fV

IE
N

T
S

A
s 

of
 a

nd
 f

or
 i

he
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 

20
1 

1

N
O

T
E

 I
 - 

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 

oF
 S

rG
N

rF
rc

aN
r 

A
cc

ou
N

rr
N

G
 P

oL
rc

tE
s 

(c
on

t 
)

D
, 

Á
ss

É
rs

, 
Lt

A
B

tL
rr

rE
s,

 
A

N
D

 N
E

T
.A

ss
E

rs
 o

R
 E

au
irv

(c
on

t 
)

1.
 

D
ep

os
¡t

s 
an

d 
ln

ve
st

ø
en

ts
 (

co
nt

 )

T
he

 c
ity

 h
as

 a
do

pl
ed

 
an

 i
nv

es
tm

en
t 

po
lic

y 
T

ha
l 

po
lrc

y 
co

nt
a¡

ns
 t

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
gu

id
el

in
es

:

C
us

to
di

al
 

C
re

d¡
t 

R
¡s

k

T
he

 c
ity

 r
eq

u¡
re

s 
th

at
 f

un
ds

 o
n 

de
po

si
i 

¡n
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 F
D

IC
 o

r 
F

S
LI

C
 l

im
¡t

s 
be

 s
ec

ur
ed

 b
y 

so
m

e 
fo

rm
 o

f
co

lla
te

ra
l 

T
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f 

th
e 

co
lla

te
ra

l 
w

ill
 n

ot
 b

e 
le

ss
 t

ha
n 

'1
 1

 0
%

 o
f 

ih
e 

fa
¡r

 m
ar

ke
t 

va
lu

e 
of

 t
he

 n
et

am
ou

nt
 

of
 p

ub
Ic

 f
u¡

ds
 s

ec
ur

ed

cr
ed

it 
R

is
k

T
he

 c
ity

 w
ill

 o
nl

y 
ìn

ve
st

 i
n 

th
e 

ly
pe

 o
f 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
al

lo
w

ab
le

 
by

 s
ta

te
 s

ta
tu

te
s 

as
 l

is
te

d 
ab

ov
e 

ln
 a

dd
Ìti

on
,

an
y 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
in

 c
om

m
er

cr
al

 
pa

pe
r 

an
d 

vâ
na

bl
e 

ra
te

 d
em

an
d 

no
te

s 
m

us
t 

ha
ve

 a
 r

at
in

g 
of

 A
-1

 o
r 

A
-2

 b
y

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
&

 P
oo

r's
 C

or
po

ra
tr

on
 o

t 
P

-1
 o

r 
P

-2
 b

y 
l\,

4o
od

y'
s 

In
ve

st
or

s'
 

S
er

ur
ce

 
at

 t
he

 t
rm

e 
of

 p
ur

ch
as

e
ln

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

rn
 f

ix
ed

 i
nc

om
e 

se
cu

rit
¡e

s 
m

ls
t 

ha
ve

 a
 m

¡n
im

um
 l

on
g-

te
rm

 
de

bt
 r

at
ln

g 
oF

 A
A

 b
y 

S
ta

nd
ar

d 
&

P
oo

r's
 C

or
po

ra
t¡

on
 

or
 A

a 
by

 l\
¡o

od
y'

s 
ln

ve
st

or
s'

 
S

er
ur

ce
s

C
on

ce
nt

ra
t¡

on
 

of
 C

re
d¡

t 
R

¡s
k

T
he

 c
ity

 w
¡li

 d
Ìv

er
si

fy
 r

nv
es

tm
en

ts
 a

cc
or

dr
ng

 t
o 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
rn

g 
lrm

its

N
o 

fin
an

ci
al

 
in

st
Ìtu

tio
ns

 
sh

al
l 

ho
ld

 m
or

e 
th

an
 '1

 5
%

 o
f 

th
e 

cj
ty

's
 r

nv
es

tm
en

t 
po

rt
fo

iio
 e

xc
lu

di
ng

 
sh

or
t'

te
rm

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
bo

nd
 p

ro
ce

ed
s

2 
l\4

on
ie

s 
de

po
si

te
d 

at
 a

n 
in

di
vi

du
al

 
fin

an
cr

al
 i

ns
tit

ut
ro

n 
sh

al
l 

no
t 

ex
ce

ed
 1

0%
 o

f 
th

e 
ca

pi
ta

l 
st

oc
k 

an
d

su
rp

lu
s 

ol
 t

ha
t 

in
sh

tu
tio

n

3 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 

pa
pe

r 
sh

al
l 

no
t 

ex
ce

ed
 1

 0
%

 o
f 

th
e 

ci
ty

's
 p

or
tfo

|o

4 
D

ep
os

iG
 

rn
 t

he
 W

is
co

ns
in

 S
ta

te
 l

nv
es

tm
en

t 
P

oo
i 

sh
al

l 
no

t 
ex

ce
ed

 5
0%

 o
fth

e 
nv

es
tm

en
l 

po
rlf

ol
¡o

,
w

ith
 t

he
 e

xc
ep

tio
n 

of
 a

nn
ua

l 
pr

op
er

ty
 t

ax
 c

ol
le

ct
¡o

ns
, 

w
hr

ch
 a

re
 g

en
er

al
ly

 r
nv

es
l.e

d 
fo

r 
30

 d
ay

s 
or

le
ss

5 
l-i

na
nc

in
g 

lo
r 

ci
ty

 p
ro

je
ct

s,
 

fo
r 

a 
te

rm
 n

ot
 m

or
e 

th
an

 i
iv

e 
ye

ar
s,

 s
ha

 I
 n

ot
 e

xc
ee

d 
15

%
 o

f 
th

e
po

rt
F

ol
io

T
ot

al
 h

o 
dr

ng
s 

of
 a

ny
 o

ne
 i

ss
ue

r 
m

ay
 n

ot
 e

xc
ee

d 
10

%
 o

f 
th

e 
m

ar
ke

t 
va

lu
e 

of
 t

he
 p

or
tfo

lio
 
al

 t
he

lrm
eo

fp
ur

ch
as

e 
w

rt
ht

he
ex

ce
pt

ro
no

fU
S

 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t¡
ss

ue
sl

ul
ly

gu
ar

an
te

ed
as

to
bo

th
pr

in
ci

pa
l 

an
d 

rn
te

re
st

 b
y 

th
e 

U
 S

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

or
 a

ge
nc

re
s 

th
er

eo
f

A-30



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 R

IV
E

R
 F

A
LL

S

N
O

T
E

S
 T

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

S
T

A
T

E
IV

IE
N

T
S

A
s 

of
 a

nd
 f

or
 t

he
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
 ,

 2
01

 1

N
O

T
E

 I
 - 

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 

oF
 S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 

A
cc

oU
N

T
IN

G
 

P
oL

Ic
IE

S
 

(c
on

t 
)

O
. 

A
ss

É
rs

, 
Lt

A
B

tL
tfl

E
s,

 a
N

D
 N

E
r 

A
ss

E
rs

 o
R

 E
ou

lry
 (

co
ni

 )

1.
 

D
ep

os
¡t

s 
an

d 
ln

ve
st

ne
nt

s 
(c

on
t 

)

ln
te

re
st

 
R

at
e 

R
is

k

lv
la

tu
r¡

t 
es

 o
f 

in
d¡

vi
du

al
 s

ec
un

ìr
es

 
m

us
t 

be
 in

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
iih

 S
ec

tio
n 

66
 0

60
3(

2)
 o

f 
W

is
co

ns
¡n

 S
ta

te
S

ta
tu

te
s 

P
er

th
is

S
ec

tr
on

,tr
m

ed
ep

os
its

m
ay

no
te

xc
ee

dt
hr

ee
ye

ar
s,

an
dd

eb
tth

at
rs

no
tg

ua
ra

nt
ee

da
s

to
 p

rin
cl

pa
l 

an
d 

in
te

re
st

 b
y 

th
e 

F
ed

er
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

or
 i

ts
 A

ge
nc

le
s,

 
or

 a
 W

rs
co

ns
rn

 m
un

¡c
ip

al
ity

 m
us

t
ha

ve
 a

 m
at

ur
ity

 
no

t 
m

or
e 

th
an

 s
ev

en
 y

ea
rs

ln
ve

st
nì

en
ts

 
ar

e 
st

at
ed

 a
t 

fa
ir 

va
lu

e,
 w

h¡
ch

 i
s 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 a

t 
w

h¡
ch

 ê
n 

¡n
ve

st
m

en
t 

co
ul

d 
be

 e
xc

ha
ng

ed
 

in
 a

cu
rr

en
t 

tr
an

sa
ct

io
n 

þe
tw

ee
n 

w
rll

ln
g 

pa
rt

ie
s 

F
ai

r 
va

lu
es

 a
re

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
qu

ot
ed

 m
ar

ke
t 

pr
¡c

es
 N

o

rn
ve

st
m

en
ts

ar
er

ep
or

te
da

ta
m

or
tiz

ed
co

st
 

A
dj

us
tm

en
ts

ne
ce

ss
ar

yt
or

ec
or

dr
nv

es
tm

en
ts

at
fa

irv
al

ue
ar

e
re

co
rd

ed
 

In
 t

he
 o

pe
râ

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

l 
as

 in
cr

ea
se

s 
or

 d
ec

re
as

es
 

in
 ¡

nv
es

tm
en

t 
in

co
m

e 
ln

ve
st

m
en

t 
ln

co
m

e
on

 c
om

m
ln

gl
ed

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 
of

 m
un

¡c
¡p

al
 a

cc
o!

nt
in

g 
fu

nd
s 

rs
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 a
ve

ra
ge

 b
al

an
ce

s

T
he

W
ls

co
ns

rn
Lo

câ
lG

ov
er

nm
en

tln
ve

st
m

en
tP

oo
l(L

G
IP

)is
pa

rt
of

th
eS

tå
te

ln
ve

st
m

en
tF

un
d(

S
lF

) 
an

d
is

 m
an

ag
ed

 
by

 t
he

 S
ta

te
 o

f 
W

¡s
co

ns
in

 
ln

ve
st

m
en

t 
B

oa
rd

 T
he

 S
IF

 ¡
s 

no
t 

re
g¡

st
er

ed
 w

¡t
h 

th
e 

S
ec

ur
ili

es
 

an
d

E
xc

ha
ng

eC
om

m
is

si
on

 
bu

to
pe

ra
te

su
nd

er
th

es
ta

tu
to

ry
au

th
of

lty
of

W
¡s

co
ns

in
C

ha
pt

er
25

 
T

he
S

lF
re

po
rt

s 
th

e 
fa

rr
 v

al
ue

 o
f 

rt
s 

un
de

rly
in

g 
as

se
ts

 a
nn

ua
lly

 P
ar

tr
ci

pa
nt

s 
¡n

 t
he

 L
G

IP
 h

av
e 

th
e 

rg
ht

 t
o 

w
ith

dr
aw

th
ei

rf
un

ds
in

to
ta

l 
on

on
ed

ay
's

no
tic

e 
A

tD
ec

em
be

r3
1,

20
11

, 
th

ef
ai

rv
ai

ue
of

 t
he

cì
ty

's
sh

ar
eo

f 
th

e
LG

IP
's

 a
ss

et
s 

w
as

 s
ub

st
an

tr
êl

ly
 

eq
ua

l 
to

 t
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 a
s 

re
po

rt
ed

 
rn

 i
he

se
 s

ta
ie

m
en

ts

S
ee

 N
ot

e 
lll

 A
 F

or
 f

ur
th

er
 

rn
fo

rm
at

Ío
n

2.
 R

ec
e¡

va
bl

es

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
ta

xe
s 

ar
e 

le
vi

ed
 n

 D
ec

em
be

r 
on

 t
he

 a
ss

es
se

d 
va

lu
e 

as
 o

f 
th

e 
pr

io
r 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1 
ln

 a
dd

it¡
on

 i
o

pr
op

er
ty

 t
ax

es
 f

or
 t

he
 c

riy
, 

ta
xe

s 
ar

e 
co

lle
ct

ed
 

fo
r 

an
d 

re
m

rt
te

d 
to

 t
he

 s
ta

te
 a

nd
 c

ou
nt

y 
go

ve
rn

m
e¡

ts
 a

s
w

el
 a

s 
th

e 
lo

ca
l 

sc
ho

ol
 d

rs
tr

ct
 a

nd
 t

ec
hn

Ìc
âl

 c
ol

le
ge

 d
¡s

tr
Ìc

t 
T

ax
es

 f
or

 a
ll 

st
at

e 
an

d 
lo

ca
l 

go
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l
un

its
 b

ill
ed

 r
n 

th
e 

cu
rr

ef
t 

ye
ar

 f
or

 t
he

 s
uc

ce
ed

in
g 

ye
ar

 a
re

 r
ef

 e
ct

ed
 a

s 
re

ce
rv

ab
le

s 
an

d 
du

e 
to

 o
th

er
 t

ax
in

g
un

its
 o

n 
th

e 
ac

co
m

pa
ny

 
ng

 a
ge

nc
y 

fu
nd

 b
al

an
ce

 s
he

et

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
ta

x 
ca

le
nd

ar
 
- 

20
1 

1 
ta

x 
ro

ll

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 R

IV
E

R
 F

A
LL

S

N
O

T
E

S
 T

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

S
T

A
T

E
I\¡

E
N

T
S

A
s 

of
 a

nd
 f

or
 t

he
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 

20
1 

1

N
O

T
E

 I
 - 

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 

oF
 S

rc
N

rF
rc

A
N

T
 A

cc
ou

N
T

rN
G

 
P

oL
rc

rE
s 

(c
on

t 
)

D
- 

4s
sE

rq
 L

,¡
ar

Ll
rr

E
E

 
ai

lD
 N

E
rÁ

ss
E

rs
 

oR
 E

ou
lry

 (
co

nt
 )

2.
 R

ec
e¡

va
bl

es
 (

co
nl

 )

A
cc

ou
nt

sr
ec

ei
va

bl
eh

av
eb

ee
ns

ho
w

nn
et

of
an

a¡
lo

w
an

ce
fo

ru
nc

ol
le

ct
ib

le
ac

co
un

ts
 

D
el

in
qu

en
tr

ea
l

es
ta

te
 t

ax
es

 a
s 

of
 J

ul
y 

31
 a

re
 p

âi
d 

in
 f

ul
l 

by
 t

he
 c

ou
nl

y 
w

hi
ch

 a
ss

um
es

 
th

e 
co

lle
ct

io
n 

th
er

eo
f 

N
o 

pr
ov

is
io

n
fo

r 
un

co
lle

ct
ib

le
 

ac
co

un
ts

 
re

ce
iv

ab
le

 
ha

s 
be

en
 m

ad
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

el
ec

tr
ic

, 
w

at
er

, 
or

 s
ew

er
 u

til
itr

es
 b

ec
au

se
 t

he
y

ha
ve

 t
he

 r
ig

ht
 b

y 
la

w
 t

o 
pl

ac
e 

de
lin

qu
en

t 
bi

lls
 o

n 
th

e 
ta

x 
ro

l¡

D
ur

in
g 

th
e 

co
ur

se
 o

f 
op

er
at

¡o
ns

, 
tr

an
sa

ct
ro

ns
 

oc
cu

r 
be

tw
ee

n 
rn

dj
vi

du
al

 F
un

ds
 t

ha
t 

m
ay

 r
es

u¡
t 

rn
 a

m
ou

nt
s

ow
ed

 b
et

w
ee

n 
fu

nd
s 

S
ho

rt
le

rm
 

in
te

rf
un

d 
lo

an
s 

ar
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 ê
s 

"d
ue

 t
o 

an
d 

fr
om

 o
th

er
 f

un
ds

 "
 L

on
gl

er
m

in
te

rf
un

d 
lo

an
s 

(n
on

cu
rr

en
t 

po
rt

¡o
n)

 a
re

 r
ep

or
te

d 
as

 "
ad

va
nc

es
 

fr
om

 a
nd

 t
o 

ot
he

r 
fu

nd
s'

 ln
te

rf
un

d
re

ce
iv

ab
le

s 
an

d 
pa

ya
bl

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

fu
nd

s 
w

rt
hi

n 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l 

ac
t 

vi
tie

s 
ar

e 
el

im
in

at
ed

 
in

 t
he

 s
ta

te
m

en
t 

of
ne

t 
as

se
ts

 A
ny

 r
es

id
ua

l 
ba

la
nc

es
 o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

be
lw

ee
n 

th
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l 
ac

t¡
vi

tle
s 

an
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

-t
yp

e
ac

tiv
¡t

¡e
s 

ar
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 i
n 

th
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
i-w

rd
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

 
as

 "
¡n

te
rn

al
 b

a 
an

ce
s"

ln
th

eg
ov

er
nm

en
ta

lfu
nd

fin
an

ci
a 

si
at

em
en

ts
,a

dv
an

ce
st

oo
th

er
fu

nd
sâ

re
of

fs
et

eq
ua

ly
by

a
no

ns
pe

nd
ab

le
 

fu
nd

 b
al

an
ce

 a
cc

ou
nt

 w
hi

ch
 i

nd
¡c

at
es

 t
ha

t 
th

ey
 d

o 
no

t 
co

ns
tìt

ut
e 

ex
pe

nd
ab

le
 

av
åì

la
þl

e
f¡

na
nc

ra
l 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
an

d,
 t

he
re

fo
re

, 
ar

e 
no

t 
av

ar
la

bl
e 

fo
r 

ap
pr

op
na

t¡
on

ln
 2

00
1,

 t
he

 c
ity

 b
eg

an
 a

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 
re

vo
lv

in
g 

lo
an

 p
ro

gr
am

 
to

 h
el

p 
fin

an
ce

 
th

e 
pu

rc
ha

se
 â

nd
/o

r
re

no
va

tio
no

fb
ur

ld
rn

gs
rn

th
ed

ow
nt

ow
nb

us
in

es
sd

rs
tfl

ct
 

T
he

ba
la

nc
eo

fth
es

el
oa

ns
at

ye
ar

en
dw

as
$8

2,
30

8 
T

he
 c

ity
 r

ec
or

ds
 a

 l
oa

n 
re

ce
iv

ab
le

 w
he

n 
th

e 
lo

an
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
an

d 
fu

nd
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n
di

sb
ur

se
d

Iti
st

he
ci

ty
's

po
ic

yt
or

ec
or

dd
ef

er
re

dr
ev

en
ue

fo
rt

he
ne

ta
m

ou
nt

of
th

er
ec

ei
va

bl
eb

al
an

ce
 

A
sl

oa
ns

ar
e

re
pa

td
, 

re
ve

nu
e 

is
 r

ec
og

ni
ze

d 
W

he
n 

ne
w

 l
oa

ns
 a

re
 m

ad
e 

fr
om

 t
he

 r
ep

ay
m

en
ts

, 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s 
ar

e
re

co
rd

ed
 l

nt
er

es
t 

re
ce

iv
ed

 f
ro

m
 lo

an
 r

ep
ay

m
en

ts
 

is
 r

ec
og

ni
ze

d 
as

 r
ev

en
ue

 w
he

n 
re

ce
iv

ed
 i

n 
ca

sh
 A

ny
un

sp
en

t 
lo

an
 r

ep
ay

m
en

ts
 

at
 y

ea
r 

en
d 

ar
e 

pr
es

en
te

d 
as

 d
es

ig
na

ie
d 

fu
nd

 b
al

an
ce

 t
n 

th
e 

fu
nd

 f
rn

an
ct

al
st

at
em

en
ts

3 
ln

ve
nt

or
¡e

s 
an

d 
P

re
pa

¡d
 l

te
m

s

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
iu

nd
 r

nv
en

io
ry

 r
te

rn
s 

ar
e 

ch
ar

ge
d 

to
 e

xp
en

di
lu

re
 

ac
co

un
ts

 
w

ire
n 

pu
rc

ha
se

d 
Y

ea
r-

en
d

rn
ve

nt
or

y 
w

ês
 n

ot
 s

ig
nd

ic
an

t 
P

ro
pr

¡e
ta

ry
 f

un
d 

rn
ve

nt
od

es
 a

re
 g

en
er

i¡l
ly

 
us

ed
 f

ot
 c

on
st

ru
cÌ

to
n 

an
d 

fo
r

op
er

ât
io

na
nd

m
ai

nl
en

an
ce

w
or

k 
T

he
ya

re
no

tfo
rr

es
al

e 
fh

ey
ar

ev
al

ue
da

tth
el

ow
er

of
co

st
or

m
ar

ke
t

ut
rlr

zn
g 

th
e 

êv
er

ag
e 

co
st

 m
et

ho
d 

an
d 

ch
ar

ge
d 

to
 c

on
st

ru
ct

ro
n 

or
 o

pe
ra

tr
on

 a
nd

 m
a 

nt
er

an
ce

 e
xp

en
se

w
he

n 
us

ed

C
er

ta
in

 p
ay

m
en

ts
 t

o 
ve

nd
or

s 
re

fle
ct

 c
os

ts
 a

pp
 r

ca
bl

e 
to

 f
ut

ur
e 

ac
co

un
tr

ng
 

pe
rio

ds
 a

nd
 a

re
 r

ec
or

de
d 

as
pr

ep
aL

d 
rt

em
s 

rn
 b

ot
h 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t-

w
id

e 
an

d 
fu

nd
 f

rn
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

Lr
ef

 d
at

e 
an

d 
le

vy
 d

at
e

T
ax

 b
rll

s 
m

ai
ed

P
ay

m
en

t 
rn

 fu
ll 

or
F

irs
t 

rn
st

al
 r

ne
nt

 d
ue

S
ec

on
d 

fs
ta

l 
m

en
t 

du
e

P
er

so
na

l 
pr

op
er

ty
 t

ax
es

 i
n 

tu
 I

T
ax

sa
e-

20
11

 d
e|

fq
ue

nt
re

al
 e

st
at

e 
ta

xe
s

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

1 
1

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

1 
1

Ja
ua

ty
 3

1,
20

12
Ja

nu
ar

y 
31

,2
41

2
Ju

ly
 3

1,
 2

01
2

Ja
nu

at
y 

31
 2

01
2

O
ct

ob
er

 2
0'

14

A-31



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 R

IV
E

R
 F

A
LL

S
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 R
IV

E
R

 F
A

LL
S

N
O

T
E

S
 T

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

S
T

A
ÍE

N
/lE

N
T

S
A

s 
of

 a
nd

 f
or

 t
he

 Y
ea

r 
E

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 
20

 1
 1

N
O

T
E

 I
 - 

S
ut

vt
M

A
R

y 
oF

 S
tG

N
rF

tc
Á

N
T

 
A

cc
ou

N
T

tN
G

 P
ol

rc
tE

s 
(c

on
t 

)

O
 

Á
ss

E
rE

 L
/¡

s,
L,

¡/
E

s,
 

Á
^/

D
 /

V
E

¡.
A

ss
E

rs
 

oR
 E

ou
lrv

(c
on

t 
)

6.
 O

th
er

A
ss

ef
s

ln
 g

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l 

fu
nd

s,
 d

eb
t 

is
su

an
ce

 
co

st
s 

ar
e 

Íe
co

gn
rz

ed
 a

s 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s 
¡n

 t
he

 c
ur

re
fi 

pe
r¡

od
 F

or
 t

he
go

ve
rn

m
en

t-
w

¡d
e 

an
d 

th
e 

pf
op

rie
ta

ry
 

fu
nd

 t
yp

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, 

de
bt

 i
ss

ua
nc

e 
co

st
s 

ar
e 

de
fe

rr
ed

 
an

d
am

or
tiz

ed
 

ov
er

 t
he

 t
er

m
 o

f 
th

e 
de

bt
 i

ss
ue

T
he

 c
rt

y 
rs

 a
 m

em
be

r 
of

 t
he

 W
es

t 
C

en
tr

al
 W

is
co

ns
in

 
B

 o
so

lrd
s 

F
ac

i 
iL

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
tr

ea
tm

en
t, 

dr
sp

os
al

,
re

cy
cl

in
gâ

nd
/o

rs
al

eo
fb

io
so

lid
s 

A
sD

ec
em

be
r3

1,
20

11
 t

he
in

ve
st

m
en

tb
a¡

an
ce

in
th

ef
ac

ili
ty

w
as

94
69

,3
87 7.
 C

om
pe

ns
at

ed
 

A
bs

en
ce

s

U
nd

er
 t

er
m

s 
of

 e
m

p 
oy

m
en

t, 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

ar
e 

gr
an

te
d 

si
ck

 l
ea

ve
, 

va
ca

t¡
on

s,
 a

nd
 c

om
pe

ns
at

ìo
n 

t¡
m

e 
1¡

va
ry

in
g 

am
ou

nt
s 

O
nl

y 
be

ne
fr

ts
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
to

 b
e 

ve
st

ed
 a

re
 d

rs
cl

os
ed

 r
n 

th
es

e 
st

at
em

en
ts

A
ll 

ve
sl

ed
 s

ic
k 

le
av

e,
 v

ac
at

 o
n,

 a
nd

 c
om

pe
ns

at
¡o

n 
t 

m
e 

pa
y 

rs
 a

cc
ru

ed
 w

he
n 

in
cu

rr
ed

 
rn

 t
he

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t-

w
rd

e,
 p

ro
pr

ie
ta

ry
, 

an
d 

fid
uc

ia
ry

 f
un

d 
tin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 A

 li
ab

il¡
ty

 
fo

r 
th

es
e 

am
ou

nt
s 

is
 r

ep
or

te
d 

in
go

ve
rn

m
en

tê
lfu

nd
so

nl
y 

lth
ey

ha
ve

m
at

ur
ed

,fo
re

xa
m

pl
e,

as
ar

es
ul

to
fe

m
pl

oy
ee

re
sÌ

gn
al

io
ns

an
d

te
tir

em
en

ts
 o

r 
ar

e 
pa

ya
b 

e 
w

rt
h 

ex
pe

nd
ab

le
 

av
ar

la
bl

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s

P
ay

m
en

ts
 

fo
r 

va
ca

tio
n 

a¡
d 

si
ck

 l
ea

ve
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

at
 r

at
es

 i
n 

et
fe

ct
 w

he
n 

th
e 

be
ne

fr
ts

 a
re

 u
se

d
A

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 

va
ca

tìo
n 

an
d 

s¡
ck

 le
av

e 
lra

b¡
lit

ie
s 

at
 ll

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 

20
1'

1 
ar

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 
on

 t
he

 b
as

 s
 o

f
cu

rr
en

t 
sa

la
ry

 r
at

es
 a

nd
 i

nc
¡u

de
 s

al
ar

y 
re

la
te

d 
pa

ym
en

ts

B
. 

Lo
ng

-T
er

m
 O

bl
ig

at
¡o

ns
/C

on
du

¡t
 

D
eb

t

A
ll 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 

ob
lrg

ât
 

on
s 

to
 b

e 
re

pa
 d

 f
ro

m
 g

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l 

ar
d 

bu
s 

fe
ss

-t
yp

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

ar
e 

re
po

rle
d 

as
lia

bi
ijt

ie
s 

rr
 t

he
 g

ov
er

nm
en

lw
id

e 
st

at
em

en
ts

 '
l-h

e 
on

g-
te

rm
 

ob
 ig

at
io

f 
s 

co
ns

is
t 

pr
¡m

an
ly

 o
f 

no
te

s 
an

d
bo

nd
s 

pa
ya

bl
e 

an
d 

ac
cr

ue
d 

co
m

pe
ns

at
ed

 
ab

se
nc

es

Lo
ng

-t
er

m
 

ob
lig

at
ro

ns
 f

or
 g

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l 

fu
nd

s 
ar

e 
no

t 
re

po
rt

ed
 a

s 
ija

b 
lit

¡e
s 

rn
 t

he
 f

un
d 

F
in

an
ci

al

st
at

em
en

ts
 I

he
fa

ce
va

lu
eo

fd
eb

ts
(D

lu
sa

ny
pr

em
ru

m
s)

ar
er

ep
or

te
da

so
th

er
fr

na
nc

rn
gs

ou
rc

es
an

d
pa

ym
en

ts
 

of
 p

n¡
qp

al
 a

nd
 i

nt
er

es
t 

ar
e 

re
po

rle
d 

as
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
s 

T
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

¡n
g 

rn
 p

ro
pr

ie
ta

ry
 

fu
nd

s 
rs

 L
he

sa
m

e 
as

 r
t 

s 
tn

 t
he

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t-

w
id

e 
st

at
en

en
ts

f-
or

 t
he

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t-

w
id

e 
st

at
em

en
ts

 
an

d 
pr

op
rie

l.a
ry

 f
un

d 
st

at
em

en
ts

, 
bo

nd
 p

re
m

rL
rm

s 
an

d 
di

sc
ou

nt
s 

ar
e

de
fe

rr
ed

 
an

d 
am

or
tiz

ed
 

ov
er

 l
he

 l
ife

 o
f 

th
e 

is
su

e 
us

in
g 

th
e 

sk
al

gh
lli

ne
 

m
et

ho
d 

G
ai

ns
 o

r 
lo

ss
es

 o
n 

pí
or

re
fu

nd
in

gs
ar

ea
m

od
iz

ed
ov

er
th

er
em

ar
nr

ng
Ilè

of
th

eo
ld

de
bt

,o
rt

he
llf

eo
fth

en
ew

de
bt

 
w

hi
ch

ev
er

s
sh

or
te

r 
T

lre
 b

al
an

ce
 a

t 
ye

ar
 e

nd
 f

or
 b

ot
h 

pr
em

iu
m

s/
di

sc
ou

nt
s 

an
d 

ga
in

s/
lo

ss
es

, 
as

 a
pp

 i
ca

þl
e,

 i
s 

sh
ow

n
as

 a
n 

nc
re

as
e 

or
 d

ec
re

as
e 

in
 t

he
 r

ab
rl¡

ty
 s

ec
¡o

n 
of

 t
he

 s
ta

te
m

en
t 

of
 n

et
 a

ss
et

s

T
he

 c
rt

y 
ha

s 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 

th
e 

rs
su

an
ce

 o
f 

rn
du

st
r¡

al
 r

ev
en

ue
 b

on
ds

 (
lR

B
) 

fo
r 

th
e 

be
ne

fit
 o

f 
pr

iv
at

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
en

te
rp

ris
es

 I
R

B
 s

 a
re

 s
ec

ur
ed

 
by

 m
or

tg
ag

es
 

or
 r

ev
en

ue
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 

on
 t

he
 a

ss
oc

ra
te

d 
pr

ol
ec

ts
 a

nd
 d

o
no

t 
co

ns
tr

tu
te

 r
nd

eb
te

dn
es

s 
oF

 t
he

 c
ity

 A
cc

or
di

ng
ly

, 
th

e 
tr

on
ds

 a
re

 n
ot

 r
ep

or
te

d 
as

 |
la

br
lit

ie
s 

in
 t

he
ac

co
m

pa
fy

rn
g 

f¡
na

nc
ra

l 
st

at
em

en
ts

 T
he

 t
ot

al
 a

m
ou

nt
 

of
 I

R
B

 s
 o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

at
 t

he
 e

nd
 o

l 
th

e 
ye

ar
 i

s

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
$8

,3
40

,0
00

, 
m

ad
e 

up
 o

Í 
fo

ur
 r

ss
ue

s

N
O

T
E

S
 T

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

S
T

A
T

E
I\4

E
N

T
S

A
s 

of
 a

nd
 f

or
 t

he
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
, 

20
 1

 1

N
O

T
E

 
I 
- 

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 

oF
 S

¡G
N

IF
IC

A
N

T
 

A
cc

oU
N

T
IN

G
 

P
oL

Ic
iE

s 
(c

on
t 

)

D
. 

.A
ss

E
¡s

, 
Lt

A
B

lL
tT

tE
s,

 
A

N
D

 N
E

f 
A

ss
E

rs
 o

R
 E

au
l¡y

 (
co

nt
 )

4.
 R

es
tr

ic
fe

dA
ss

et
s

l\4
an

da
to

ry
 s

eg
re

ga
tr

on
s 

of
 a

ss
et

s 
ar

e 
pr

es
en

te
d 

as
 r

es
tr

ic
te

d 
as

se
ts

 S
uc

h 
se

gr
eg

at
ro

ns
 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
bo

nd
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
ex

te
rn

al
 

pa
rt

ie
s 

C
ur

re
nt

 l
ia

bi
lit

ie
s 

pa
ya

bl
e 

iro
m

 t
he

se
 r

es
tr

ic
te

d 
as

se
ts

 a
re

 s
o

cl
as

si
f¡

ed
 T

he
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 r
es

tr
ic

te
d 

as
se

ts
 o

ve
r 

cu
rr

en
t 

lia
b¡

lit
ie

s 
pa

ya
bl

e 
fr

om
 r

es
tr

ic
te

d 
as

se
ts

 w
rll

 b
e

us
ed

fir
st

fo
rr

et
ire

m
en

to
fr

el
at

ed
lo

ng
-t

er
m

de
bt

 
T

he
re

m
a¡

nd
er

 
ifg

en
er

at
ed

fr
om

ea
rn

in
gs

 
is

sh
ow

na
s

re
st

r¡
ct

ed
 n

et
 a

ss
et

s

5.
 C

ap
lta

l,A
ss

et
s

G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

-W
¡d

e 
S

Ía
tê

ø
sn

fs

C
ap

¡t
al

 a
ss

et
s,

 w
hr

ch
 i

nc
lu

de
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

pl
an

t 
an

d 
eq

ur
pm

e¡
t 

ar
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 
in

 t
he

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t-

w
rd

e 
fr

na
nc

ia
l

st
at

em
en

ts
 
C

ap
ita

la
ss

et
sa

re
de

f¡
ne

db
yt

he
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
sa

ss
et

sw
th

an
in

itì
al

co
st

of
m

or
et

ha
n

$5
,0

00
 

fo
r 

ge
ne

ra
l 

ca
pi

ta
l 

as
se

ts
 a

¡d
 $

1 
00

,0
00

 f
or

 i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

as
se

ts
, 

an
d 

an
 e

st
im

at
ed

 
us

ef
ul

 l
fe

 in
ex

ce
ss

 
of

 o
ne

 y
ea

r 
A

ll 
ca

pL
ta

l 
as

se
is

 a
re

 v
a 

ue
d 

at
 h

rs
[o

ric
al

 c
os

t, 
or

 e
st

rm
at

ed
 h

rs
to

Íc
al

 
co

st
 rf

 a
ct

ua
am

ou
nt

sa
re

un
av

ai
la

bl
e 

D
on

at
ed

ca
pt

al
as

se
ts

ar
er

ec
or

de
da

tth
ei

re
st

lm
at

ed
fa

irv
ai

ue
al

th
ed

at
eo

F
do

na
tio

n

A
dd

rt
ro

ns
 t

o 
an

d 
re

pl
ac

em
en

ts
 

of
 c

ap
ita

l 
as

se
G

 o
f 

bu
s¡

ne
ss

ìy
pe

 a
ct

iv
it¡

es
 a

re
 r

ec
or

de
d 

at
 o

flg
¡n

al
 c

os
t,

w
hr

ch
 ¡

nc
lu

de
s 

m
at

er
ia

l, 
la

bo
r,

 o
ve

rh
ea

d,
 

an
d 

an
 â

llo
w

an
ce

 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

sl
 o

f 
fu

nd
s 

us
ed

 d
un

ng
 c

on
st

ru
ci

io
n

w
he

n 
si

gn
if¡

ca
nt

 F
or

 t
ax

-e
xe

m
pt

 
de

bt
, 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 

of
 i

nt
er

es
t 

ca
pr

ta
fr

ze
d 

eq
ua

ls
 t

he
 r

nt
er

es
t 

ex
pe

ns
e

rn
cu

rr
ed

 d
un

ng
 c

on
st

ru
ct

to
n 

ne
tte

d 
ag

at
ns

t 
an

y 
In

te
re

st
 r

ev
en

ue
 f

ro
m

 t
em

po
ta

ry
 

rn
ve

st
m

en
t 

of
 b

or
ro

w
ed

fu
nd

pr
oc

ee
ds

 T
he

co
st

ot
re

ne
w

a¡
sa

nd
be

tte
rm

en
ts

re
la

tin
gt

or
et

ire
m

en
iu

ni
ts

/s
ad

de
dt

op
la

nt
ac

co
un

ls
 

T
he

co
sl

of
pr

op
er

ty
re

pl
ac

ed
,r

et
rr

ed
or

ot
he

M
is

ed
is

po
se

do
f,r

sd
ed

uc
te

df
ro

m
pa

nt
ac

co
un

ts
an

d 
ge

ne
ra

lly
, 

to
ge

th
er

 
w

rt
h 

re
m

ov
al

 
co

st
s 

le
ss

 s
al

va
ge

, 
¡s

 c
hâ

rg
ed

 t
o 

ac
cu

m
ul

al
ed

 
de

pr
ec

ia
tio

n

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n 
af

d 
am

or
tiz

at
io

n 
of

 a
ll 

ex
ha

us
hb

le
 

ca
pr

ta
l 

as
se

ts
 r

s 
re

co
rd

ed
 

as
 a

n 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

ex
pe

¡s
e 

rn
 t

he
st

at
em

en
to

fa
ct

rv
rt

re
s 

w
ith

ac
cu

m
ul

at
ed

de
pr

ec
ra

tr
on

an
da

m
oT

tr
za

tr
on

re
tle

ct
ed

rn
th

es
ta

te
m

en
to

fn
et

âs
se

ts
 D

ep
re

ci
at

ro
n 

an
d 

ar
no

rt
iz

at
io

n 
is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
ov

er
 t

he
 a

ss
et

s'
 

es
tÌm

at
ed

 
us

ef
ui

 l
iv

es
 u

sr
ng

 ih
e

st
ra

ig
ht

-lr
ne

m
et

ho
do

fd
ep

re
cl

at
io

n 
T

he
ra

ng
eo

fe
st

rm
at

ed
us

ef
ul

llv
es

by
ty

pe
of

as
se

tis
as

fo
llo

w
s

B
ui

ld
 n

gs
 

25
-7

5 
Y

ea
rs

La
nd

 lm
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
2s

Y
ea

ts
lú

ac
h 

ne
ry

 a
nd

 E
qu

 p
m

en
t 

'1
0-

40
 Y

ea
rs

ln
fr

as
tr

uc
lu

re
 

50
 7

0 
Y

ea
rs

U
til

 t
y 
S

ys
te

m
 

4-
10

0 
Y

ea
rs

ln
ta

ng
rb

le
s 

3-
20

 Y
eâ

rs

F
un

d 
F

in
an

c¡
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

ln
 t

he
 f

un
d 

fin
an

cr
a 

st
at

em
en

ts
, 

ca
pi

ta
l 

as
se

ts
 u

se
d 

n 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l 

fu
nd

 o
pe

ra
tto

ns
 

ar
e 

ac
co

un
te

d 
lo

r 
as

ca
pr

ta
l 

ou
tla

y 
ex

pe
nd

rt
ur

es
 

of
 t

he
 g

ov
ef

nm
en

tâ
l 

fu
nd

 u
po

n 
âc

qu
rs

itr
on

 
C

ap
rt

al
 a

ss
et

s 
us

ed
 r

n 
pr

op
fle

ta
ry

fu
nd

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 

ar
e 

ac
co

un
te

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

w
ay

 a
s 

rn
 t

he
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t-
w

id
e 

st
at

em
en

ts

A-32



C
IT

Y
 O

F
 R

IV
E

R
 F

A
LL

S

N
O

T
E

S
 T

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
S

A
s 

of
an

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 

31
 2

01
1

N
O

T
E

 
I 
- 

S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 

oF
 S

IG
N

¡F
Ic

A
N

T
 

A
cc

ou
N

T
IN

G
 P

O
LI

C
IE

S
 

(c
on

t 
)

D
. 

A
ss

E
rE

 U
A

B
tL

tn
Ê

s,
 A

N
D

 N
íf,

A
ss

E
rs

oR
E

au
/r

v(
co

nt
)

9,
 

C
la

¡m
s 

an
d 

Ju
dg

m
en

ts

C
la

lm
s 

an
d 

Ju
dg

m
en

ts
 a

re
 r

ec
or

de
d 

as
 l

ia
br

 i
tie

s 
rf

 a
ll 

th
e 

co
nd

iii
on

s 
of

 G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
A

cc
ou

nt
ln

g
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

B
oa

rd
pr

on
ou

nc
em

en
ts

ar
em

et
 

T
he

la
bi

l¡t
ya

nd
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

fo
rc

la
¡m

sa
nd

ju
dg

m
en

ts
rs

on
y

re
po

rt
ed

 
in

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
fu

nd
 t

yp
es

 i
f 

¡t
 h

as
 m

at
ur

ed
 C

la
im

s 
an

d 
ju

dg
m

en
ts

 
ar

e 
re

co
rd

ed
 ¡

n 
th

e
go

ve
rn

m
en

t-
w

 
de

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
an

d 
pr

op
ne

ta
ry

 
fu

nd
s 

as
 e

xp
en

se
s 

w
he

n 
th

e 
re

la
te

d 
I 
ab

ilr
tie

s 
ar

e 
in

cu
rr

ed
T

he
re

 w
er

e 
no

 s
ig

ni
f¡

ca
nt

 c
la

im
s 

or
 l

ud
gm

en
ts

 
at

 y
ea

r 
en

d

10
 E

qu
¡t

yC
la

ss
¡f

¡c
at

io
ns

G
 o

v 
e 

rn
 m

 e
 n

 t-
W

¡ 
d 

e 
S

 t
at

e 
m

 e
 n

ts

E
qu

ity
 i

s 
cl

âs
si

fie
d 

as
 n

et
 a

ss
et

s 
an

d 
di

sp
la

ye
d 

in
 t

hr
ee

 c
om

po
ne

nt
s

a 
In

ve
st

ed
 

in
 c

ap
iL

al
 

as
se

ts
, 

ne
t 

of
 r

el
at

ed
 d

eb
t 
- 

C
on

si
st

s 
of

 c
ap

lta
l 

as
se

ts
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 r
es

tÍc
te

d
ca

p¡
ta

l 
as

se
ts

. 
ne

t 
of

 a
cc

um
ul

al
ed

 
de

pr
ec

la
tio

n 
an

d 
re

du
ce

d 
by

 t
he

 o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 
ba

la
nc

es
 
of

an
y 

bo
nd

s,
 m

or
tg

ag
es

, 
no

te
s,

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
bo

rr
ow

¡n
gs

 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
at

tíb
ut

ab
le

 t
o 

th
e 

ac
qu

¡s
¡t

lo
n,

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n,

 
or

 i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t 
of

 t
ho

se
 a

ss
et

s 
le

ss
 a

ny
 u

ns
pe

nt
 d

eb
t 

pr
oc

ee
ds

b 
R

es
tr

¡c
te

d 
ne

l 
as

se
ts

 -
 C

on
sr

st
s 

of
 n

et
 ê

ss
et

s 
w

ith
 c

on
st

ra
in

ts
 

pl
ac

ed
 o

n 
th

ei
r 

us
e 

el
th

er
 b

y

1 
) 

ex
Ìe

rn
al

 
gr

ou
ps

 s
lc

h 
as

 c
re

di
to

rs
, 

gr
an

to
rs

 c
on

tfl
bu

to
rs

, 
or

 l
aw

s 
or

 r
eg

ul
st

 o
ns

 o
f 

ot
he

r
go

ve
rn

 
m

en
 t

s 
or

, 
2)

 a
w

 t
h 

ro
ug

 h
 c

on
st

rt
! 

t 
on

al
 p

ro
vr

sl
on

s 
or

 e
na

bl
¡n

g 
le

gl
sl

at
lo

f

c 
U

nr
es

tfl
ct

ed
 

ne
L 

as
se

ts
 -

 A
ll 

ot
he

r 
ne

t 
as

se
ts

 t
ha

t 
do

 n
ot

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
de

fln
itl

on
 

of
 "

re
st

ric
te

d"
 

or
"¡

nv
es

te
d 

n 
ca

pi
ta

 a
ss

et
s,

 
ne

t 
of

 r
el

at
ed

 d
eb

t 
'

W
he

n 
bo

th
 r

es
tfl

ct
ed

 
an

d 
un

re
st

flc
te

d 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

ar
e 

av
ar

lâ
bl

e 
fo

r 
us

e,
 l

t 
Ls

 t
he

 c
lty

 s
 p

ol
lc

y 
to

 u
se

re
st

flc
te

d 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

fir
st

, 
th

en
 u

nr
es

tr
ic

te
d 

re
so

!r
ce

s 
as

 t
he

y 
ar

e 
ne

ed
ed

F
un

d 
S

ta
te

m
en

ts

G
ov

er
nn

re
nt

al
 

fu
nd

 e
qu

rly
 r

s 
c 

as
sr

ire
d 

as
 iu

nd
 b

al
an

ce
 l

n 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 
w

 t
h 

G
ov

eT
nm

en
ta

 
A

cc
ou

nt
ln

g
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 B
oa

rd
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 
N

o 
54

 -
 F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

 R
ep

or
itn

g 
an

d 
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l 

F
un

d 
T

yp
e 

D
ef

in
¡t

io
ns

,
th

e 
c 

ty
 c

la
ss

rf
re

s 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l 

fu
nd

 b
a 

an
ce

 a
s 

fo
 lo

w
s

a 
N

on
sp

en
da

bl
e 

- 
ln

cl
ud

es
 

lu
nd

 b
al

an
ce

 a
ûr

ou
nt

s 
th

at
 c

an
no

t 
be

 s
pe

nt
 e

ith
er

 b
ec

al
se

 t
he

y 
ar

e 
no

t
rn

 s
pe

nd
ab

le
 

fo
rm

 o
r 

be
ca

us
e 

le
ga

l 
or

 c
on

tr
ac

tu
al

 
re

qu
fe

m
en

ts
 r

eq
ul

re
 t

he
m

 t
o 

be
 m

ai
nt

al
ne

d
in

ta
ct

b 
R

es
tn

ct
ed

 
- 

C
on

sr
sl

s 
of

 f
un

d 
ba

la
nc

es
 w

Ìth
 c

on
st

rê
in

ts
 

pl
ac

ed
 o

n 
th

ef
 u

se
 e

ith
er

 b
y 

1 
) 

ex
te

rn
a

gr
ou

ps
 s

uc
h 

as
 c

re
d¡

to
rs

, 
gr

an
to

rs
, 

co
nt

rib
ut

or
s 

or
 l

aw
s 

or
 r

eg
ul

at
to

ns
 o

f 
ot

he
r 

go
ve

rn
m

en
ts

 
or

 2
)

la
w

 t
hr

ou
gh

 c
on

st
rt

ut
io

na
 

pr
ov

rs
ro

ns
 o

r 
en

ab
hn

g 
le

gr
sl

at
 

on

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 R

IV
E

R
 F

A
LL

S

N
O

T
E

S
 T

O
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L 

S
T

A
T

E
IV

IE
N

T
S

A
s 

of
 a

nd
 f

or
 t

he
 Y

ea
r 

E
nd

ed
 D

ec
em

be
r 

3'
1.

 2
01

 1

N
O

T
E

 
I 
- 

S
uù

rM
A

R
Y

 
oF

 s
rc

N
rF

rc
Á

N
r 

A
cc

ou
N

T
rN

G
 P

oL
tc

lE
s 

(c
on

t 
)

D
. 

4s
sE

rs
, 

Lr
A

B
lL

tn
E

s,
 

aN
D

 N
E

T
 A

ss
É

rs
 o

R
 E

ou
lrv

 (
co

nt
 )

F
ûn

d 
S

t¿
te

m
en

ts
 (

co
nt

 )

c 
C

om
m

¡t
te

d 
- 

ln
cl

ud
es

 f
un

d 
ba

la
nc

e 
âm

ou
nt

s 
th

at
 a

re
 c

on
st

ra
in

ed
 

fo
r 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

pu
rp

os
es

 
th

at
 a

re
rn

te
rn

al
ly

 i
m

po
se

d 
by

 t
he

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

th
ro

ug
h 

fo
rm

al
 a

ct
¡o

n 
of

 t
he

 h
ig

he
st

 l
ev

el
 o

F
 d

ec
is

io
n

m
ak

in
g 

au
th

or
¡t

y 
F

un
d 

ba
la

nc
e 

am
ou

nt
s 

ar
e 

co
m

m
itt

ed
 

th
ro

ug
h 

a 
fo

rm
al

 a
ct

io
n 

(o
rd

in
an

ce
,

re
so

lu
tio

n,
 

m
ot

io
n)

 o
f 

th
e 

ci
ty

 T
hi

s 
fo

rm
a 

ac
tio

n 
m

us
t 

oc
cu

r 
pr

¡o
r 

to
 t

he
 e

nd
 o

f 
th

e 
re

po
rÛ

ng
pe

do
d,

 b
ut

 t
he

 a
m

ou
nt

 o
f 

th
e 

co
m

m
itm

en
t, 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 b

e 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 t
he

 c
on

st
ra

ln
ts

, 
m

ay
 b

e
de

te
rm

rn
ed

 
in

 t
he

 s
ub

se
qu

en
t 

pe
no

d 
A

ny
 c

ha
ng

es
 t

o 
th

e 
co

ns
tr

ai
nt

s 
¡m

po
se

d 
re

qu
ire

 t
he

 s
am

e
fo

rm
al

 
ac

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 c

ity
 t

ha
t 

or
ig

in
al

ly
 c

re
at

ed
 t

he
 c

om
m

itm
en

t

d 
A

ss
rg

ne
d 

- 
In

cl
ud

es
 s

pe
nd

ab
le

 
fu

nd
 b

al
an

ce
 a

m
ou

nt
s 

th
at

 a
re

 i
nt

en
de

d 
to

 b
e 

us
ed

 f
or

 s
pe

ci
fic

pu
rp

os
es

th
at

ar
en

ot
æ

ns
id

er
ed

re
st

Íc
te

do
rc

om
m

itt
ed

 
F

un
db

al
an

ce
m

ay
be

as
sl

gn
ed

th
ro

ug
h

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g;
 

1)
'th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
m

ay
 t

ak
e 

of
fic

ia
l 

ac
tio

n 
to

 a
ss

ig
n 

am
ou

nt
s 

2)
 A

ll 
re

nì
ai

ni
ng

 
po

si
liv

e

sp
en

da
bl

e 
am

ou
nt

s 
in

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
fu

nd
s,

 o
th

er
 t

ha
n 

th
e 

ge
ne

ra
l 

fu
nd

 t
ha

t 
ar

e 
ne

rt
he

r 
re

st
rlc

te
d

no
r 

co
m

m
iti

ed
 A

ss
rg

nm
en

ts
 

m
ay

 t
ek

e 
pl

ac
e 

af
te

r 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 t
he

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
pe

rio
d

e 
U

na
ss

ig
ne

d 
- 

In
cl

ud
es

 r
es

id
ua

l 
po

sr
hv

e 
fu

nd
 b

al
an

ce
 w

¡t
hi

n 
th

e 
ge

fe
ra

l 
fu

nd
 w

hi
ch

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n
cl

as
si

fie
d 

w
ith

rn
 lh

e 
ot

he
r 

ab
ov

e 
m

en
tio

ne
d 

æ
te

go
rie

s 
U

na
ss

¡g
ne

d 
fu

nd
 b

al
an

ce
 

m
ay

 a
ls

o
in

cl
ud

en
eg

at
tv

eb
al

an
ce

sf
or

an
yg

ov
er

nm
en

ia
lfu

nd
 

fe
xp

en
di

tu
re

se
xc

ee
da

m
ou

nt
sr

es
tr

ic
te

d,
co

m
m

¡t
te

d,
 

or
 a

ss
rg

ne
d 

fo
r 

th
os

e 
pu

rp
os

es

I 
he

 c
¡t

y 
co

ns
id

er
s 

re
st

ric
te

d 
am

ou
nL

s 
to

 b
e 

sp
en

l 
lrs

t 
w

he
n 

bo
th

 r
es

tr
ic

te
d 

an
d 

un
re

st
r 

ct
ed

 f
un

d 
ba

 a
nc

e
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
un

 e
ss

 t
he

re
 a

re
 l

eg
al

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 

/ 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

lh
at

 p
ro

hi
bt

t 
do

ln
g 

th
rs

, 
su

ch
 a

s 
in

 g
ra

nt
ag

re
em

en
ts

 r
eq

ur
nn

g 
do

 la
t 

fo
r 

do
lla

r 
sp

en
di

ng
 A

dd
itr

on
al

 y
, 

th
e 

cr
ty

 w
ou

ld
 f

lrs
l 

us
e 

co
m

m
itt

ed
, 

lh
en

as
sr

gn
ed

 a
nd

 l
as

tly
 u

na
ss

ig
ne

d 
am

ou
nt

s 
ol

 u
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
fu

nd
 b

al
an

oe
 w

he
n 

ex
pe

nd
ltu

re
s 

ar
e 

m
ad

e

11
 B

as
¡s

 f
or

 E
x¡

s¿
rn

g 
R

af
es

C
ur

re
nt

 
el

ec
tr

ic
 

ra
te

s 
w

er
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 
by

 t
he

 P
S

C
W

 o
n 

A
pi

ll 
'1

 0
, 

20
08

C
ur

re
nt

 w
at

er
 r

at
es

 w
er

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 

by
 lh

e 
P

S
C

W
 e

ffe
ct

rv
e 

l\4
êr

ch
 

1 
I 

, 
1 
99

7 
N

ew
 r

at
es

 w
er

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d
in

 2
01

2 
S

ee
 N

ot
e 

1V
 H

C
ur

re
rì

t 
se

w
er

 r
at

es
 w

er
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 
by

 t
he

 C
rt

y 
C

ou
nc

rl 
on

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
12

 2
01

0 
N

ew
 r

at
es

 w
er

e
rm

pl
em

en
le

d 
/n

 2
01

2 
S

ee
 N

ot
e 

lV
 H

S
to

¡m
w

at
er

 
ra

te
s 

w
er

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 

by
 t

he
 C

rt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

on
 D

ec
em

be
r 

10
 2

00
2

C
ur

re
nl

 
am

bu
la

nc
e 

ra
te

s 
w

er
e 

ef
fe

ct
rv

e 
lv

la
y,

 2
01

 0

12
. 

P
r¡

or
 Y

ea
t 

ln
fo

rm
at

¡o
n

T
he

 b
as

tc
 f

tn
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
in

cl
ud

e 
ce

rt
ar

n 
pn

or
-y

ea
r 

su
m

m
ar

iz
ed

 
co

m
pa

ta
t¡

ve
 

in
fo

rm
aL

ro
n 

ln
 lo

ta
l b

ut
no

t 
at

 t
he

 l
ev

el
 o

f 
de

ia
il 

re
qu

¡r
ed

 f
or

 a
 p

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

in
 c

o¡
F

ol
m

ity
 

w
ith

 g
en

er
al

ly
 a

cc
ep

te
d 

ac
co

un
t 

ng

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 A

cc
or

di
ng

ly
, 

su
ch

 i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
sh

ou
 d

 b
e 

re
ad

 i
n 

co
nl

un
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 t
he

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t's

 
fln

an
ci

al
st

at
em

en
ts

 
fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 D
ec

em
be

r 
31

, 
20

'lO
, 

fr
om

 w
hl

ch
 t

he
 s

um
m

ar
iz

ed
 

in
fo

rm
a¡

on
 w

as
 d

er
lv

ed

A-33



CITY OF RIVER FALLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31,2011

NOTE ll - SrewanDsHtP, Gompuaruce, AND AccouNTABlLlw

A. Buoaeranvluronrøenou

Budgetary information is derived from the annual operating budget and is presented using the same basis
of accounting for each fund as described in Note LC. A budget has been adopted for all governmental
fund types. Wisconsin Statute 65.90 requires that an annual budget be adopted for all funds.

The budgeted amounts presented include any amendments made. The city council may authorize
transfers of budgeted amounts within departments. Transfers between departments and changes to the
overall budget must be approved by a two{hirds council action. Appropriatìons lapse at year end unless
specifically carried over. Budgets are adopted at the department level of expenditure.

B. ExcEss ExpENDffuRes Oven Appnopruanous

Budgeted
Expenditures

Actual
Expenditures

Excess
Expenditures

Fund
Park lmpact Fees
Fire lmpact Fees
Library Trust
Housing Reserve
TIF #6
Tourism and Economic Development
Whitetail Ridge Corporate Park
Notes

$ 84,215 $
509

5,1 06
26,454

221,642
1,520,300
1,123,403

704,523

92,215 $
28,593

5,6s4
120,869
230,345

1,526,073
1,'156,383

705, 1 83

8,000
28,084

548
94,415
8,703
5,773

32,980
660

The city contro[s expenditures at the department level Some individual departments experienced
expenditures which exceeded appropriations. The detail of those items can be found in the city's year-end
budget to actual report.

C. Denctr BALANcES

Generally accepted accounting principles require disclosure of individual funds that have deficit balances
As of December 31 ,2011, the following individual funds held a deficit balance

Fund nt Reason

Shared Ride Taxi
Tax lncrement District #6
Tax lncrement Dlstrict #7
Tax lncrement District #B
Park lmpact Fees
Tourism & Economic Development
Whitetail Ridge Corporate Park
Bonds

Grant reimbursements not yet received
I nsufficient tax increment generated
I nsufficient tax increment generated
No tax increment generated in 2011
Costs exceed revenues
Costs exceed revenues
Costs exceed tax increments
Costs exceed revenues

$ 2,375
631 '178

41,234
12,871
13 839

944,551
577,748

611
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CITY OF RIVER FALLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31,2011

NOTE ll - STEWARDSHTp, CowrpLrn¡rce, AND AccouNTABtLrw (cont.)

C. Denør BatAwcEs (cont )

The deficit in the Shared Ride Taxifund will be funded with future federal and state grant reimbursements
and transfers from the general fund. TIF district deficits are anticipated to be funded with future
incrementaltaxes levied overthe life of the districts, which is 27 years forthe districts created before
October 1, '1995, and 23 years for districts created thereafter through September 30, 2004. Beginning
October 1,2004, the life of new districts varles by type of district (20-27 years) and may be extended in

some cases. DefÌcits in the remaining funds are anticipated to be funded with future contributions, general
tax revenues, or repayment of advanced funds.

D. Ltn¡nnorus oN THE CtrY's Tax Lew

As part of Wísconsin's Act 32 (2011), legislation was passed that limits city's future tax levies. Generally,
the city is limited to its prior tax levy dollar amount (excluding TIF districts), increased by the greater of the
percentage change in the city's equalized value due to new construction, or zero percent for the 2011 levy
collected in 2012 and thereafter Changes in debt service from one year to the next are generally exempt
from this limit with certain exceptions.

NOTE lll- DEr¡teD NorES o¡¿ Alr- Fu¡¡os

A. Deposlrs¡ruD lNvEsrMENTs

The city's cash and investments at year end were comprised of the following

Carrying
Value

Bank
Balance

Associated
Risks

Demand deposits
U S agencies

LGIP
U.S. treasuries
Corporate bonds

Asset-backed securities

Municipally-held securities

Petty cash

Total Cash and lnvestments

11,422,788
432,551
938,636

926,495

349,896

850

926 495

349,896

Custodial credit
Custodial credit, credit, interest

rate, concentration of credit
Credit interest rate
Custodial credit, interest rate
Custodial credit, credit, interest

rate, concentration of credit
Custodial credit, credit, interest

rate, concentration of credìt
Custodial credit, credit, interest

rate, concentration of credit
N/A

$ 6,635,682 $
'1,059,646

5 580,995
1,059,646

11,422,788
432,551
938.636

$ 21,766,544 $ 20,711 ,007
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CITY OF RIVER FALLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2011

NOTE lll- DeratuED NorES oN ALL Fur'ros (cont.)

A. Deposrs AND lvv5sruerurs (cont )

Reconciliation to financial statements
Per statement of net assets

Unrestricted cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments

Per statement of net assets -
Fiduciary Funds

Total Cash and lnvestments

$ 17,247,843
3,383,421

135,2801,

s 21,766,544

Deposits in each local and area bank are insured by the FDIC in the amount of $250,000 for time and
savings accounts (including NOW accounts), $250,000 for interest-bearing demand deposit accounts, and
unlimited amounts for noninterest bearing transaction accounts.

Bank accounts are also insured by the State Deposit Guarantee Fund in the amount of $400,000.
However, due to the relatively small size of the Guarantee Fund in relationship to the total deposits
covered and other legal implications, recovery of materìal principat losses may not be significant to
individual municipalities. This coverage has been considered in the determination of custodial credit rlsk

As of December 3'1 , 2011, the city had a pledge of $4,701 ,304 in federal securities from the First National
Bank of River Falls as collateral for the city's deposits. The city also had a bank deposit guaranty bond of
$500,000 from Ríver Falls State Bank and pledged securities of $508,980 from Security Financial Bank.

Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a financial institutíon failure, the city's
deposits may not be returned to the city. The city does not have any deposits exposed to custodial credit
risk.

lnvestments - For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the city will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are
in the possession of an outside party. The city does not have any investments exposed to custodÌal credit
risk.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations As
of December 31 , 2011, the city's investments were rated as follows:

lnvestment Type Standard & Poor's

U.S. agencies
Corporate bonds
Asse!backed securities
Mun icipally-held securities

AA+/AA-
AAAJAA/AA-INA+

êvAA/AA+/AA-
A¡JAA-iA+

The city also held investments in the Local Government lnvestment Pool, an external poolwhich is not
rated

A-36



CITY OF RIVER FALLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As ofand for the Year Ended December 31,2011

NOTE lll- DETATLEo NorEs oN ALL Fu¡¡os (cont.)

A. Deposrs auo luvesruterrlrs (cont.)

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in

a single issuer At December 31,2011, the city does not have any investments exposed to concentration
of credit risk.

lnterest Rate Risk

lnterest rate risk is the risk that changes in ínterest rates will adversely affect the value of an investment.
As of December 31 ,2011, the city's investments were as follows:

Maturity (l n Years)

lnvestment Type Fair Value
Less than
One Year One - Five Six - Ten

U.S. treasuries
U.S. agenctes
Asset-backed securities
M u nicipally-held securities
Corporate bonds

Totals

$ 432,551 $
1,059,646

926,495
349,896
938 oJb

75,815
272,092
488,385
190,938
176,316

272,586 $
787,554
438,1 1 0
158,958
762,320

$ 84,1 50

$ 3,707,224 $ 1 ,203,546

lnvestment TvÞe

419 528 $ 84 150

Weighted
Average

Maturity (Years)

$2

Fair Value

Local Government lnvestment Pool

See Note 1.D.1 for further information on deposit and investment policies

$ 1 1,422,788 27
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31,2011

NOTE lll - DETATLEo Nores oN ALL Fu¡ros (cont.)

B. Recetvnetes

Receivables as of year end for the government's individual major funds, nonmajor, internal service, and
fiduciary funds in the aggregate, inctuding the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as
follows:

Gross
Receivable

Ailowance
For

Uncollectibles
Net

Receivable

Amount Not
Expected to be

Collecied Within
One Year

Major Funds:
General Fund
Generaf Capital Projects
Electric Utility
Water Utilìty
Sewer Utility
Stormwater Utility

Nonmajor, internal service, and
fìduciary funds

$ 2,953,932 $
3,190,9ô6
3 982,378

125,200
742,297

90,062

23,020 2,930,912 $
3,1 90,966
3,982,378

125,200
742,297

90 062

127,821
1,929,760
1,825,763

357,689

$

16 489 151 282,672 16,206.479 300,966

Totals $ 27,573,986 $ 30s,692 $ 27,268,294 $ 4,54'1,999

Revenues of the cÌty are reported net of uncollectible amounts. Total uncollectible amounts related to
revenues of the current period are as follows:

Uncollectibles related to ambulance charges $ 849,306

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Property taxes levied for the
subsequent year are not earned and cannot be used to liquidate liabilities of the current period.
Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received,
but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue and
unearned revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Unavailable Unearned Totals

Property taxes receivable
Special assessments receivable
Special assessments and charges not yet due
Grants receivable
Loans receivable
Capital costs paid in advance of construction

Total Deferred/U nearned Revenue
for Governmental Funds

$ 2663 $

26,733
23,154

343,838
63 031

5,410,385 $
140,'156

3,022,060

5,413,048
'140,1 56
26,733

3,045,214
343 838
813 9627501 931 I

$ 459,419 $ 10,323,532 $ 10,782 951
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NOTE lll- Dernteo Nores oN ALL Fu¡¡os (cont.)

C. Resrnrcreo AssErs

The following represent the balances of restricted assets for the enterprise funds:

Long Term Debt Accounts

Redemption

Reserve

Construction

Used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments over
the next twelve months.

Used to report resources set aside to make up potential future deficiencies in
the redemption account.

Used to report bond proceeds restricted for use in construction

Replacement Accounts

As a condition of receiving state and federal funds for wastewater treatment facility construction, the sewer
utility has established an account for replacement of mechanical equipment during the life of the facility.

lmpact Fee Accounts

The city has received impact fees which must be spent in accordance with the local ordinance and state
statutes. Those funds not spent within the ordinance guidelines and time frames must be refunded to the

current property owner

Following is a list of restricted assets in the enterprise funds at December31,2011'.

Restricted Assets
Bond redemption account
Bond reserve account
lmpact fee account
Construction account
Replacement account
West Central Wisconsin Biosolids receivable and interest receivable
lnterest receivable

Total Restricted Assets

Restricted Assets not Funded by Revenues
lmpact fee account - customer advances
Construction account
Reserve for borrowing
Liabilities payable from restricted assets
West Central Wisconsin Biosolids related restricted assets

$ 803 736
1,438,304

729,203
301,806
110,372
64,859

1,697
3,449,977

(500,42e)
(301,806)

(1,438,304)
(88,5ô 1 )
(64,85e)

Total Restricted Net Assets in Enterprise Funds $ 1 ,056,018
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NOTE lll - Dernueo Nores oN ALL Furuos (cont.)

D. CapretAssErs

'Capitat asset activity for the year ended December 31,2011 was as follows:

Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions

Ending
Balance

$ 12,909,634
614.384

Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated

Land
Construction in Progress

Total Capital Assets
Not Being Deprecìated

Other capital assets
Land improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
lnfrastructure

Total Capital Assets
Being Depreciated

Less: Accumulated depreciation for
Land improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
I nfrastructure

Total Accu mulated Depreciation

$ 10 961,436 $ 2,s62,582 $

$ 521,469 $
13,903,521
4,646,101

$
24,653

121,110

$ '10,685,657 $
275 779

2,223,977 $
338,605

$ 13,524,018

$ 521,469
13,928,174
4,711,37055,84'1

26 848 392

45 9'19 483

(245,377\
(3,538,650)
(1,854,83e)
(5,635,506)

28 624 26, 877,016

174 387 55 841 46 038 029

(23,702)
(358,979)
(270,e66)
(327,s28)

(26e,07e)
(3,897,629)
(2,093,81 1)

(5,e63,434)

Total Capital Assets Being

Depreciated, Net

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows

Governmental Activities
General government
Public safety
Public works
Leisure

3'1,994

(11,274,372) (981,575) 31 s94 (12,223,953)

$ 34,645,1'1 1 $ (807,188) $ 23,847 $ 33,814,076

$ 161 ,487
124,899
449,933
245,256

Total Governmental Activities Depreciation Expense $ 981,575
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NOTE lll- DrrnneD NorEs o¡¡ All- Fu¡¡os (cont )

D. CnpratAssErs(cont.)

Business-type Activities

Electric
Capital assets not being depreciated

Land and land rights
Construction in progress
Total CapitalAssets not Being

Depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated
Hydraufic production
Other production
Transmission
Distribution
General

Total CapitalAssets
Being Depreciated

Less: Accumulated depreciation for
Hydraulic production
Other production
Transmission
Distribution
General

Total Accu mulated Depreciation

Total CapitalAssets
Being Depreciated, Net

Beginning
Baf ance Additions Deletions

Ending
Balance

$ 107,127 $
25,558 469,628

$
387,778

$ 107,127
107 408

$ 132,685

$$ 932,179 $
7,502,989
1 ,536, 1 62

16,329,037
2,082,022

6,242,160
932,179

1,260,829
1,536,162

'16,565,297

2,088,347

$

359,827 123,567
51,53957 864

28 382 389 417,691 6,417,266 22,382,814

(508,808)
(4,856,347)
(1,004,640)
(6,633,255)
(1 440,159)

(21,468)
(1,971,8e8) 6,251,434

(36,133)
(577,245) 160,e89

(88,168) 50 565

(530 276)
(576,81 1)

(1,040,773)
(7,049,511)
(1,477,762)

(14,443,209) (2,6e4,912) 6,462 988 (10,675 133)

$ 1 3,939,1B0 $ 1 1,707 681
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NOTE lll- Dernteo NotEs oN ALL Furuos (cont.)

D. Captrat.4ssErs(cont.)

Business-type Activities (cont )

Water
Capital assets not being depreciated

Land and land rights
Construction in progress

Total Capital Assets
Not Being Depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated
Source of supply
Pumping
Water treatment
Transmission and distribution
General

Total CapitalAssets
Being Depreciated

Less: Accumulated depreciation for
Source of supply
Pumping
Water treatment
Transmission and distribution
General

Total Accu m ulated Depreciation

Total CapitalAssets
Being Depreciated, Net

Addltions Deletions

$ $ 3,12A
2,638,2822,317,786 23,142

346,758 $ 2,317,786 $ 23,142 $ 2,641,402

$

Begínning

Balance

Ending

Ba[ance

$ 3,120 $
343,638

$ 87,720 $
609,925

38,885
1 4,005,040 32,307

4,616
3,782
.).).)Ê

87,720
609,925

38,885
14,033,565

$

557 360 558 741

15,298,930 36 923 7 017 15,328,836

(87,720)
(2s1,042)

(38,6e8)
(2,845,578)

(368,957)

(10,040)
(187ìt

(280,124)
(25,177)

(87,720)
(301,082)

(38,885)
(3,121,920)

(3e1,310)
3,782
2,824

(3,631 ,995) (315,528) 6 606 (3,940 917)

$ 11,666,935
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NOTE lll- DeraueD NorEs oN ALL FUNDs (cont )

D- Cnetret Asscrs (cont.)

Business-type Activities (cont.)

Sewer
Capital assets not being depreciated

Land and land rights
Construction in progress

Total CapitalAssets
Not Beíng Depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated
Collection system
Collection system pumping
Treatment and disposal
General

Total CapitalAssets
Being Depreciated

Less: Accumulated depreciation for
Collection system
Collection system pumping
Treatment and disposal
General

Totaf Accum ulated Depreciatìon

Total Capital Assets
Being Depreciated, Net

Stormwater Utilitv
Capital assets being depreclated

Machinery and equipment
lnfrastructure

Total CapitalAssets
Being Depreciated

Less: Accumulated depreciation for
Machinery and equipment
lnfrastructure

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated, Net

Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions

Ending
Balance

$ 147,622 $ Þ $ 147,622
68,74761 902 6,974 129

$ 209,524 $ 6,974 $ 12e $ 2'16,369

$ 16,063,873 $
1,081,367
8,114,608
1,656,863

zo 916 711

54,759 $

6'13

$ 16,1 18,632
1 08'1,367
8,114,608
1,655,2413,235

(2,139,470)
(664,642)

(3 0e4,661)
(70s,254)

(171 ,582)
(38,275)

(247,351)
(77,027) 3,235

3,235

26,969,848

(2,311,052)
(702,e17)

(3,342,012)
(783,046)

(7,13e,027)

56,372

(6,608,027) (534,23s)

$ 20,308,684

Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions

$ 1 I,830,821

Ending
Balance

$ 125,187 $
825,669 166,120

$ s 125,187
6,991,7896,

6,950 856

(23,203)
(1,066,0ee)

'166 120 7 ,11 6,976

(12,33s)
(128,63e)

(35,s38)
(1,1e4,738)

(1 08e,302) (140,974) (1,230,276)

$ 5,861,554 $ 5,886,700
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NOTE lll - DErAleo Nores oN ALL FUNDS (cont.)

D. CenratAsse¡s(cont.)

Business-type Activities (cont. )

Ambulance
Capital assets not being deprecíated

Land

Capital assets being depreciated
Building improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total CapitalAssets
Being Depreciated

Less: Accumulated depreciation for
Building improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total CapitalAssets
Being Depreciated, Net

Total Business-tvpe Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated

Less: Accumulated deprecÌation

Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated, Net

Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions

Ending
Balance

$ 101,298 $

21,393 $
601 ,408

$ $ 101,298

$$ $ 21,393
601,408
667,294632 323

255 124

34 971

1 34 971 1,290,095

(21,3e3)
(261,700)
451 /ot

$ 520,270

Beginning
Balance

(22,831)
(48,198)

(21,3e3)
(284,531)
(4ee,e5e)

854 (71,02e) (805,883)

Additìons Deletions

8 484,212

Ending
Balance

$ 790,265 g 2,794,388 $ 41 1,04s $ s, t 73,604

$ 712,077 g 6,427,518 $

(3,756,678) 6 472 829

73,088,569

(23,791,236)

297,333$ 52,296,623 $ (3,044,601) $ (45,31 1) $ 4s,
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NOTE lll - DETATLED NorES o¡r All Fu¡¡os (cont.)

D. CenratÁssers (cont )

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:

B us iness-type Actívities
Electric
Water
Sewer
Stormwater
Ambulance

Total Business{ype Activities
Depreciation Expense

$ 970,401
271,978
533,679
140,974

71 029

988 06't1

Depreciation expense does not agree to the increases in accumulated depreciation due to joint metering,
salvage, and cost of removal.

E. I utearu¡t o Recetvaatts/PAyAB LEs, A DuANCES, AivD fRA^JsFERs

The following is a schedule of interfund receivables and payables including any overdrafts on pooled cash
and investment accounts:

Receivable Fund Pavable Fund Amount

General fund
General fund
Generalfund
General fund
Generalfund
General fund
General fund
General fund
TIF #8

711
1 1,331
12,495
'13,839

lnternal Service
Shared Ride Taxi
TIF #9
Park lmpact Fees
Revolving Loan
Notes
Bonds
Capital Equipment
Whitetail Ridge Corp. Park

$

611

aË 806

Subtotal - Fund financial statements 64,793

(64,7e3)Less: Fund eliminations

Total - Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets $

All balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and servtces are
provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and
(3) payments between funds are made. All amounts are due within one year.

For the statement of net assets, interfund balances which are owed within the governmental activities or
business-type activities are netted and eliminated.
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NOTE ll!- DErnLeo Nores oN ALL Fu¡¡os (cont.)

E. l¡'trenruuo Recetvaetes/PeyABL=s AND TRANSFEnS (cont.)

The General fund is aCvancing funds to TIF Districts No. 5 (Whitetail Ridge Corporate Park), No 6, No. 7

and No. 8. The amount advanced is determined by the deficiency of revenues over expenditures and
otherfinancing sources since each District's inception. ln 2010, the Parking Metersfund advanced funds
to the General Capital Projects fund for a restabilization project. This advance bears interest at3.24o/o and
requires annual payments of $30,040 through 2015. ln 2A11 , the Environmental Fee fund advanced
$1,000,000 to the Tourism and Economic Development fund. ln 1980, the Electric utility advanced funds
to the water and sewer utilities to separate the combined utilities. lnterest of 4.5o/o is being charged on
these advances. No repayment schedules have been established for the advances from the general fund
and the advance from the Environmental Fee fund.

The following is a schedule of interfund advances:

Receivable Fund Pavable Fund Amount

Amount Not
Due Within
One Year

Generalfund
Generalfund
Generalfund
General fund
Parking Meters fund
Environmental Fee fund

Electric utility
Electric utility

Year Ending
December 31

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017-2021

TIF District #8
TIF District #7
TIF District #5
TIF District #6
General Capital Projects
Tourism and Economic

Development Fund
Water utility
Sewer utility

12,871 $
41,234

574,564
641,031
112,131

$

1,000,000
158,640
395,662

12,871
41,234

574,564
641,032

85,425

1,000,000
133,439
363,467

Subtotal - Fund Financial Statements 2,936 133

(2,e36,133)Less: Fund eliminations

Total - Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets $

Repayment requirements for the advances from the electric utility to the water and sewer utililies are as
follows:

Principal lnterest Totals

$ 57,396
59,328
61,334
63,418
65,583

247,243

1 1,943 $
10,736
9,487
8,1 94
6,855

Þ 69,339
70,064
70,821
71,612
72,438

15 786 263 029

Totals $ 554,302 $ 63 001 $ 617,303
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NOTE lll- Dern[eo Nores oN ALL Fur'¡os (cont.)

E. INTERFUND Recetvaetes/Pavnetes a¡to TnaNsreas (cont.)

The following is a schedule of interfund transfers:

Transferred To Transferred From Amount Principal Purpose

GeneraI
General
General
General
General
General
General
General
General capital projects
Whitetail Ridge Corporate

Park
lnternal service
lnternal service
lnternal service
lnternal service
General
Nonmajor governmental
funds

Nonmajor debt servíce
funds

Nonmajor debt service
funds

Nonmajor debt service
funds

Ambulance

General capital projects
Capital equipment
Nonmajor special revenue funds
Electríc utility
Water utility
Ambulance
Stormwater Utility
lnternal service
Nonmajor governmental funds
TIF #4

General
Nonmajor governmental funds
Stormwater Utitity
Ambulance
Nonmajor debt service funds
General

General

Nonmajor governmenial funds

Administration fee
Administration fee
Administration fee
Property tax equivalent
Property tax equivalent
Administration fee
Administration fee
Administration fee
Gonstruction projects
Construction projects

Share of city hall
Share of city hall
Share of city hall
Share of city hall
Debt service
Various

250,000 Fund deficit

6,307 Debt service

Debt service

Per capita payment

780

2,471,225

$ 127,335
18,033

352,569
486,354
267,871
1 10,516

59,234
15,479
88,000
90,000

142,005
58,097

5,939
9,511

18,171
235,937

Ambulance

General

Subtotal - Fund Financial Statements

Less: Fund elimínations

129 087

660 1071

Total - GovernmentWide Statement Activities $ 81 1,1 18

Generally, iransfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that collects them to the fund that the
budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the funds collecting the
receipts to the debt service fund, and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to
finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations
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NOTE lll- Deralleo NorEs oN ALL Furuos (cont.)

F. Loue-Ten¡øOeueano¡ts

Long{erm obligations activity for the year ended December 31,2011 was as follows

Beginning
Balance lncreases Decreases

Ending
Balance

Amounts
Due Within
One Year

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Bonds and Notes Payable
General obligation debt
Loss on refunding
Debt díscount

Subtotals

Other Liabilities
Vested compensated absences
Other post-employment benefits
Landfill post-closure care cost

Total Other Liabilities

$ 1 1,881,683
(20 035)
(75,320)

11,786,328

g 2,474,000 $ '1 ,059,457 $
(4,006)
(4.807)

13,296,226 $
(16,02e)
(70,513)

2,474,000

1,042,681

1,050,644 13,209,684 1,042,681

$ r 3,1 08,584 $ 2,630,076

147,O39

243 858 22,224
169,26359 898 1,418,434

$ I ,110 ,542 $ 14,628,118 $ 1,211,944
Total Governmental Activities

Long-Term LÍabilities

Total Business-type Act¡vit¡es
Long-Term Liabìlities

796,324
267,600
258,332

97,502
50,824
7,750

'156,076

37,674

22,224

856,1 52
318,424

1,322,256

Beginníng
Balance I ncreases Decreases

Ending
Balance

Amounts
Due Within
One Year

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Bonds and Notes Payable
Gene¡al obligatÌon debt
Premium on debt
Other long-term debt
Revenue bonds

Subtotals

Other Liabilities
Vested compensated absences
Other post-employment benefits

Total Other Liabil¡t¡es

$ r,404,776 $

298,413
12.808 ,197

1,906,000
47,436
45,'f 6s

2J25,000

624,194 $

2,338
62,504

4,003,328

2,686,582 $
45,098

281 ,O74
10,929,869

554,354

72,957
1 ,944,311

$

14.511 ,386 4,1 23,601 4,692,364 13,942,623 2,571,622

65 403 116,130
110 461

160,873 175 864 116,130

g 14,672,259 $ 4,299,465 $ 4,808,494 $ 14,163,230 6 2,571,622

154,126
6,747

103,399
117,208
220,607
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NOTE lll- DEr¡tleo Nores oN ALL Fu¡¡os (cont.)

F. Lorue-Tøn¡ø OBLrcATtovs (cont.)

General Obligation Debt

All general obligation notes and bonds payable are backed by the full faith and credit of the city. Notes and
bonds in the governmental funds will be retired by future property tax levies or tax increments
accumulated by the special revenue, debt service, and capital projects funds Business-type activities debt
is payable by revenues from user fees of those funds or, if the revenues are not sufficient, by future tax
levies

ln accordance with Wisconsin Statutes, total general obligation indebtedness of the city may not exceed
5% of the equalized value of taxable property within the city's jurisdiction. The debt limit as of
December 31 ,201'1, was 941,251,630. Total general obligation debt outstanding subject to the debt limit
at year end was $15,982 808.

Date of
lssue

Final
Maturity

lnterest
Rates

Original
lndebted-

NCSS

Bafance
12-31-11

Governmental Activitíes
General Obligation Debt

Promissory Note
Promissory Note
Refunding Bonds
State Trust Fund Loan
Promissory Note
State Trust Fund Loan
State Trust Fund Loan
State Trust Fund Loan
State Trust Fund Loan
State Trust Fund Loan
State Trust Fund Loan
Refundìng Bonds
Refunding Bonds
State Trust Fund Loan
State Trust Fund Loan
State Trust Fund Loan
Promissory Note

11t2002
01t2003
04t2004
07t2006
10t2007
07t2008
09/2008
10t2008
11t2008
12t2008
02t2009
03/2009
12t2010
12t2011
12t2011
12t2011
12t2011

11t2012
02t2013
10t2015
03t2016
10t2017
03t2028
a3t2018
o3t2028
03t2028
03t2028
03t202B
03t2029
01t2015
12t2021
12t2021
1212021
11t2016

'1 60-3.35%
2.50-5.60%
2 45-3.70%

4 00%
3 3Bs%
4.75%
4.25%
4.25%
4.75%
4 75%
4 75%

3 O-4 60/o

3.24%
3.75%
3.75%
3 75%
277%

$ 3,6ô5,000
442,147

1,630,000
77,558

3,231,441
824,651
300,000
352,500
750,000
250,000
505,000

5,070,000
174,524

1,220,000
325,000
875,000

54,000

$ 285,000
106,252
785,000

16,622
I 745,000

731,415
247,776
290,118
709,788
235,179
472,257

5,060,000
'137,8'19

1,220,000
325 000
875,000

54 000

Total GovernmentalActivities - General Obligation Debt $ 13,296,226
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NOTE lll - DrrntEo Nores oN ALL Fu¡¡os (cont.)

F. Lo¡te-Tenrø Oeucenous (cont )

General Obligatíon Deóf (cont )

Date of
lssue

Final
Maturity

lnterest
Rates

Original
lndebted-

NCSS

Balance
12-31-11

Business-type Activities
General Obligation Debt

Promissory Note
General Obligation Bond
Promissory Note
Trust Fund
Trust Fund
Promissory Note
Promissory Note
Refunding Bonds

Years

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017 -2021
2022 -2026
2027 -2029

Governmental Activities
General Obligation Debt

Busl n ess-type Activities
General Obligation Debt

01t2003
02t2003
11/2002
03i2005
07t2005
1212010
12t2011
07t2011

02t2013
0212013
11t2012
03t2015
03t2015
01t2015
11t2016
11t2019

2.50-5.60%
4 60%

1.60-3.35%
4 00o/o

4.000/o

3.24%
2.77%

2.0-2 5o/o

$ 73,595 $
1,300,000
1,157 ,407

301,737
468,706

85,477
166,000

1 740,000

48,748
187,738
135,000
135,039
206,980

67,077
166,000

1,740,000

$ 2,686,582TotaI Business-type Activities General Obligation Debt

Debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Principal lnterest Prìncipal Interest

$ 1,042,681 $
1 ,076,165
1 ,069,434
1,070,897
1,030,976
3,893,700
2,498,271

450,388 $
522,924
461,844
423,246
382,931

'l 383,757
713,257
'131,864

554,354 $
318,213
272,352
287,163
379,500
875,000

81,990
52,126
43,841
36,086
26,052
27,438

1,614 102

Totals $ 13,296,226 $ 4,470,211 $ 2,686,582 $ 267,533

Revenue Debt

All electrÍc and sewer utility revenues net of specified operating expenses are pledged as security of the
revenue bonds untilthe bonds are defeased PrÌncipal and interest paid for20'11 was $4,427,499 folal
customer net revenues for the year were $3,879,887. Annual principal and interest payments are
expected to require 44o/o of electric utility net revenues, 160/o ol water utility net revenues, and 40o/o of
sewer utility net revenues.
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CITY OF RIVER FALLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31,2011

NOTE lll - Derateo Nores o¡r All Fu¡¡os (cont.)

F. Loua-Tenu OaueafloNs (cont.)

Revenue Debf (cont.)

Revenue debt payable at December 31,2011 consists of the following

B usí n ess-type Activities Reven ue Debt

Date of
lssue

Final
Maturity

lnterest
Rates

Original
lndebted-

NESS

Balance
12-31-11

Electric Utilltv

Revenue Bonds
Revenue Refunding Bonds

Water Utilitv

Revenue Bonds

Sewer Utilitv

Revenue Bonds
Revenue Bonds
Revenue Bonds
Revenue Bonds

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017 -2021
2022 - 2026
2027 -2031

07t2011 11t2031 2.0-4.4%

1112002
11t2009

11t1995
oBt2004
11t2005
04t2008

10/2017
10t2013

0512015
05DA24
05t2025
0512015

2.00-4.00% $ 3,320,000 $
2.OO-2.50% 1,595,000

Total Electric Utility

885,000
775,000

'1,660,000

2J25,000 2 125 000

266,143
3,595,000
2,533,726

750 000
144 869

$ 10,929,869Total Business-type Activities Revenue Debt

Debt service requirements to maturity are as folfows

Years Principal

3173% 1,009,322
2.00-4.60% 4,750,000

2746% 3,317,130
2.75-3.5% 1,250,000

Total Sewer Utility

lnterest

7

$ 1 944,311 $
1,010,467

721,800
748,317
503,1 25

2,832,466
2,464,383

705 000

389,304
305,1 07
274,317
250,379
230,003
873,039
327,462
78,825

Totals 10,929,869 $ 2,728,436
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31,2011

NOTE lll - DeraLeo Nores oN ALL Fu¡¡os (cont.)

F. Loue-Teau Oeueenous (cont.)

Other Debt lnformation

Estimated payments of compensated absences are not included in the debt service requirement
schedules. The compensated absences liability attributable to governmental activities will be liquidated
primarily by the general fund.

A statutory morlgage lien upon the utilities system and any additíons, improvements and extensions
thereto is created by Section 66.066 of the WÌsconsin Statutes as provided for in the ordinances creating
the revenue bond issue. The utilities system and the earnings of the system remain subject to the lien until
payment in full of the principal and interest on the bonds.

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures and loan
agreements. The city believes ìt is in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions, including
federal arbitrage reg ulations.

Current Refunding

On Ju|y6,2011, sewergeneralobligation bonds in the amountof $1,740,000were issuedwith an average
interest rate of 2.33% to refund $1,985 000 of outstanding2002 revenue bonds with an average interest
rate of 3.75 - 4.5% plus interest due in the amount of $21,116 The net proceeds of $1 ,739,222 (after
payment of $778 in unden¡¿riting fees, insurance and other issuance costs and credits) plus an additional
$266,894 of sinking fund monies were used to prepay the outstanding debt service requirements on the
2002 bonds.

Deferred Amount on Refunding

Deferred amounts on refunding arise from advance refunding of debt. The difference between the cost of
the securities placed in trust for future payment of refunded debt and the net carrying value of that debt is
deferred and amortized as a component of interest expense over the shorter of the term of the refunding
issue or the original term of the refunded debt The unamortized amount is reported as a deduction from
debt payabfe in the government-wide and proprietary fund statements. Amortization for 2011 was $4,006,
whìch is all reported in the governmental activities.

G. Posr-closune C¡Re Cosr

State and federal laws and regulations required the ciiy to pface a finalcoveron Ìts landfillsite in 1993,

although the landfillstopped accepting waste and was closed in 1978 The city is required to perform
certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for an unlimited time period The city reports
postclosure care costs as an operating expense in each period. The $243,858 reported as landfill
postclosure care liability at December 31,2011, represents the estimated amount of future postclosure

costs. These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all postclosure care in2011; actualcost
may be higher due to inffation, changes in technology, or changes in regulations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31,2011

NOTE lll- DEraueo Nores o¡¡ Ar-l Fu¡los (cont )

H. Ner Assers/Fuuo Bet,quczs

Net assets reported on the government wide statement of net assets at December 31, 201'1 includes the
following:

G ove rn m ental A cti viti es

(12,264,717)

Restricted

35,073,377

4,323,817

2,722,218U n restricted (deficit)

Total Governmental Activities Net Assets $ 42,119,412

Governmental fund balances reported on the fund financial statements at December 31, 2011 include the
following:

lnvested in capttal assets, net of related debt
Construction in progress
Land
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Less: related long-term debt outstanding (excluding unspent
capital related debt proceeds)

Total lnvested in CapitalAssets

Nonspendable
Major Funds

General Fund
Prepaid items
Advances to other funds

Total

Non-Major Funds
Prepaid items

$ 614,384
12,909,634
33,8'14,076

$ 92,926
1,269,700

$ '1,362,626

$1 032
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As of and for the Year Ended December 31,2011

NOTE lll - Der¡rLeD NorES o¡r ALl Fur.ros (cont.)

H. NerAsserc/FuNo Betaxces (cont.)

G overn m enta I Activ íti es (cont. )

Restricted
Non-Major Funds

Special Revenue Funds
Parking Meters
Refuse/Solid Waste
Environmental Fee
TIF District #4
TIF District#9
Library
Library lmpact Fees
Fire lmpact Fees
Housing Reserve
Library Trust

Sub-Total

Debt Service Funds
Notes

Total Non-Major Funds

Committed
Major Funds

General Capital Projects Fund
Capital projects

Non-Major Funds
Special Revenue Funds

Media Service
Revolving Loan

Sub-Total

Capital Equipment Capital Projects Fund

Total Non-Major Funds

Unassigned (deficit)
Major Funds

Generaf fund

$ 174,237
292,944

2,618,672
33,502

308,081
173,229
33,599

234,353
408,614
114,684

I 082

$ 4,400,997

$ 285,256

$ 355,231
2 777

359,008

97 793

$ 456,801

$ 4,999,988

Non-Major Funds $ (2,224,785)
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As of and for the Year Ended December 31,2011

NOTE lll- DeralLeo Nores oN ALL Fur'ros (cont.)

H. NErAssers/Fuuo BALANâES (cont )

B u si ness-type Acti vities

lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt
Construction in progress
Land
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Less. related long-term debt outstanding (excluding unspent capital

related debt proceeds)
Total lnvested in CapitalAssets

Restricted
Debt service
lmpact fees
Replacement

Total Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Business-type Activities Net Assets

$ 2,814,437
359,1 67

49,297,333

(11 ,360,653)
41,110,284

71 6,905
228,741
110.372
056 0'181

7,484,339

$ 49,650,641
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CITY OF RIVER FALLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31,2011

NOTE lll - DrraLeo Nores oN ALL FUNDS Icont. )

l. Coutpouenr Uutrs

This reportcontains the River Falls Housing Authority (Housing Authority)and the Business lmprovement
District (BID), which are included as component units. Financial information for both component units are
presented as discrete columns in the statement of net assets and statement of activities.

ln addition to the basic financiaf statements and the preceding notes to financial statements which apply,
the following additionaldisclosures are considered necessary for a fair presentation.

Housing Authority

a Basis of Accounting/Measurement Focus

The Housing Authority follows the full accrual basis of accounting and the flow of economic
resou rces measurement focus.

b. Deposits and lnvestments

The Housing Authority's investments at year end were comprised of the following

Carrying
Value

Bank
Balance

Associated
Risks

Demand and time deposits $ 795,693 g 842,377 Custodial credit risk

Custodial Credit Risk

For a deposit, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a financial instituiion failure, the
Housing Authority's deposits may not be returned to the Housing Authority The Housing Authority
does not have any deposits exposed to custodial credit risk

c. Receivables

The Houslng Authority's accounts receivable consist of $1,363 due from tenants, $16,624 grants
receivable, and $61 B other receivables All of the Housing Authority's receivables are expected to
be collected within one year.

d. Restricted Assets

Tenant Deposifs

The Housing Authority holds security deposits from tenants. Security deposits were $54,857 at
year-end

Housing Assisfance Payments

The Housing Authority maintains restricted cash in the amount of housing assistance payments
equity as required by the grantor. As of June 30,2011, the restricted cash was $50,085
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NOTE lll- D'ernrr-eD NorES o¡¡ All Fu¡¡os (cont.)

I. CorøpoNerur Uru,l,s (cont.)

Housing Authority (cont.)

d. Restricted Assets (cont.)

Reserue Accounts

Reserve accounts are required to be maintained by the USDA Rural Development Loan
agreements for the 4-plex, Oak Park and Edgewater/Briarwood properties As of June 30,2011,
reserve accounts were $282,213.

e. CapitalAssets

The Housing Authority depreciates its capital assets over the followìng useful lives

Buildings
Equipment

40 Years
3-10 Years

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 20'11 was as follows

Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions

Ending
Balance

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land

Construction work in progress
Total CapitalAssets

Not Being Depreciated

Other CapitalAssets
Land improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total CapitalAssets
Being Depreciated

Less: Accumulated depreciation for
Land improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total Accumu lated Depreciation

$ 339,941 $ 74,e86 $ 6987

$ 332,954 $ 27,044 $
47,942

$ 359,998
47 942

$ 407,940

6 987 6,987

$ 250,405 $
5,197,496

202 890

77,067 $
127,185

4,222

2,813 $

3,674

324,659
5,324,681

203,438

5 650 791 208,474 487 5,852,778

1,402

b

(1 16,323)
(3,428,954)

(127,608)

(2e,555)
(205,351)

(14,326)

(144,476)
(3,634,305)

(138,730)3,204
(3,672,885) 4,606 (3,91 7,51 1 )

Net Other Capital Assets $ '1,977,906

(249,232)

$ '1,935,267
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NOTE lll - Dereteo Nores oN ALL Futtos (cont )

l. Co¡vtpoueNr Uuns (cont.)

H ousi ng Authority (cont. )

f. Long-TermObligatíons

Long-term obligations activity for the year ended June 30, 2011 was as follows

Beginning
Balânce I n crea ses Decreases

Ending
Balance

Amounts
Due Withìn
One Year

Bonds and Notes Payable:
Mortgage notes

Other Liabilities:
Vested compensated absences

$ 2,220,048 $ 100,000 $ 10,283 $ 2,309,765 $ 12,205

14,443 20.133 7,54715,093 9,403

Totaf Long-Term Lìabilities s 2,234,491 $ 1 15,093 $ 19,686 $ g 19,752

All mortgage note payments are expected to be paid with future revenues from the related properties
Notes payable consist of the following at June 30,2011'.

Briarwood/Edqewood
Mortgage notes payable consists of mortgage notes payable to USDA-RD that
requires monthly payments of $2,582 and bears interest al6%, which is partially
subsidized by USDA-RD, resulting in an effective interest rate of approximately
1o/o.ln connection with this loan, the Housing Authority entered into an agreement
with USDA-RD which contains, among other things, restrictions on the
transferring of any of the project's rental property, assigning the rights to manage
or receive the rents and profits of the rental property or assuming additional
indebtedness The mortgage note is collateralized by the project's rental property.

Prepayment of scheduled installments ls prohibited. $ 1,066,223

Oak Park
Mortgage notes payable consists of mortgage notes payable to USDA-RD that
requires monthly payments of $1,915 and bears interest ranging from 5.375% -

11.375%, which is partially subsidized by USDA-RD, resulting in an effective
interest rate of approximately 1%.ln connection with this loan, the Housing
Authority entered into an agreement with USDA-RD which contains, among other
things, restrictions on the transferring of any of the project's rental property,
assÍgning the rights to manage or receive the rents and profits of the rental
property or assuming additional indebtedness The modgage note is
collateralized by the project's rental property. Prepayment of scheduled
installments ís prohibited 963,912
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As of and for the Year Ended December 31,2011

NOTE lll - Derateo NorEs oN ALL Fu¡,los (cont )

l. Co¡øpoueur U¡'tts (cont )

Hou si n g A utho rity (cont. )

f. Long-Term Obligations (cont )

4-Plex
Mortgage note payable consists of a mortgage note payable to USDA-RD that
requires monthly payments of $1,529 and bears interest at 9.5%, which is partially
subsidized by USDA-RD, resulting in an effective interest rate of approximately
1%.ln connection with this loan, the Housing Authority entered into an agreement
with USDA-RD which contains, among other things, restrictions on the
transferring of any of the project's rental property, assigning the rights to manage
or receive the rents and profits of the rental property or assuming additional
indebtedness. The mortgage note is collateralized by the project's rental property.
Prepayment of scheduled instaflments is prohibited.

Manaqement Account
Mortgage note payable consists of mortgage notes payable to the First Natìonal
Bank of River Falls that require 35 monthly payments of $630 and one final
payment consisting of the unpaid principal and all accrued interest due on
February 15,2014. The note bears interest at 5 75%. fhe mortgage note is
collateralized by the rental property.

Total

Less: Current portion

Totaf Long-Term Debt

Future principal payments are approximately as follows

Principal lnterest

$ 180,238

99 392

2,309,765

(12,205)

$ 2,297 ,560

Total

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017 - 2021
2022 - 2026
2027 -2031
2032 - 2036
2037 -2041
2042 - 2046
2047 -2051
2052 - 2056
Unscheduled debt

$ $ $12,205
12 960

107,247
12,496
13,326
81,249

112,641
156,879
219,604
281,343
303,808
107,604
21,883

91,ô98
90,943
90,'10'1

83,847
83,017

400,467
369,075
324,837
262,112
174,295
8s,819
13,165
2,641

103,903
103,903
197,348
96,343
96,343

481,716
481,716
481,716
481 ,716
455,638
389,627
120,769
24,524

866 520 866 520

Totals $ 2309,765 $ 2,072,017 $ 4,381,782
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31,2011

NOTE lll - DerarEo Notes o¡¡ All Furqos (cont.)

I. Coupouervr U¡¿rrs (cont.)

Ho usí ng Autho rity (cont. )

f. Long-Term Obligations (cont.)

Other Debt lnformation

The Oak Park program has $866,520 in deferred notes payable which have no determinable timetable for
repayment. The principal balance of these notes is listed as unscheduled debt in the debt service
requirement schedule. All interest associated with these notes is currently subsidized by Rural

Development and is not capitalized. The potential future interest associated with this debt is not included
in the debt service requirement schedule.

Estimated payments of compensated absences are not included in the debt service requirement
schedules.

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures and loan

agreements. The Housing Authority believes it is in compliance with all significant limitations and

restrictions.

g. Net Assets

Net assets reported on the statement of net assets at June 30, 2011 include the following

lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt
Land
Construction in progress
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Less: related long{erm debt outstanding

Total lnvested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

Restricted
Grant requirements

Total Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

$ 359,998
47,942

1,935,267
309 765

33,442

332 298
332,298

740 757

$ 1,106,497
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CITY OF RIVER FALLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31,2011

NOTE lll - Dernueo Nores o¡t Au- FUNDS (cont.)

l. Co¡ttpovrur Uurs (cont.)

Housing Authority (cont.)

h Component Unit (cont.)

Windmill Place, LLC (cont.)

a. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (cont.)

Significant Accounting Policies (cont.)

Tax credit fees
ln connection with obtaining an allocation of low-income housing tax credits, the company paid
fees totaling 922p45 to the Wisconsin Housing and Economic Development Authority
(WHEDA) The company is amorlizing these fees on the straight-line basis over the related tax
credit compliance period of 15 years.

Subsequent events
These financial statements have not been updated for subsequent events occurring after
February 25,2011 , which is the date these financial statements were available to be issued
The company has no responsibility to update these financial statements for events and
circumstances occurring after this date.

b. Restricted Cash

Restricted cash is comprised of the following

2010

Tenants' security deposits
Replacement reserve
Operating reserye
I nterest credit reserve

Totals

$ 7,200
18,363

128,544
22 503

$ 176,610

Replacement reserve
The operating agreement requires the project to make initial deposits of $250 per unit per year
into the replacement reserve increasing 3o/o per year Disbursements are restricted to
replacement of equipment, struciural elements, and other components of the project of a capital
nature.

2010

$ 6,000
12 363

Balance, beginning
Monthly deposits

Balance, Ending $ r 8,363
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CITY OF RIVER FALLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31,2011

NOTE lll - Dera¡lro Nores oN ALL Fu¡¿os (cont.)

l. Co¡¡poueur Uurs (cont.)

Hou sing Auth o rity (cont. )

h. Component Unit (cont.)

Wíndmill Place, L[C (cont )

b. Restricted Cash (cont.)

Operating reserve
The operating agreement required the company to establish an operating reserve in the initial
amount of $50,000 Funds held in the operating reserve may be used for operating deficits
subsequent to achievement of three consecutive months of underwritten operations as defined
in the operating agreement. The company shall maintain the operating reserve until the end of
the compliance period. All interest earned on the operating reserve shall remain in the reserve.
There is no obligation on the part of the members to replenish the operating reserve
Withdrawals from the operating reserve requìre written approval of the USDA - RD.

2010

Balance, beginning
Other deposits
lnterest earned

Land
Land improvements
Building
Furnishings and equipment

Less: Accum u lated depreciation

Rental Properly Net

$ 78,499
50,000

45

Balance, Ending $ 128,544

lnitial credit reserve
The operating agreement required the company to establish an interest credit reserve in the
initial amount of $16,877 Withdrawals from the interest credit reserve require the approval of
the manager and the investor member and may only be used for payment of outstanding
interest on the loans. The balance as of December 31 ,2010 was $22 503.

c. Rental property net

Rental property, net is comprìsed of the following

2010

$ 39'1 ,5 1 8

66,'189
3,150,269

80,457
3,688,433

(303,1 86)

$ 3 385,247
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CITY OF RIVER FALLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31,2011

NOTE lll- DETATLEo Nores oN ALL Fu¡ros (cont.)

l. C)MP)NENT Uutrs (cont.)

Housing Authority (cont )

h. Component Unit (cont.)

Windmill Place, LLC (cont.)

d. Mortgage Notes Payable

Mortgage notes payable consist of the following

First National Bank of River Falls; construction loan with interest-only
monthly payments at 7% converted to permanent loan on January 30,

2009; thereafter, monthly payments of $5,535, including interest at
5.07%', USDA-RD is providing an interest credit to reduce the interest
rate by a maximum of 150 basis points, but in no event less than the
Applicable Federal Rate (AFR), as defined in the lRC, or greater than 150
basis points in excess of theAFR; due February 1,2034', collateralized by

a mortgage on the company's rental property including the assignment of
rents and leases and guaranteed by the USDA-RD under Section 538 of
the Housing Act of 1949; prepayment is subject to a fee of between 1-2%
of the outstanding balance.

Wìsconsin Department of Commerce; nonrecourse; non-interest bearing
through December 31,2010 and then 3% thereafter, beginning on April 1,

2012 annual payments of the lesser of $23,018 or surplus cash; due on
April '1, 2038; collateralized by a subordinated mortgage on the project's
rental property and an assignment of rents and leases; the mortgage may
be prepaid at any time

Housing Authority of the City of River Falls (the Housing Authority), an

affiliate of the original member; non-recourse, accrues interest at 5 75'lo
per annum on the unpaid principal and interest balance; due December
31,2026', collateralized by a subordinated mortgage on the project's
rental property and an assignment of rents and leases; the mortgage may
be prepaid at any time lnterest expense incurred on the loan was
$10,984 and $1 1,482 for the periods ended December 31 2010 and
2009, respectively Accrued interest on this note was $26,009 as of
December 31,2010

Balance
12t3112010

$ 'l 092,935

418,752

176,000

Total $ 1,687,687
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CITY OF RIVER FALLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2011

NOTE lll- Derateo Nores oN ALL Fu¡ros (cont.)

L Conpoueur Uu,l's (cont )

Housing Authority (cont )

h. Component Unit (cont.)

Windmill Place, L[C (cont.)

d. Mortgage Notes Payable (cont.)

Repayment of principal on the mortgage notes payable as of December 31,2010, is as follows

Year endrnq December 31,

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
Thereafter

$ 11,267
11,852
12,467
13,114
13,795

1,625,192

Total $ 1,687,687

e. Related-Party Transactions

Operating Deficit Guarantee
The operating agreement provides for an operating deficit guaranty agreement which requires the
original member to loan the partnership any funds, not to exceed $46,000 required to fund
operating deficits incurred during the operating deficit guaranty period as defined in the operating
agreement. Any loans under this agreementwill bear interest at the Prime Rate and shall be
payable from cash flow as provided in the operating agreement. There were no operating deficit
loans for the period ended December 31,2010.

Development Agreement
The company has entered into a development agreement with Windmill Developer, LLC, an
affiliate of the original member. The agreement provides for the company to pay a development
fee of $380,000 lt is anticipated that the development fee will be paid from proceeds of capital
contributions made by the investor member. ln the event that the development fee has not been
paid within 12 years of the date of completion of the project, the original member shall
immediately make a capital contribution to the company sufficient to satisfy the remaining portion
of the unpaid portion of the fee. The entire fee has been capitalized into the building cost.
Development fee payable was $129,904 as of December 31 ,2010.
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CITY OF RIVER FALLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31,2011

NOTE lV - OrxEn l¡¡poRrvrnro¡¡ (cont.)

C. Conunrvte¡,trs Á^/D Coxnuee¡'tcres (cont.)

Funding for the operating budget of the city comes from many sources, including property taxes, grants
and aids from other units of government, user fees, fines and permits, and other miscellaneous revenues.
The State of Wisconsin provides a variety of aid and grant programs which benefit the city Those aid and
grant programs are dependent on continued approval and funding by the Wisconsin governor and
legislature, through their budget processes.

The State of Wisconsin is currently experiencing budget problems, and is considering numerous
alternatives including reducing aid to local governments. Any changes made by the State to funding or
eligibility of local aid programs could have a significant impact on the future operating results of the city

The electric utility under their original wholesale agreement had committed to purchase their electrical
power and energy requirements from the Wisconsin Pubf ic Power, lnc. System (WPPI) until December 1,

2024. ln 2002, the city agreed to a thirteen-year extension, which terminates December 31,2037 . Refer to
the River Falls Municipal Utilities financial statements for additional details.

D. JowrVzurune

The City of River Falls and the municipalities of Hudson, New Richmond, Prescott, Baldwin, Ellsworth,
Roberts, Spring Valley, Amery, Osceola, and Somerset jointly contractwith the West Central Wisconsin
Biosolids Facility Commission (facility) for the treatment, storage, disposal, recycfing and/or sale of
biosolids (sludge). Currently, the communities share in the operation of the facility as follows,

Hudson
River Falls
New Richmond
Prescott
Elfsworth
Amery
Osceola
Baldwin
Spring Valley
Somerset
Roberts

39.32%
17.65%
8.54%
8A8%
6.35%
6.03%
5 03%
4.29%
1 90%
1 23%
118%

The governing body is made up of citizens from each community. Local representatives are appointed by
the mayor. The governing body has authority to adopt its own budget and control the frnancial affairs of the
facility. The city believes that the facilíty will continue to provide services in the future at similar rates

Debt is being repaid with resources of the sewer utility and is secured by revenues of the utility The
transactions of the facility are not reflected in these financÍal statements Facility financial information as of
December 31,2011 is available from the facility office
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CITY OF RIVER FALLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31,2011

NOTE lV - OrHER l¡¡roRNnrroru (cont.)

E. Oruen Posr EMPL)YMENT Be¡ttnts

The city's group health insurance plan provides coverage to active employees and retirees (or other
qualified terminated employees) at blended premium rates. This provision results in another
postemployment benefit (OPEB) for the retirees, commonly referred to as an implicit rate subsidy

Contribution requirements are established through personnel policy guidelines and may be amended by
the action of the governing body. Retired plan members are required to pay 100% of the premium. For
fiscal year 2011 , total retired member contributions were $78,122. Administrative costs of the plan are

financed by the city.

The city's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calcufated based on the annual
required contribution of the employer (ARC). The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an
ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities
(or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of
the city's annual OPEB cost forthe year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the
city's net OPEB obligation to the Retiree Health Plan

Annual required contribution
lnterest on net OPEB obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution

Annual OPEB cost
Contributions earned

lncrease in Net OPEB Obligation

Net OPEB Obligation - Beginning of Year

$ 164,240
14,658
14 '139

164,759
(e5,569)
69,1 90

366 442

Net OPEB Obligation - End of Year $ 435 632

The city's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation for 2011 and the two preceding years were as follows:

FiscalYear Ended

Annuaf
OPEB
Cost

Percentage
of Annual

OPEB Cost
Contributed

Net OPEB
Obliqation

12131t09
12131110
12t31t11

$ 1 89,1 86
197,406
164,759

36%
37%
5B%

242,008
366,442
435,632

Q
.1'
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CITY OF RIVER FALLS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Year Ended December 31,2011

NOTE lV - OrHER lr.¡roRmnlo¡¡ (cont.)

E. Oruen Posr EMPLIYMENT BeNears (cont )

The funded status of the plans as of January 1,2011, the most recentactuarialvaluation date, was as

follows:
Actuarial accrued liabilíty (AAL) $ 1 ,780,745
Actuarial value of plan assets

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL)

Funded ratio (actuarialvalue of plan assetsiAAl)

Covered payroll (active plan members)

UAAL as a percentage of covered payrolt

$ I,780,745

$

0o/o

5,742,867

31.01o/o

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan Involve estimates for the value of reported amounts and

assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regardìng the funded status of the plan and annual required contributions of the employer are subject to

continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information that shows whether
the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liabilities for benefits.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as

understood by the employer and plan members) and rnclude the types of benefits provided at the time of
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the employer and plan members
to that point. The methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-
term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.

ln the actuarial valuation, the entry age actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions
include a 4% asset rate of return and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 8% initially, reduced by

decrements to an ultimate rate of 47o/o in ten years. The plan's unfunded actuarialaccrued liability is

beingamortizedasalevel percentageof payroll TheamortizatÌonperiodatDecember3l,20l'1,was30
years.

F. DEuEL?PERAGREEMENTS

The City of River Falls has entered into a development agreement with Martinsen lnvestment and Land

Co , lnc (developer) The agreement guarantees that developer improvements will have a minimum
assessed value of $10,000,000 as of December3l 2009 or upon the City's issuance of a certificate of
completion and occupancy, whichever occurs first. The developer also agrees to pay minimum real estate
taxes and supplemental payments of $'18'1 400 per year, starting in 2010 and continuing for 1B years

As part of the agreement, the City has committed to provide $2,550,000 in expenditures of public monies
and/or dedication of public land to the devefoper. As of December 31,201'1 the city has paid $1,500,000
of such costs and has deeded $1,050,000 of public lands to the developer.
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NOTE lV - OrHen l¡¡poRnnrro¡¡ (cont.)

F. Devetopen Aaaeerøeurs (cont.)

The City of River Falls has entered into a development agreement with Frìsbie Properties (developer). The
agreement guarantees that developer improvements will have a minimurn assessed value of $3,000,000
as of December 31 ,2012 or upon the City's issuance of a certificate of completion and occupancy,
whichever occurs first. As security during construction the developer executed a note to the City
commensurate with the receipt of the warranty deed in the principal amount of $605,000 bearing interest
at6.5% due December 31,2O12 and a real estate mortgage securing said note covering the development
property. This mortgage will be secondary to the mortgagee who is providing the construction financing
As further security the developers will provrde personal guarantees with respect to performance under the
contract. The issuance of the Certificate of Completion and Occupancy shalf constitute full payment and
satisfaction of the note and mortgage upon the issuance of said certificate by the City The developer also
agrees to pay minimum real estate taxes and supplemental payments of at least $59,745 per year,

starting in2O11and continurng for 1B years.

As part of the agreement, the City has committed to provrde $605,000 in expenditures of public monies
and/or dedication of public land to the developer. As of December 31, 2011, the city has deeded $513,538
of public lands to the developer.

The City of River Falls has entered into a development agreement wtth Gerrard Corporation
(developer). The agreement guarantees that developer improvements will have a minimum assessed
value of $1 ,500,000 for phase I as of January 1,2011, and a mínimum assessed value of $1 500,000 for
phase llas of January 1, 2013. The minimum assessed values are required for a twenty year period or the
life of the tax increment district, whichever is longer. The City has agreed to provide annual increment
payments to the developer beginning in 2012 equal to a total of $270,000 for phase I and $216,000 for
phase ll

G. Errecr or New AccouNTtNc Sr¡ruo¿Ros ot't Cunneur Peruoo FtNANctAL Srare¡øç¡'trs

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has approved GASB Statement No. 61, Ihe
FinancialReporfing Entity. OmnÌbus', Statement No 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial
Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 19Bg FASB and AICPA Pronouncemenfs; Statement
No. 63 Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred lnflows of Resources, and Net
Position', and Statement No. 64, Derìvative lnstruments' Application of Hedge Accounting Termination
Provisions - an amendment of GASB Statement ¡Vo. 53 Application of these standards may restate
portions of these financial statements

H. Sueseeue,vrEvErurs

On February 28,2012 the city issued $4 560 000 of Taxable General Obligation Refunding Bonds. The
bonds were used to pay off $4,483,883 of outstanding State Trust Fund Loans

The water and sewer utility implemented new rates effective April 13,2012 Annual water revenues were
increasedby3%overall,orapproxìmately$42,000peryear Thesewerrateshaveincreasedanaverage
of 835%, for approximately $234,000 in additional revenue per year

At its March 13,2012 meeting, the City Council authorized the redemption of the 20024 General
Obligation Promissory Notes
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CITY OF RIVER FALLS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended December 31,2011

Budqeted Amounts Variance with

Final Budgeto nal Final Actual

REVENUES
Taxes
Special assessments
lntergovernmental
Licenses and permits
Fines, forfeitures and penalties
Public charges for services
I ntergovern mental charges for services
lnvestment income
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government
Pubfic safety
Public works
Health services
Leisure
Conservation and development
Pu blic service enterprises

Debt ServÌce
Principal retirement
lnterest and fiscal charges

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures

oTHER FTNANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Total Other Financing Sources

236 219 291 868 297 673 805

o 782 981 6,912,345 6 970 486 58,141

$ 2,616,462
10,215

3,250,095
149,490
205,000
247,500

'18,000

50,000

g 2,616,462 $
10,215

3,313,810
149,490
205,000
247,500

18,000
60,000

2,605,307 $
3,838

3,312,865
128,784
186,942
228,895

14,641
191,541

(1 1 ,155)
(6,377)

(e45)
(20,706)
(18,058)
(18,605)

(3,35e)
131,541

1,397,233
3,181,522
1,955,996

9,445
581,022
609,002

5,1 91

183,513

1,397,233
3,181,522
1,866,626

9,445
556,022
575,336

5,1 91

1,330,341
3,086,658
1,664,438

10,172
549,740
506,1 1 0

2,127

130,685

66,892
94,864

202J88
(727)

6,282
69,226
3,064

48 414
135,099

48,414 24 801

4,414
23,613

7 971 338 7,774

(1,188,357)

888 7 072 469 öto305

(862,543) (334,586) 527 957

1 ,529,572
(389,629)

1,593,572
(731,02e)

1,455,562
(731,02e)

(138,010)

1 ,'1 39

Net change in fund balances (48,414)

5,972,667FUND BALANCE - Beginning of Year 5,972,667

943 862 543 724,533 (138 010)

389,947

5,972,667

389,947

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 5 924 253 $ 5,972 667 $6, 362,614 $ 389,947
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CITY OF RIVER FALLS

DETAILED BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE OF REVENUES
GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended December 31,2011

Budgeted Amounts Variance with

Final BudgetOriqinal Final Ac'rual

TAXES
General propefty tax
Mobile home taxes
Other taxes
Payment in lieu of taxes - housing authority
Payment in lieu of taxes - other
lnterest on taxes

TOTALS

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS
Special assessments
lnterest on special assessments

TOTALS

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVEN UES
Shared taxes from state
Fire insurance from state
State aid - computers
State aid - police training
State aid - streets
State aid - municipal services
State grant - other public safety
School district grant
Municipal grants

TOTALS

LICENSES AND PERMITS
Liquor and malt beverage licenses
Operators licenses
Cigarette licenses
Business and occupational licenses
Housing cìtations
Bike licenses
Dog licenses
Housing inspection licenses
Plumbing permits
Building permits
Sign permits
Zoning permits
lnspectors red seal

TOTALS

2,616,462 2 616 462 2,605,307

.lJ 2,531,962 $
22,O00

2,531,962 $
22,000

6,000
55.000

2,523,486
21,686

2,190
7,558

47,850

$ (8,476)
(314)

2,190
1,558

(7,150)
1,037

(1 1 ,1 s5)

6,000
55,000

1,500 500 2 5371

9,598

617

9,598

617

2,943
895

(6,655)

278

10,215 10 215 3,838 (6 377)

2,165,515
25,000
10,000
4,000

506,000
225,O00

3,500
50,000

(34,52s)
2,298

(8e4)
3,282
5 806
1,152

19 339
2,601

2j65,515
25,000
10,000
4,000

506 000
268,715
23,500
50,000

2,130 986
27,298

9,106
7,282

511,806
269,867
42,839
52,601

261 080 261 080 261 080

3,250,095 3,313,810 3,312,865 (s45)

15,000
4 500

450
1,500

500
s0

5,000
17 ,190

1,500
100.000

17,628
5,653
1 ,1s0
1,658

15,000
4,500

450
1 ,500

500
50

5,000
17,190

1 ,500
100,000

'1,500

1.000

16

6,306
15 890

1,200
73,221

2,024
3 510

528

2,628
1 153

700
'158

(500)
(34)

1 306
(1,300)

(300)
(26,77e)

524
2,510

(772)

500
000
300 3001

149,490 149 490 128,784 /.) 0 706)
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CITY OF RIVER FALLS

DETAILED BUDGETARY CoMPARISON SCHEDULE OF REVENUES (cont.)
GENERAL FUND

Forthe Year Ended December 31,2011

Budgeted Amounts Variance with

Final BudgetOriqinal Final Actual

FINES, FORFEITURES AND PENALTIES
Court penalties and costs
Parking violations
Restitution and forfeitures
Court costs

TOTALS

þ

PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICES
Clerk fees
Zoning administration fees
Publication fees
Plat review fees
Police department fees
Police reserve
Police towing
Fire department fees
Fire inspection fees
Public works charges
Weights and measures charges
Swimming pool

Parks
Other recreation programs

TOTALS

INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES FOR SERVICES
Utility-mechanic charges
Utility-DPW/engineer
Motor pool cars

TOTALS

INVESTMENT INCOME
lnterest from interfund advances
lnterest on temporary investments

TOTALS

205,000 205,000 186

85,000 $
90,000

30,000

85,000 $
90,000

30,000

64,119 $
96 464

360
25,999

(20,881)
6,464

360
(4,001)

942 (18,058)

6,000
'10,000

1,000
'10,000

16 500
2,000

10,000
15,000

6,000
10,000

'1,000

10,000
'16,500

2,000
10,000
15,000

5,630
8,430
1,207
6,700

19,505
270

'18,648

14,699
'l 190

21,358
4,000

20,625
14,738
91,895

(370)
(1,s70)

207
(3,300)
3,005

(1,730)
I 648

(301)
1,190

16,3585,000
4,000

'18,000

20,000
130,000

s,000
4,000

18,000
20,000

130 000

2,625
(5,262)

(38,1 05)

247 500 247 500 228 895 (18,605)

15 000
500

'15,000

500
13,532 (1 468)

(500)
(1 ,3e1)2 500 500 '1092

18 000 18 000 14,641 (3,35e)

50,000 60 000
125,000

66,54'1

125,000
6,541

50 000 60,000 191 541 131.541
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CITY OF RIVER FALLS

DETAILED BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE OF REVENUES (cont.)

GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended December 31,2011

Budgeted Amounts Variance with

Final BudqetOriginal Final Actual

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES
Sale of supplies
Rent of municipal buildings
Donations
Sale of capital assets
Miscellaneous

TOTALS

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers from other funds

TOTALS

TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES

565 $
179,927

9,207
1 3,1 00
94,874

(e35)
(13,317)

9,207
s '100

$ 1,500 $
193,244

10,000
31,475

1,500 $
193,244

10,000
87 124 7 750

236,219 291 868 297,673 5 805

529,572 1,593,572 1,455,562 (138,010)

593,572 1,455,562 (138,010)
1,

1,529,572 I,

$ 8,312,553 $ 8,505,917 $ 8,426,048 $ (79,86e)
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CITY OF RIVER FALLS

DETAILED BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
GENERAL FUND

Forthe Year Ended December 31,2011

Budgeted Amounts Variance with

Final BudgetOriginal Final Actual

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Council
Municipaf court
Mayor
City administrator
Personnel
Elections
Data processing
Clerk
Finance
General services
Legal counseling

TOTALS

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police
Police reserve
Fire department
Emergency government

TOTALS

PUBLIC WORKS
Garage
Street maintenance
Bridges and culverts
Motor pool
Engineer
Snow and ice control
Street lighting

TOTALS

HEALTH SERVICES
Health officer
Animal control

TOTALS

$ 196,736 $
122,842

14,436
230,263
64,965
33,537
89,986

121,820
4'16,998

35,650
70,000

194,236 $
122,842

14,436
235,263
44,765
33,537
74,986

123,820
461,932
35,650
55,766

168,237 $
116,132

13,063
231,520

38,1 70
29,709
74,035

122,247
461,345
28,305

25,999
6,710
1,373
3,743
6,595
3,828

951
1,573

587
7,345
8,18847 578

1,397 ,233 397 233 '1,330,341 66,892

2,613,965
I 4,560

545,657

2,613,965
14,560

535,657

?,588,229
1 0,'l 87

476,074
12.168

25,736
4,373

59,583

279,837
942,724

3,000
10,600

283,'1 85
184,550
252,100

279,837
917,724

3,000
10,600

193,815
209,s50

262,221
846,720

2,071
7,694

123,137
185,931

17,616
71 ,004

929
2,906

70,678
23,619
15,436

7 340 17 340 5 172

3 181 522 3,181,522 3, 086,658 94 864

252 100 236 664

1 955,996 1 866 o¿o 1,664,438 202.188

2,000 2,000 2,000

7 445 445 o 172 (727)

L445 9,445 '10 172 (727)

7
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CITY OF RIVER FALLS

DETAILED BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES (cont.)

GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended December 31,2011

Budgeted Amounts Variance with

Final BudgetOriginal Final Actual

LEISURE ACTIVITIES
Recreation
Swimming
Parks

TOTALS

CONSERVATION AND DEVELOPMENT
Forestry
Community development

TOTALS

PUBLIC SERVICE ENTERPRISES
Cemetery

TOTALS

DEBT SERVICE
Principal on notes payable-fire
Principal on notes payable-streets
lnterest on notes payable-fire
lnterest on notes payable-streets

Agent fees
TOTALS

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers to other funds

TOTALS

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING USES

$ 165,101 $
76,493

136,s26 $
84,068

335,428

135,778 $
83,916

330 046

748
152

5,382339 428

581,022 556 022 549,740

41,729

6,282

41,729
567,273

32,446
473,664

9,283
59,943533 607

609,002 575 336 506 110 69 226

191 5 191 2127 J 0645

5 191

66,661
68,438
31,951
16,363

100

183,s13 183,51 3 155,486

389 629 731 029 731 029

389,629 731 029 731,029

$ 8,312,5s3 $ 8,505,917 $ 8,036,101 $ 469,816

1915 2127 3,064

66,661
68,438
31,951
16,363

100

66,661
64,024
16 638

8,081
82

4,414
15,313
8,282

1B
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APPENDIX B

FORM OF LEGAL OPINION

Quarles & Brady LLP
411 East Wisconsin Avenue

Milwaukee, WI  53202

September 20, 2012

Re: City of River Falls, Wisconsin ("Issuer")
$3,950,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012B,
dated September 20, 2012 ("Bonds")

We have acted as bond counsel to the Issuer in connection with the issuance of the Bonds.  In such capacity,
we have examined such law and such certified proceedings, certifications, and other documents as we have deemed
necessary to render this opinion.

Regarding questions of fact material to our opinion, we have relied on the certified proceedings and other
certifications of public officials and others furnished to us without undertaking to verify the same by independent
investigation.

The Bonds are numbered from R-1 and upward; bear interest at the rates set forth below; and mature on
May 1 of each year, in the years and principal amounts as follows:

Year Principal Amount Interest Rate
2013 $475,000 ____%
2014  480,000 ____ 
2015  485,000 ____ 
2016  290,000 ____ 
2017  290,000 ____ 
2018  300,000 ____ 
2019  310,000 ____ 
2020  315,000 ____ 
2021  325,000 ____ 
2022 335,000 ____ 
2023 345,000 ____ 

Interest is payable semi-annually on May 1 and November 1 of each year commencing on May 1, 2013.

The Bonds maturing on May 1, 2021 and thereafter are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option
of the Issuer, on May 1, 2020 or on any date thereafter.  Said Bonds are redeemable as a whole or in part, and if in
part, from maturities selected by the Issuer and within each maturity, by lot, at the principal amount thereof, plus
accrued interest to the date of redemption.
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[The Bonds maturing in the years ______, ______ and ______ are also subject to mandatory redemption by
lot as provided in the resolution authorizing the Bonds at the redemption price of par plus accrued interest to the date
of redemption and without premium.]

We further certify that we have examined a sample of the Bonds and find the same to be in proper form.

Based upon and subject to the foregoing, it is our opinion under existing law that:

1.  The Bonds have been duly authorized and executed by the Issuer and are valid and binding general
obligations of the Issuer.

2.  All the taxable property in the territory of the Issuer is subject to the levy of ad valorem taxes to pay
principal of, and interest on, the Bonds, without limitation as to rate or amount.  The Issuer is required by law to
include in its annual tax levy the principal and interest coming due on the Bonds except to the extent that necessary
funds have been irrevocably deposited into the debt service fund account established for the payment of the principal
of and interest on the Bonds.

3.  The interest on the Bonds is excludable for federal income tax purposes from the gross income of the
owners of the Bonds.  The interest on the Bonds is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative
minimum tax imposed by Section 55 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") on corporations
(as that term is defined for federal income tax purposes) and individuals.  However, for purposes of computing the
alternative minimum tax imposed on corporations, the interest on the Bonds is included in adjusted current earnings.
The Code contains requirements that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order for interest
on the Bonds to be or continue to be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  Failure to
comply with certain of those requirements could cause the interest on the Bonds to be included in gross income
retroactively to the date of issuance of the Bonds.  The Issuer has agreed to comply with all of those requirements.
The opinion set forth in the first sentence of this paragraph is subject to the condition that the Issuer comply with
those requirements.  We express no opinion regarding other federal tax consequences arising with respect to the
Bonds.

In rendering our opinion regarding exemption from present federal income taxes, we have relied on the report
of Barthe & Wahrman, A Professional Association, Certified Public Accountants of Bloomington, Minnesota, as to,
among other matters, the yield on the Bonds and investments relative to the refunding transaction.

We express no opinion regarding the accuracy, adequacy, or completeness of the Official Statement or any
other offering material relating to the Bonds.  Further, we express no opinion regarding tax consequences arising with
respect to the Bonds other than as expressly set forth herein.

The rights of the owners of the Bonds and the enforceability thereof may be subject to bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and similar laws affecting creditors' rights and may be subject to the exercise
of judicial discretion in accordance with general principles of equity, whether considered at law or in equity.

This opinion is given as of the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to revise or supplement this opinion
to reflect any facts or circumstances that may hereafter come to our attention, or any changes in law that may
hereafter occur.

QUARLES & BRADY LLP
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APPENDIX C

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM

1. The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, New York, will act as securities depository for the securities
(the "Securities").  The Securities will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co.
(DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.
One fully-registered Security certificate will be issued for [each issue of] the Securities, [each] in the aggregate
principal amount of such issue, and will be deposited with DTC.  [If, however, the aggregate principal amount of
[any] issue exceeds $500 million, one certificate will be issued with respect to each $500 million of principal
amount, and an additional certificate will be issued with respect to any remaining principal amount of such issue.]

 
2. DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York

Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the
Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code,
and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934.  DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues,
corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC's
participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with DTC.  DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct
Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized
book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts.  This eliminates the need for physical
movement of securities certificates.  Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and
dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations.  DTC is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC").  DTCC is the holding company for DTC,
National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered
clearing agencies.  DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries.  Access to the DTC system is also
available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and
clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly
or indirectly ("Indirect Participants").  DTC has a Standard & Poor's rating of AA+.  The DTC Rules applicable
to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  More information about DTC can
be found at www.dtcc.com  and www.dtc.org. 

 
3. Purchases of Securities under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive

a credit for the Securities on DTC's records.  The ownership interest  of each actual purchaser of each Security
("Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants' records.  Beneficial Owners
will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase.  Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to
receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings,
from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction.  Transfers
of ownership interests in the Securities are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect
Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing
their ownership interests in Securities, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Securities is
discontinued.  

 
4. To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Securities deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the

name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized
representative of DTC.  The deposit of Securities with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or
such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership.  DTC has no knowledge of the actual
Beneficial Owners of the Securities; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose
accounts such Securities are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners.  The Direct and Indirect
Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 
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5. Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect
Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to
time.  [Beneficial Owners of Securities may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of
notices of significant events with respect to the Securities, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed
amendments to the Security documents.  For example, Beneficial Owners of Securities may wish to ascertain that
the nominee holding the Securities for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners.
In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request
that copies of notices be provided directly to them.] 

 
6. Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC.  If less than all of the Securities within an issue are being redeemed,

DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be
redeemed.  

 
7. Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to Securities unless

authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's MMI Procedures.  Under its usual procedures, DTC
mails an Omnibus Proxy to  City as soon as possible after the record date.  The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede &
Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Securities are credited on the
record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

 
8. Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Securities will be made to Cede & Co., or such

other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  DTC's practice is to credit Direct
Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the City or Agent,
on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records.  Payments by Participants
to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with
securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name," and will be the
responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, Agent, or the City, subject to any statutory or regulatory
requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  Payment of redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend
payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is
the responsibility of the City or Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the
responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of
Direct and Indirect Participants.   

 
9. A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its Securities purchased or tendered, through its Participant,

to [Tender/Remarketing] Agent, and shall effect delivery of such Securities by causing the Direct Participant to
transfer the Participant's interest in the Securities, on DTC's records, to [Tender/Remarketing] Agent.  The
requirement for physical delivery of Securities in connection with an optional tender or a mandatory purchase will
be deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the Securities are transferred by Direct Participants on DTC's
records and followed by a book-entry credit of tendered Securities to [Tender/Remarketing] Agent's DTC account.

 
10. DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Securities at any time by giving

reasonable notice to the City or Agent.  Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor depository is not
obtained, Security certificates are required to be printed and delivered. 

 
11. The City may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a successor

securities depository).  In that event, Security certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC. 
 
12. The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained from sources

that the City believes to be reliable, but the City takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof. 
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APPENDIX D

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the "Disclosure Certificate") is executed and delivered by the City
of River Falls, Pierce and St. Croix Counties, Wisconsin (the "Issuer") in connection with the issuance of $3,950,000
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012B, dated September 20, 2012 (the "Securities").  The Securities
are being issued pursuant to a Resolution adopted by the Governing Body of the Issuer on August 14, 2012 (the
"Resolution") and delivered to _____________________________ (the "Purchaser") on the date hereof.  Pursuant
to the Resolution, the Issuer has covenanted and agreed to provide continuing disclosure of certain financial
information and operating data and timely notices of the occurrence of certain events.  In addition, the Issuer hereby
specifically covenants and agrees as follows:

Section 1(a).  Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate.  This Disclosure Certificate is being executed and
delivered by the Issuer for the benefit of the holders of the Securities in order to assist the Participating Underwriters
within the meaning of the Rule (defined herein) in complying with SEC Rule 15c2-12(b)(5).  References in this
Disclosure Certificate to holders of the Securities shall include the beneficial owners of the Securities.  This
Disclosure Certificate constitutes the written Undertaking required by the Rule.

Section 1(b).  Filing Requirements.  Any filing under this Disclosure Certificate must be made solely by
transmitting such filing to the MSRB (defined herein) through the Electronic Municipal Market Access ("EMMA")
System at www.emma.msrb.org in the format prescribed by the MSRB.  All documents provided to the MSRB shall
be accompanied by the identifying information prescribed by the MSRB.

Section 2.  Definitions.  In addition to the defined terms set forth in the Resolution, which apply to any
capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined in this Section, the following capitalized
terms shall have the following meanings:

"Annual Report" means any annual report provided by the Issuer pursuant to, and as described in, Sections 3
and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.

"Audited Financial Statements" means the Issuer's annual financial statements, which are currently prepared
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for governmental units as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and which the Issuer intends to continue to prepare in
substantially the same form.

"Final Official Statement" means the Preliminary Official Statement dated July 26, 2012 (as supplemented
by an Addendum dated August 15, 2012) delivered in connection with the Securities, which is available from the
MSRB.

"Fiscal Year" means the fiscal year of the Issuer.

"Governing Body" means the Common Council of the Issuer or such other body as may hereafter be the chief
legislative body of the Issuer.

"Issuer" means the City of River Falls, Wisconsin which is the obligated person with respect to the Securities.
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"Issuer Contact" means the Finance Director-Treasurer of the Issuer who can be contacted at 222 Lewis
Street, River Falls, Wisconsin 54022, phone (715) 425-0900, fax (715) 425-0915.

"Material Event" means any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure Certificate.

"MSRB" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board located at 1900 Duke Street, Suite 600,
Alexandria, Virginia 22314.

"Participating Underwriter" means any of the original underwriter(s) of the Securities (including the
Purchaser) required to comply with the Rule in connection with the offering of the Securities.

"Rule" means SEC Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) promulgated by the SEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as the same may be amended from time to time, and official interpretations thereof.

"SEC" means the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Section 3.  Provision of Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements.

(a) The Issuer shall, not later than 365 days after the end of the Fiscal Year, commencing with the year
that ended December 31, 2011, provide the MSRB with an Annual Report filed in accordance with Section 1(b) of
this Disclosure Certificate and which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.
The Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents comprising a package, and may
cross-reference other information as provided in Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate; provided that the Audited
Financial Statements of the Issuer may be submitted separately from the balance of the Annual Report and that, if
Audited Financial Statements are not available within 365 days after the end of the Fiscal Year, unaudited financial
information will be provided, and Audited Financial Statements will be submitted to the MSRB when and if available.

(b) If the Issuer is unable or fails to provide to the MSRB an Annual Report by the date required in
subsection (a), the Issuer shall send in a timely manner a notice of that fact to the MSRB in the format prescribed by
the MSRB, as described in Section 1(b) of this Disclosure Certificate.

Section 4.  Content of Annual Report.  The Issuer's Annual Report shall contain or incorporate by reference
the Audited Financial Statements and updates of the following sections of the Final Official Statement to the extent
such financial information and operating data are not included in the Audited Financial Statements:

1. Direct Debt
2. Other Debt
3. Debt Limit
4. Current Property Valuations
5. Tax Levies and Collections

Any or all of the items listed above may be incorporated by reference from other documents, including
official statements of debt issues of the Issuer or related public entities, which are available to the public on the
MSRB’s Internet website or filed with the SEC.  The Issuer shall clearly identify each such other document so
incorporated by reference.



D-3

Section 5.  Reporting of Material Events.

(a) This Section 5 shall govern the giving of notices of the occurrence of any of the following events
with respect to the Securities:

1. Principal and interest payment delinquencies;

2. Non-payment related defaults, if material;

3. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;

4. Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;

5. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

6. Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final
determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or
determinations with respect to the tax status of the Securities, or other material events affecting the tax status of the
Securities; 

7. Modification to rights of holders of the Securities, if material;

8. Securities calls, if material, and tender offers;

9. Defeasances;

10. Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Securities, if material;

11. Rating changes;

12. Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Issuer;

13. The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the Issuer or the sale of all
or substantially all of the assets of the Issuer, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive
agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other
than pursuant to its terms, if material; and

14. Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, if material.

For the purposes of the event identified in subsection (a)12. above, the event is considered to occur when any
of the following occur:  the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for the Issuer  in a proceeding
under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or
governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the Issuer, or if
such jurisdiction has been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but
subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an order confirming a plan
of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction
over substantially all of the assets or business of the Issuer.

(b) When a Material Event occurs, the Issuer shall, in a timely manner not in excess of ten business days after
the occurrence of the Material Event, file a notice of such occurrence with the MSRB.  Notwithstanding the foregoing,
notice of Material Events described in subsections (a) (8) and (9) need not be given under this subsection any earlier than
the notice (if any) of the underlying event is given to holders of affected Securities pursuant to the Resolution.
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(c) Unless otherwise required by law, the Issuer shall submit the information in the format prescribed
by the MSRB, as described in Section 1(b) of this Disclosure Certificate.

Section 6.  Termination of Reporting Obligation.  The Issuer's obligations under the Resolution and this
Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all the
Securities.

Section 7.  Issuer Contact; Agent.  Information may be obtained from the Issuer Contact.  Additionally, the
Issuer may, from time to time, appoint or engage a dissemination agent to assist it in carrying out its obligations under
the Resolution and this Disclosure Certificate, and may discharge any such agent, with or without appointing a
successor dissemination agent.  

Section 8.  Amendment; Waiver.  Notwithstanding any other provision of the Resolution or this Disclosure
Certificate, the Issuer may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any provision of this Disclosure Certificate may
be waived, if such amendment or waiver is supported by an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel to the
effect that such amendment or waiver would not, in and of itself, cause the undertakings to violate the Rule.  The
provisions of this Disclosure Certificate constituting the Undertaking or any provision hereof, shall be null and void
in the event that the Issuer delivers to the MSRB an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel to the effect that
those portions of the Rule which require this Disclosure Certificate are invalid, have been repealed retroactively or
otherwise do not apply to the Securities.  The provisions of this Disclosure Certificate  constituting the Undertaking
may be amended without the consent of the holders of the Securities, but only upon the delivery by the Issuer to the
MSRB of the proposed amendment and an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel to the effect that such
amendment, and giving effect thereto, will not adversely affect the compliance of this Disclosure Certificate and by
the Issuer with the Rule.

Section 9.  Additional Information.  Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed to prevent the
Issuer from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth in this Disclosure
Certificate or any other means of communication, or including any other information in any Annual Report or notice
of occurrence of a Material Event, in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Certificate.  If the Issuer
chooses to include any information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Material Event in addition to
that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Certificate, the Issuer shall have no obligation under this
Disclosure Certificate to update such information or include it in any future Annual Report or notice of occurrence
of a Material Event.

Section 10.  Default.  (a)  Except as described in the Final Official Statement, in the previous five years, the
Issuer has not failed to comply in all material respects with any previous undertakings under the Rule to provide
annual reports or notices of material events.

(b)  In the event of a failure of the Issuer to comply with any provision of this Disclosure Certificate any
holder of the Securities may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or
specific performance by court order, to cause the Issuer to comply with its obligations under the Resolution and this
Disclosure Certificate.  A default under this Disclosure Certificate shall not be deemed an event of default with
respect to the Securities and the sole remedy under this Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of the Issuer
to comply with this Disclosure Certificate shall be an action to compel performance.

Section 11.  Beneficiaries.  This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of the Issuer, the
Participating Underwriters and holders from time to time of the Securities, and shall create no rights in any other
person or entity.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have executed this Certificate in our official capacities effective the 20th day
of September, 2012.

_____________________________
Dan Toland
Mayor

(SEAL)

_____________________________
Lu Ann Hecht
City Clerk
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APPENDIX E

NOTICE OF SALE

$3,950,000* GENERAL OBLIGATION REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2012B
CITY OF RIVER FALLS, WISCONSIN

Bids for the purchase of $3,950,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012B (the "Bonds") of the City
of River Falls, Wisconsin (the "City") will be received at the offices of Ehlers & Associates, Inc. ("Ehlers"), 3060
Centre Pointe Drive, Roseville, Minnesota 55113-1105, Financial Advisors to the City, until 10:00 A.M., Central
Time, and ELECTRONIC PROPOSALS will be received via PARITY, in the manner described below, until 10:00
A.M. Central Time, on August 14, 2012, at which time they will be opened, read and tabulated.  The bids will be
presented to the Common Council for consideration for award by resolution at a meeting to be held at 6:30 P.M.,
Central Time, on the same date.  The bid offering to purchase the Bonds upon the terms specified herein and most
favorable to the City will be accepted unless all bids are rejected.

PURPOSE

The Bonds are being issued pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes, Section 67.04 to provide funds to finance (i) the current
refunding of the 2013 through 2015 maturities of the City’s $1,630,000 General Obligation Library Refunding Bonds,
Series 2004A, dated January 1, 2004; and (ii) the full-net advance refunding of the 2013 through 2024 maturities of
the City’s $4,750,000 Sewerage System Revenue Bonds, Series 2004B, dated August 1, 2004  The Bonds are valid
and binding general obligations of the City, and all the taxable property in the City is subject to the levy of a tax to
pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds as they become due which tax may, under current law, be levied
without limitation as to rate or amount.

DATES AND MATURITIES

The Bonds will be dated September 20, 2012, will be issued as fully registered Bonds in the denomination of $5,000
each, or any integral multiple thereof, and will mature on May 1 as follows:

Year Amount* Year Amount* Year Amount*

2013 $475,000 2017 $290,000 2021 $325,000

2014 480,000 2018 300,000 2022 335,000

2015 485,000 2019 310,000 2023 345,000

2016 290,000 2020 315,000

ADJUSTMENT OPTION

* The City reserves the right to increase or decrease the principal amount of the Bonds on the day of sale, in
increments of $5,000 each.  Increases or decreases may be made in any maturity.  If any principal amounts are
adjusted, the purchase price proposed will be adjusted to maintain the same gross spread per $1,000. 

TERM BOND OPTION

Bids for the Bonds may contain a maturity schedule providing for any combination of serial bonds and term bonds,
subject to mandatory redemption, so long as the amount of principal maturing or subject to mandatory redemption
in each year conforms to the maturity schedule set forth above.  All dates are inclusive.  
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INTEREST PAYMENT DATES AND RATES

Interest will be payable on May 1 and November 1 of each year, commencing May 1, 2013, to the registered owners
of the Bonds appearing of record in the bond register as of the close of business on the 15th day (whether or not a
business day) of the immediately preceding month.  Interest will be computed upon the basis of a 360-day year of
twelve 30-day months and will be rounded pursuant to rules of the MSRB.  The rate for any maturity may not be
more than 1.00% less than the rate for any preceding maturity. (For example, if a rate of 3.00% is proposed
for the 2021 maturity, then the lowest rate that may be proposed for any later maturity is 2.00%.)  All Bonds
of the same maturity must bear interest from date of issue until paid at a single, uniform rate.  Each rate must be
expressed in an integral multiple of 5/100 or 1/8 of 1%. 

BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY FORMAT

Unless otherwise specified by the purchaser, the Bonds will be designated in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee
for The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC").  DTC will act as securities depository for the
Bonds, and will be responsible for maintaining a book-entry system for recording the interests of its participants and
the transfers of interests between its participants.  The participants will be responsible for maintaining records
regarding the beneficial interests of the individual purchasers of the Bonds.  So long as Cede & Co. is the registered
owner of the Bonds, all payments of principal and interest will be made to the depository which, in turn, will be
obligated to remit such payments to its participants for subsequent disbursement to the beneficial owners of the
Bonds.

PAYING AGENT/ESCROW AGENT

The City has selected U.S. Bank National Association, St. Paul, Minnesota, to act as paying agent (the "Paying
Agent") and escrow agent (the “Escrow Agent”).  The City will pay the charges for Paying Agent and Escrow Agent
services.  The City reserves the right to remove the Paying Agent and/or Escrow Agent and to appoint a successor.

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION

At the option of the City, Bonds maturing on or after May 1, 2021 shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity
on May 1, 2020 and on any date thereafter, at a price of par plus accrued interest.

Redemption may be in whole or in part of the Bonds subject to prepayment.  If redemption is in part, the selection
of the amounts and maturities of the Bonds to be redeemed shall be at the discretion of the City.  If only part of the
Bonds having a common maturity date are called for redemption, then the City or Paying Agent, if any, will notify
DTC of the particular amount of such maturity to be redeemed.  DTC will determine by lot the amount of each
participant's interest in such maturity to be redeemed and each participant will then select by lot the beneficial
ownership interest in such maturity to be redeemed.

Notice of such call shall be given by sending a notice by registered or certified mail, facsimile or electronic
transmission, or overnight delivery service not fewer than 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption to the
registered owner of each Bond to be redeemed at the address shown on the registration books.

DELIVERY

On or about September 20, 2012, the Bonds will be delivered without cost to the winning bidder at DTC.  On the day
of closing, the City will furnish to the winning bidder the opinion of bond counsel hereinafter described, an arbitrage
certification, and certificates verifying that no litigation in any manner questioning the validity of the Bonds is then
pending or, to the best knowledge of officers of the City, threatened.  Payment for the Bonds must be received by the
City at its designated depository on the date of closing in immediately available funds.
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LEGAL OPINION

An opinion as to the validity of the Bonds and the exemption from federal taxation of the interest thereon will be
furnished by Quarles & Brady LLP,  bond counsel to the City, and will accompany the Bonds.  The legal opinion will
be issued on the basis of existing law and will state that the Bonds are valid and binding general obligations of the
City; provided that the rights of the owners of the Bonds and the enforceability of the Bonds may be limited by
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, and other similar laws affecting creditors' rights and by equitable
principles (which may be applied in either a legal or equitable proceeding).

SUBMISSION OF BIDS

Bids must not be for less than $3,910,500 plus accrued interest on the principal sum of $3,950,000 from date of
original issue of the Bonds to date of delivery.  A signed bid form must be submitted to Ehlers prior to the time
established above for the opening of bids as follows:

1) In a sealed envelope as described herein; or

2) A facsimile submission to Ehlers, Facsimile Number (651) 697-8555; or

3) Electronically via PARITY in accordance with this Notice of Sale until 10:00 A.M. Central Time, but no
bid will be received after the time for receiving bids specified above.  To the extent any instructions or
directions set forth in PARITY conflict with this Notice of Sale, the terms of this Notice of Sale shall
control.  For further information about PARITY, potential bidders may contact Ehlers or i-Deal LLC at 1359
Broadway, 2nd Floor, New York, New York 10018, Telephone (212) 849-5021.

Bids must be submitted to Ehlers via one of the methods described above and must be received prior to the time
established above for the opening of bids.  Each bid must be unconditional except as to legality.  Neither the City nor
Ehlers shall be responsible for any failure to receive a facsimile submission.

A good faith deposit (the "Deposit") in the amount of $79,000, complying with the provisions below, must be
submitted with each bid.  The Deposit must be in the form of a certified or cashier's check, or a financial surety bond
or a wire transfer of funds to KleinBank, 1550 Audubon Road, Chaska, Minnesota, ABA No. 091915654 for
credit: Ehlers & Associates Good Faith Account No. 3208138.  The Deposit will be retained by the City as
liquidated damages if the bid is accepted and the bidder fails to comply therewith.  The Deposit will be returned to
the winning bidder at the closing for the Bonds.

The Deposit, payable to the City, shall be retained in the offices of Ehlers with the same effect as if delivered to the
City.  Alternatively, bidders may wire the Deposit to KleinBank, 1550 Audubon Road, Chaska, Minnesota, ABA
No. 091915654 for credit: Ehlers & Associates Good Faith Account No. 3208138.  The City and any bidder who
chooses to so wire the Deposit hereby agree irrevocably that Ehlers shall be the escrow holder of the Deposit wired
to such account subject only to these conditions and duties: 1) All income earned thereon shall be retained by the
escrow holder as payment for its expenses; 2) If the bid is not accepted, Ehlers shall, at its expense, promptly return
the Deposit amount to the losing bidder; 3) If the bid is accepted, the Deposit shall be returned to the winning bidder
at the closing; 4) Ehlers shall bear all costs of maintaining the escrow account and returning the funds to the bidder;
5) Ehlers shall not be an insurer of the Deposit amount and shall have no liability hereunder except if it willfully fails
to perform, or recklessly disregards, its duties specified herein; and 6) FDIC insurance on deposits within the escrow
account shall be limited to $250,000 per bidder.
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If a financial surety bond is used, it must be from an insurance company licensed to issue such a bond in the State
of Wisconsin, and preapproved by the City.  Such bond must be submitted to Ehlers prior to the opening of the bids.
Such bond must identify each bidder whose Deposit is guaranteed by such financial surety bond.  If the Bonds are
awarded to a bidder using a financial surety bond, then that bidder is required to submit its Deposit to Ehlers in the
form of a certified or cashier's check or wire transfer as instructed by Ehlers not later than 3:00 P.M., Central Time,
on the next business day following the award.  If such Deposit is not received by that time, the financial surety bond
may be drawn by the City to satisfy the Deposit requirement.  The amount securing the successful bid will be retained
as liquidated damages if the bid is accepted and the bidder fails to comply therewith.  No bid can be withdrawn after
the time set for receiving bids unless the meeting of the City scheduled for award of the Bonds is adjourned, recessed,
or continued to another date without award of the Bonds having been made.

AWARD

The Bonds will be awarded to the bidder offering the lowest interest rate to be determined on a True Interest Cost
(TIC) basis.  The City’s computation of the interest rate of each bid, in accordance with customary practice, will be
controlling.  In the event of a tie, the sale of the Bonds will be awarded by lot.  The City reserves the right to reject
any and all bids and to waive any informality in any bid.

BOND INSURANCE

If the Bonds are qualified for any bond insurance policy, the purchase of such policy shall be at the sole option and
expense of the winning bidder.  Any cost for such insurance policy is to be paid by the winning bidder, except that,
if the City requested and received a rating on the Bonds from a rating agency, the City will pay that rating fee.  Any
rating agency fees not requested by the City are the responsibility of the winning bidder.

Failure of the municipal bond insurer to issue the policy after the Bonds are awarded to the winning bidder shall not
constitute cause for failure or refusal by the winning bidder to accept delivery of the Bonds.

CUSIP NUMBERS

The City will assume no obligation for the assignment or printing of CUSIP numbers on the Bonds or for the
correctness of any numbers printed thereon, but will permit such numbers to be printed at the expense of the winning
bidder, if the winning bidder waives any delay in delivery occasioned thereby.

QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS

The City will designate the Bonds as qualified tax-exempt obligations for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

In order to assist bidders in complying with SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended, the City will covenant to undertake
(pursuant to a Resolution to be adopted by the Common Council), to provide annual reports and timely notice of
certain events for the benefit of holders of the Bonds.  The details and terms of the undertaking are set forth in a
Continuing Disclosure Certificate to be executed and delivered by the City, a form of which is included in the
Preliminary Official Statement.  As a condition of closing, the City will deliver a Continuing Disclosure Certificate
at closing (in addition to the legal opinion and non-litigation certificate) setting forth the details and terms of the
City’s undertaking.
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INFORMATION FROM WINNING BIDDER

The successful purchaser will be required to provide, in a timely manner, certain information relating to the initial
offering prices of the Bonds necessary to compute the yield on the Bonds pursuant to the provisions of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT

Bidders may obtain a copy of the Preliminary Official Statement relating to the Bonds  prior to the bid opening by
request from Ehlers at www.ehlers-inc.com by connecting to the link to the Bond Sales.  The Syndicate Manager will
be provided with an electronic copy and up to 10 printed copies upon request of the Final Official Statement within
seven business days of the bid acceptance.  Additional copies of the Final Official Statement will be available at a
cost of $10.00 per copy.

Information for bidders and bid forms may be obtained from Ehlers at 3060 Centre Pointe Drive, Roseville,
Minnesota 55113-1105, Telephone (651) 697-8500.

By Order of the Common Council

Julie Bergstrom, Finance Director/Treasurer
City of River Falls, Wisconsin
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